NEVADA
COMMISSION ON TOURISM

Wednesday, March 18, 2020
1:00 P.M.

MEETING LOCATION:

Laxalt Building
401 N. Carson Street, 2™ Floor
Carson City, NV 89701

Las Vegas Video Location
Division of Tourism — Conference Room
4000 S. Eastern Ave. Suite 240
Las Vegas, NV 89119

Phone Conference Call Number:
888-363-4735
Access Code 4878739






PN
NEVADA

TRAVELNEVADA.COM

NEVADA COMMISSION ON TOURISM

NOTICE OF PUBLIC MEETING
Regular Meeting of the Commission on Tourism
Wednesday, March 18, 2020 —1:00 P.M.

MEETING LOCATION: VIDEO CONFERENCE LOCATION:
NCOT - Laxalt Building Las Vegas Tourism Office

401 N. Carson St. 2™ Floor 4000 S. Eastern Ave. #240
Carson City, NV 89701 Las Vegas, NV 85119

TELECONFERENCE NUMBER:
888-363-4735; Access Code 4878739

COMMISSIONERS
Lt. Governor Kate Marshall, Chair™*
Cindy Carano, Vice Chair* RSCVA Representative* Steve Hill*
Herb Santos, Jr.* Mike Vaswani* Pam Robinson*
Brian Krolicki* Cynthia Mun* Bob Stoldal
Kristin Windbigler* Julie Pazina* Edward Estipona
*Voting members Brian Wadsworth

THIS MEETING IS IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE “NEVADA OPEN MEETING LAW” AND HAS BEEN PROPERLY
NOTICED AND POSTED AT FOUR OR MORE OF THE FOLLOWING LOCATIONS:

Nevada Commission on Tourism, Carson City, Nevada
Legislative Counsel Bureau, Carson City and Las Vegas, Nevada
Nevada State Museum, Las Vegas, Nevada
Nevada State Library, Carson City, Nevada
Nevada State Purchasing, Carson City, Nevada
Las Vegas-Clark County Library, Windmill Branch, Las Vegas, Nevada
Reno Sparks Convention and Visitors Authority, Reno, Nevada

Websites: www.TravelNevada.biz and www.notice.nv.gov

1'-

age



Nevada Commission on Tourism
March 18, 2020 | Agenda

STATEMENT OF THE COMMISSION

e  Action may be taken on those items denoted “For Possible Action”.

+ Items on this agenda may be taken in a different order than listed.

¢ Two or more agenda items may be combined for consideration.

*  Anitem may be removed from this agenda or discussion relating to an item on this agenda may be
delayed at any time.

s  Public comment wili be allowed at the beginning and at the end of the meeting. Because of time
considerations, the period for public comment by each speaker may be limited to 3 minutes at the
discretion of the chair, and speakers are urged to avoid repetition of comments made by previous
speakers.

» No action may be taken on any matter brought up under public comment until that matter has been
specifically included on an agenda as an item upon which action may be taken (NRS 241.020).

s Meetings are audio-recorded as part of the public record. Speakers are requested to identify
themselves before speaking.

e Note: Please provide NCOT with electronic or written copies of testimony and visual presentations if
you wish to have complete versions included as exhibits with the minutes,

A. Opening
Call to Order and Confirmation of Proper Posting — Lt. Governor Kate Marshall
Roll Call and Determination of Quorum-— Lt. Governor Kate Marshall

B. Welcome to New Commissioner(s)

C. Public Comment
Public comment is welcomed by the Commission. A period of public comment will be allowed at the
beginning and at the end of the meeting. Because of time considerations, the period for public
comment by each speaker may be limited to three (3) minutes at the discretion of the Chair, and
speakers are urged to avoid repetition of comments made by previous speakers.

D. For Possible Action — Approval of Minutes

Approval of the December 11, 2019 NCOT Meeting Minutes

2IlFPag



Nevada Commission on Tourism
March 18, 2020 | Agenda

E. Discussion Only - US Travel’s IPW and COVID-19 Updates

F. For Possible Action — Projects Related to Tourism Grants

Review and Approval of grant applications for projects related to tourism. $481,384.79 in grant funds
were requested from 27 organizations. 31 grant applications were received and 24 grants were
awarded for total FY20 funds available of $200,000.

The 2001 Nevada Legisiature through Senate Bill 583 amended NRS Chapter 231 to establish
the “Projects Relating to Tourism” (PRT} grant program. The program is designed to develop
publicly owned property, facilities and infrastructure within Nevada to support and attract
visitors to this state. The program is administered by the Nevada Division of Tourism.
Recommendations for grant funding are made by the PRT Review Committee which consists
of the Rural Programs Manager from the Division of Tourism, plus three members from the
territories. Recommendations are presented to the Nevada Commission of Tourism for final
approval. (Grant guidelines are available at TravelNevada.biz)

Proposed motion: The Nevada Commission on Tourism approves the expenditure of 200,000 for the
FY20 Projects Related to Tourism Grants to the recipients as outlined in the staff recommendation {or
as revised per Commission discussion).

G. Discussion Only - Nevada Division of Outdoor Recreation, Colin Robertson,
Administrator

H. Discussion Only — Update on LCB File No. R080-18 Proposed Regulation

I. Discussion Only - Agency Reports
11. Chair Report

12 Division of Tourism
12.1  Staffing Changes / Updates
12.2 Quarterly Staff Update
123 Budget Update
124  Destination Development Program / Cabinet SubCommittee
125 Marketing — New Commercial Spot
https:/www.dropbox.com/sh/x Tpannjj0fvli9c/AAABenNuxJOOEVZL FBvQcCoba?dl=0
126  Marketing - 2020 Visitor's Guide
12.7 Rural Roundup Preview

). Discussion Only - Upcoming Meetings

Tuesday, June 23, 2020 1:00 p.m.
Wednesday, September 23, 2020 1:00 p.m.
Wednesday, December 9, 2020 1:00 p.m.

3|Page



Nevada Commission on Tourism
March 18, 2020 | Agenda

K. Commissioner Comments
L. Public Comment

Fublic comment is welcomed by the Commission. A period of public comment will be allowed at the
beginning and at the end of the meeting. Because of time considerations, the period for public
comment by each speaker may be limited to 3 minutes at the discretion of the Chair, and speakers
are urged to avoid repetition of comments made by previous speakers.

M. For Possible Action - Adjournment

The public may acquire this agenda and supporting materials, pursuant to NRS 241.020(2) by contacting Dee
Chekowitz-Dykes, Executive Assistant, Nevada Commission on Tourism, (775) 687-0621 or by email to
ddykes@travelnevada.com. Materials are available from the Nevada Commission on Tourism office, 401 N.
Carson Street, Carson City, Nevada and online at www.travelnevada.biz

Persons with disabilities who require special accommodations or assistance at the meeting should notify Dee
Chekowitz-Dykes at the Nevada Commission on Tourism at (775) 687-0621 or ddykes@travelnevada.com. ;

q]|F:



December 11, 2019
NCOT Meeting

Draft Minutes
For Approval

o
NEVADA-

EVADA.COM






Nevada Commission on Tourism | December 11, 2019
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

MINUTES of the NEVADA COMMISSION ON TOURISM
December 11, 2019

The Nevada Commission on Tourism held a Commission meeting at 9:00 a.m. on December 11, 2019 at 401 N.
Carson Street, Carson City, NV 89701 and by phone conference.

Call to Order
Lt. Governor Kate Marshall, Chair, called the meeting to order at 9:03 a.m.

Commissioners Present:
Lieutenant Governor Kate Marshall, Chair
Cindy Carano, Vice Chair
Phil DeLone

Herb Santos, Jr.

Brian Krolicki

Cynthia Mun

Pam Robinson

Edward Estipona

Bob Stoldal

Julie Pazina

Kristin Windbigler

Commissioners who are absent/excused:
Richard Arnold

Mike Vaswani

Steve Hill

Staff present:

Brenda Nebesky, Deputy Director

Dee Chekowitz-Dykes, E.A.

Shari Bombard, Rural Programs Manager
Justin Taruc, DAG

Stacey Montooth, Nevada Indian Commission

Roll Call and Determination of Quorum

MARSHALL: Hi guys. It's 9:03, so let's get started. | don't normally start late. All right, so let's see
where we are. Let's call the meeting to order, Wednesday, December 11th, 2019 at
9:03. So, the first thing | want to know is whether the meeting was properly noticed and
posted.

DYKES: Lt. Governor, Dee Dykes for the record. the meeting has been properly posted in
accordance with NRS Open Meeting Law at seven locations and on three websites.



MARSHALL:

DYKES:

MARSHALL:

DYKES:

CARANO:

DYKES:

DELONE:

DYKES:

SANTOS:

DYKES:

PAZINA:

DYKES:

KROLICKI:

DYKES:

MUN:

DYKES:

ROBINSON:

DYKES:

WINDBIGLER:

DYKES:

ESTIPONA:

DYKES:

STOLDAL:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | December 11, 2019

Thank you. Can you call the roll, please?
Yes. Lt. Governor Marshall?

Here.

Cindy Carano?

Present.

Commissioner DeLone?

Present.

Commissioner Steve Hill. Commissioner Santos?

Present.

New Commissioner, Julie Pazina?

Here.

Commissioner Vaswani. Commissioner Krolicki?

Present.

Commissioner Cynthia Mun.

Here.

Commissioner Robinson?

Here.

New Commissioner Kristin Windbigler?
Present.

Our non-voting members, Edward Estipona?
Here.

Richard Arnold, and Mr. Stoldal?

Here.

Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs



Nevada Commission on Tourism | December 11, 2019
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

Welcome to New NCOT Commissioners Pazina and Windbigler

MARSHALL:

PAZINA:

MARSHALL:

WINDBIGLER:

MARSHALL:

Public Comment

MARSHALL:

PAZINA:

MARSHALL:

Approval of Minutes

MARSHALL:

Thank you. As people in the audience could hear, we have some new members and |
wanted to give them a chance to say hello. So, Julie Pazina, if you wanted to introduce
yourself, we're very, very happy to have you.

Thank you so much. It's wonderful to see you from the distance, from Vegas to Carson
City. Thank you so much for the honor of joining the Commission. For those of you that
I haven't met, my name is Julie Pazina. I'm a part of the hospitality community here in
Las Vegas; former president of the Las Vegas Hospitality Association; active member of
the International Association of Exhibitions and Events; and the International
Association of Venue Managers. And thrilled to have the opportunity to serve Travel
Nevada, the Commission on TouriSm and really the state of Nevada as a whole. So,
thank you so much for having me.

Thank you and thank you for coming. Kristin, do you want to say something?
Hi everyone. I'm Kristin Windbigler. I'm the Executive Director of the Western Folklife
Center in Elko, Nevada:- | am just so thrilled and honored to be invited to join this

Commission and I'm really eager to serve the people in Nevada.

Thank you. Did | miss someone? ‘No. ):think that's lovely. All right, that was Agenda
Item Number A.

Agenda B, Item Number'B, so we have public comment. Please note that we have

public comment twice in the beginning and public comment at the end, so if there's

something that happens during the Commission meeting and you would like to
comment on that; you are welcome to comment at the end. No worries. But do we
have any public comment now, up here in Carson City? All right. Do we have any public
comment in Las Vegas?

‘No, we do not.

Thank you, and on the phone? No, all right. So, don't forget, you will your chance at the
end if something happens that you wanted to comment on.

Moving to Agenda Item Number C, approval of minutes from luly 12, 2019. Do we have
any edits, corrections, thoughts, perspectives?



SANTOS:

MARSHALL:

SANTOS:

MARSHALL:

ROBINSON:

MARSHALL:

MARSHALL:

GROUP:

MARSHALL:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | December 11, 2019
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

Herb Santos, for the record. Just on the September 24th meeting minutes, on page 46, |
think it may have taken a word—it just doesn't make sense where it says, "and if |
understood the process that's going to happen it seems that it has taking the consensus
of the Commissioners to provide recommendations,” | think it would have said taking
away the consensus of the Commissioners to provide recommendations. So, | would ask
consideration that we put “away” in between the word taking and the, the word away.

Okay. Any other edits. All right, then did you want to make a motion, Herb, with your
amendment?

Sure, | would move that we approve the July 12, 2019 NCOT Meeting Minutes and
approve the September 24, 2019 NCOT Meeting Minutes with the one edit on page 46
of, including the word, away, be—in the third paragraph between the words taking and
the.

All right, do | have a second?

Second.

Second from Pam. Any discussion?

Hearing none, all those in favor signify by saying, aye.

Ave.

Any opposed. ‘Minutes are approved.

FY20 2™ Cycle Rural Marketing Grants Recommended Allocation

MARSHALL:

ROBINSON:

MARSHALL:

ROBINSON:

BOMBARD:

Agenda Item Number D, | kind of skipped a little bit, did D after A. Anyway, whatever.
Welcome. Not the most formal person, okay. Agenda Item Number E, Fisca! Year 22nd,
Cycle Rule Marketing Grants. Hi.

Madam Chair.
Yes, go ahead.

Before Shari starts, Pam Robinson. If | could just say that—first of all compliments to
Shari and Christian and their staff and the territory chairs for going through a pretty
significant process to get to this cycle of the Rural Grants. It was not easy, but they put
in a lot of work and were thorough and had good comments and reasons for all of the
decisions they made. As we went through those meetings, just wanted to let you guys
all know beforehand that there was a lot of thought that went into this and thank you
for your hard work.

Thank you very much.



MARSHALL:

BOMBARD:

MARSHALL:

CARANO:

MARSHALL:

MARSHALL:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | December 11, 2019
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

Thank you, Pam.

For the record, my name is Shari Bombard and | am the Rural Programs Manager for
Travel Nevada. Good morning, Lt. Governor Marshall and members of the Commission.
It is my pleasure to present to you the Fiscal Year 2020 Second Cycle Rural Marketing
Grant Recommendations.

In this cycle, we received 97 applications requesting $814,575.38 in funding. We were
able to provide funding for 56 of those requests, totaling $301,575. | would like to point
out that although the amount requested was $814,000, the full budget for the projects
was 52,134,670. These funds are vital to'these communities and many projects would
never happen without them, but the communities also invest a huge amount of their
own time, money and in-kind contributions to these projects.

Besides the actual dollars, our grants are exceptionally important because they act as a
force multiplier helping keep our partners engaged and thinking about marketing.
Improve our relationships all over the state; inspire new projects.and ideas; increase
commitment andtracking since they have to report back; and, they Invest more funds
than they are requesting from us contributing to their local economies as well as to the
state.

Besides the grant workshops | hosted last year, | have also been focusing on outreach to

continue to Increase awareness of our grant:programs as well as everything else that

Travel Nevada does. Between July and the first part of October, | worked in 28 Nevada

towns. Due to this outreach, i expect the grant application numbers to climb even

maore.

After the initial recommendations were made by staff, the Territory Advisory Committee
consisting of five'of the six territory chairs, Rural Commissioner Robinson, Director of
Sales ‘and:Industry Partners, Christian Passink and myself. We met on November 15th
and discussed the projects page-by-page, line-by-line until we were able to reach a
consensus. These grant recommendations are being presented to the Commission with
the endorsement of the Territory Advisory Committee, If there are questions or
comments, | am happy to address them and then respectfully ask for a motion to
approve the 2020 Second Cycle Rural Marketing Grant Recommendations so we can
notify the applicants.

Shari, for some reason, | don't have the grant sheets. | don't know why.
Cindy Carano for the record. |did not get them in my packet either.
So, does everyone have this because | didn't have this.

! know, 1 didn't get it. Do you guys have it down there?



PAZINA:

MARSHALL:

CARANO:

BOMBARD:

MARSHALL:

BOMBARD:

MARSHALL:

BOMBARD:

DELONE:

BOMBARD:

DELONE:

BOMBARD:

MARSHALL:

BOMBARD:

MARSHALL:

BOMBARD:

MARSHALL:

TARUC:

MNevada Commission on Tourism | December 11, 2019
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

Yes, we have it in Vegas.

Okay, | don't know what happened. So, do you have one now?

Yeah, well, I'm sharing.

There you go.

Okay. Sorry, Shari.

Oh, no. That's okay.

Can you maybe highlight some of the ones that maybe are most exciting to you?
Yes. Let's see. | was really excited. Now, | need to find it.

And | also have a question. Just of all these grants, how many are repeats from last
year?

From last year, like, at this same time, or last cycle?

Yeah, last cycle.

There were a couple. Specifically, would be West Wendover had requested money for
print advertising as well as for television and because they had received funds last time,
even though they were cut, they were cut fully this time. So, that was denied fully this
time just due to lack of funds. But they still completed the project already. They just
weren't able to do it to the full capacity that they wanted to.

So, and that happened a few times, but a lot of them were new ones, or they were
repeats from a year ago. A lot of them are consistently doing print advertising. They're
consistently doing television advertising; they're consistently updating websites and
doing events and all those sorts of things. So, yes, they repeat, but then there's also
different ones as well.

What page was that on?

Oh, the West Wendover one. Or which one do you mean?

The West Windover.

The West Wendaver, they're on page one actually. That's Cowboy Country.

Okay. Thank you.

This is Justin Taruc, DAG in Vegas. We can't hear if someone's speaking. I'm sorry.

6



STOLDAL:

BOMBARD:

NEBESKY:

STOLDAL:

MARSHALL:

STOLDAL:

BOMBARD:

STOLDAL:

MARSHALL:

BOMBARD:

MARSHALL:

SANTOS:

BOMBARD:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | December 11, 2019
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

Was there some issue with the Northern Nevada Railroad, some audit? And has that
been cleared up?

| will defer to Brenda for that question.

For the record, Brenda Nebesky. There is some pending litigation in regard to that, and
we're kind of reluctant to talk about it in a public meeting. But that problem is being
pursued.

Ckay, thank you.

Kate Marshall for the record. Bob, let me just add, so basically at the last meeting, right,
it came up that there was some inconsistencies In following through the grant monies,
how they were spent et cetera'for Ely, and for the railroad entity in Ely that is not the
state entity and it was a while ago, right. But that has all been referred to the attorney
general's office. We understand that the attorney general's office is pursuing an
investigation. Once it gets into the investigative mode, that's out of cur hands then,
right.

| understood a part of that, but are they eligible still to get grants?

At this time, no.

Okay, thank you.

We'normally wait if someone's under investigation, we might hold off on grants.
Yeah, okay.

Herb, did you want to comment?

Yeah, thanks. Herb Santos for the record. (n looking at the folks that didn't get funding
because they're maybe been a low priority in looking at, you know, about $500,000.
This is going to be sort of a comment and a kudos to you guys to going through those
and making some hard decisions. You guys do a great job. But I think when you look at
the ones that you couldn't fund, were the ones that-like, how much out of that
$500,000 would you say, these are things that really needed to be funded versus, this is
something that really was something that we wouldn't fund even if we had the money.

Okay, so | actually pulled that number for you. | knew you were going to ask me. So, |
pulled out all the ones that were completely ineligible and that left $486,350 of eligible
projects that were cut. Some of them weren't great, or they could use a little tweaking
or that sort of thing. | would say a minimum of like $450,000 could have been funded as
well.



SANTOS:

BOMBARD:

MARSHALL:

BOMBARD:

PASSINK:

BOMBARD:

ROBINSOM:

BOMBARD:

MUN:

BOMBARD:

MUN:

BOMBARD:

MUN:

BOMBARD:

MUN:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | December 11, 2019
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

Herb Santos for the record. Then | think that that's something that we should really
think about as a commission if we're trying to help the rurals to basically try to put more
money in this funding for these grants. | don't know where it comes from, but | would
ask that we sort of look at our budget for next year. See if we can't up more funds
because if there are programs, or destinations that need our help, we need to make
sure we do everything we can to help them to get travelers there.

Yes, | agree.

Thank you. Kate Marshall, just saying for the record. Shari, do you want to talk a littie
bit about how the funding has gone down since the recession. What kind of funding we
had for grants before the recession and what we have now, because this really is an
issue Herb and if the Board would be supportive of advocating before various legislative
members, that that number at least needs to get back to where it was? If you want to

give us an overview of that Shari, you did—you gave me that, was it yesterday.

I did. It was $2 million, | believe this is correct and Christian might know better. Was $2
million prior to the recession?

524,

$2.4 million prior to the recession and now it's $1.65 million, so that's almost $800 and
some thousand of a cut. So, yeah, there's definitely a huge difference between pre-
recession and now.

Shari, Pam Robinson, that's for both—that's not per cycle, that's a total for—

That's the full fiscal year.

Cynthia Mun for the record. So, this is sort of related to what's been asked, but |
needed to understand. There's like a $1 point million for the whole year.

51.65 million, yes.
And then we just granted $300,000 or so of the new fiscal year?

No, this is the rest of this fiscal year. This is the second cycle, so first cycle was already
awarded to $1.3 million.

Ali right. Does that mean that there aren't any more funds left?
Correct, yes.
Okay. Now, as part of that going forward, | don't get a very good sense of how things

are prioritized and it would be really helpful for me to understand like, for you guys to
kind of say, these are the things that are prioritized and that's why we fund these first.

8



BOMBARD:

MUN:

BOMBARD:

MUN:

BOMBARD:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | December 11, 2019
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

Okay.

I don't have any idea as to why something gets funded and others don't. | just see
numbers that are slightly less than what's requested. But it isn't very clear to me, so for
me to go through and say, "Okay, this looks good. It sounds great. It's lots of
information,” but | don't know how to judge that information.

And the other part is, it would be helpful for me to—because there is a lot of marketing
information in here, but | don't have a very good sense of where the strategy is for the
region, or for Nevada as a whole and how these things kind of work into it.

Okay.

What would be really helpful would be overarching information. So, that when | look at
it, | go, "Oh, yeah, | know where this fits in. | know where that fits in." It could kind of
help me put them into buckets for myself to say, "Oh, yes. ‘And that's why we need this
because here are the results that we're looking for."

Okay, and so that's a kind of a multi-pronged answer here. | would say to start with, |
think the most important thing what | can send you, or they're actually online, is the
Rural Marketing Grant Guidelines)and they very specifically lay out what is considered
and . what would be a higher priority than others. One of those is multi-jurisdictional.
That's why you see a lot of times the territories are getting more money than other
organizations because they are affecting multipi'e organizations within their territory.
“They take precedents. New events, those are some things that are prioritized.

So, that's actually'listed 'within the grant guidelines and when I'm reviewing these, |
actually divide.all of them up based on categories. So, all the new events go here; the
new websites go here. Everything is organized that way so that | can compare them
apples-to-apples and then | go through and read every single line, every single sentence
and we're talking five, 600 pages worth of applications here because each one is
typically four to five pages long. | mark all of for those up that way, but it's definitely in
the grant guidelines which I think would be super helpful for you to have.

As far.as when we're talking about marketing strategies and things like that, so you
have—like, we were talking earlier, for example, Fallon, Fallon has a dedicated tourism
person. Fallon has all of these other things that say, Austin doesn't have, or Goldfield.
Goldfield has volunteers that have full-time jobs that are doing this on the side, that we
are trying to help, that are getting help from the territories. But what they have is so
limited and they do talk about, well, we want to do this. We want to do that, but it's not
like they have a marketing person in there explaining to them that they need to have a
strategy this way or those sorts of things. We try to help them as best we can, That's
why | attend all of the territory meetings. That's why we have the territories in the first
place, is to offer that support. But some of these people out here, they really are going
for it with nothing, but what we can help them with.

S



MUN:

BOMBARD:

MUN:

BOMEBARD:

MUN:

NEBESKY:

MUN:

BOMBARD:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | December 11, 2019
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

So, it's definitely a struggle out there, especially in places like Austin, Goldfield, Jarbidge.
i mean, these teeny, tiny places that are doing the best they can. Does that kind of help
a little bit?

Yes, it does. | guess it's in those areas that | wish we could do something for them. And
| haven't seen like, what we can do in terms of having more dollars, or having a person,
you know, it just—because | see in here, like | said before, they're requests for website
updates and there was one region that didn't get an update in like, several years.

Yeah.

Which was like, oh, my gosh. They've been waiting for this, or that they're looking for
someone to do Word Press update, which | thought would be easier to do, but they
don't have anyone. I'm going, there's such a discrepancy.

And they don't. That's why a lot of times it is hiring contractors. We don't have the
bandwidth to go out there and build them a website or anything like that. We just don't
have the people or the capacity and so, that's one thing that the grant program can help
them with is, they can hire someone to come and help them do that. And yes, we
could—someone could train them in Word Press and that sort of thing, but again, it's a
time issue. When you have one person who has a full-time job; who is doing this on the
side thinking of updating a website and trying to find content for it is absolutely
overwhelming for some of these communities. So, it'is a lot. And we work, | mean, 28
Nevada towns in the last three months, so the outreach is there, but we can only do so
much.

No, | agree with you. | mean, you guys are very stretched, and | mean, maybe that goes
back to what Lt. Governor was saying is that maybe there should be a request for more
budget.

For the record, Brenda Nebesky. It's very difficult for us to mandate what each
community wants to execute in terms of marketing and | think even in some
communities they wouldn't want us to, but we certainly can work to improve the
reporting and are constantly doing that. Kind of reviewing what Shari sees on the
backend; this report just represents what is pulled from our database and it's a lot of
information. But we talked to the Lt. Governor earlier in the week about maybe
weighting the scoring or developing some sort of rubric that you'd see in the report that
would help you understand it. We're also completely open to, if you'd like to sit with
Shari and she can walk you through the process so there's a better understanding for
any of you. We're totally open to that.

| might take you up on that.

Absolutely, | would be thrilled to, actually. | mean, that goes for anyone who is
interested in seeing how this process works. | would be happy to sit down. You look at

10



MUN:

BOMBARD:

CARANOQ:

BOMBARD:

SANTOS:

BOMBARD:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | December 11, 2019
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

the folders, see how the other reimbursements works. Look at the reporting back and
what they complete and the full applications. | mean, there's a lot for sure, but it's very
interesting and when you see what they are doing with so little, they're amazing.

No, | commend you and | know this is a lot of work and | know you guys are very
stretched and you do a wonderful job. I'm just amazed and | just wanted to get a better
understanding.

Right and | appreciate that and the more that you understand, the more that it helps us
too. And there's also lots of comments and suggestions that we can take from you to
improve the process too, so we appreciate the feedback as well. For sure.

Cindy Caranao for the record. You know, one of the ways that I've come to understand
what the territories are doing is going to the Rural Roundup. And you get out there and
you talk to these people and they're mostly voiunteers, which blows my mind, that
they're doing this for their community and for their storefronts and their restaurants.
You go to the Rural Roundug and you start talking to them and you go to the seminars
with them and you really understand that they're there to [earn from the Commission
on Tourism, and are so grateful for the seminars that are presented and just the
expertise that Travel Nevada gives them. | suggest we all go to the Rural Roundup at
least five times [laughter].

Well, it's the 30th anniversary this year, and it's April 8th through 10th in Virginia City if
anyone wants to come. Please do.

Herb Santos for the record. And, you know, we're lucky that we have your guys'
expertise in going through all those things. | remember in prior meetings, probably a
few years ago, | had asked whether or not, since we have a lot of the same folks that are
submitting applications, whether we get any follow-up of-here’s our project, you guys
gave us money and here is what we figured out was the return on the investment of this
project. I'm assuming that they do provide that information to you guys. You guys
incorporate that into your decision-making process when determining whether to fund
future funds to them?

Absolutely. When they complete the evaluation, which they have to do before they get
that final reimbursement, so we read those again line-by-line and go through them. But
besides that, we have that data and that information. But again, these people, they're
very excited about their projects, so | do get emails and, "Oh, we finished this."

There's an email this morning from Dayton, who want me to take a look at their website
before it goes live because they're so thrilled that they were able to complete it. So,
that sort of relationship and feedback is happening on a daily basis. I'm always getting
emails and maybe | need to include those, include you all in those. Mayhe that would
be a good idea because we get thank you cards, and we get emails talking about their
projects and all those sorts of things.

11



MARSHALL:

BOMBARD:

MARSHALL:

BOMBARD:

MWevada Commission on Tourism | December 11, 2019
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

Maybe it would be good to kind of either forward those to you, or save all of them up
and give them to you in a meeting, or include them in backup somehow so you can kind
of see boots on the ground, you know, how these people are completing these and
what the kind of outcomes are and how appreciative and thankful they are.

Thank you, Shari. | think one of the things that we're going to talk about, that you'll
then be able to come back to the Board is, in order to make an argument for budgetary
purposes, right, to be able to show what was funded and what was accomplished, the
economic results of that. And then what wasn't funded, and the opportunity lost, right.
And how much it can be leveraged.

That's the kind of presentation you will want to make in front of the legislature and
make before this Board, first, so that they can give you input and things so that you can
go back to the legislature and say, you know, room taxes are up this much can we get
the share that we, you know, not even asking for inflation, just the share that we used
to get? These Board members can help you. But we can talk offline about the best way
to formulate that discussion and then, so that you can present to the Board. | don't
know if Board members realize, but staff will have to submit their budget to the
Governor's office in March. it's very early this time around, so that will happen maybe
the next quarterly meeting.

Yeah.

Yeah, that seems a little soon. Yeah, well, Merry Christmas. [Laughter] Okay, so was
there anything that you wanted to highlight then of a grant that you're giving out that
you thought...

My favorite, and it's funny because it's only a teeny, tiny amount and | think it's under
Nevada Silver Trails because it's for the Goldwell Open Air Museum. He is the
gentleman-and | can never pronounce his last name, Szukalski, the artist. The one that
did the majority of the artwork out at Goldwell. Let me find it really quick because | did
describe it much more succinctly than | am currently doing in my comments. Let me
find it here. Goldwell Open Air Museum, Albert Szukalski's America. An original
theatrical work telling the story of the Belgium artist who created much of the art at
Goldwell Open Air Museum in Rhyolite.

This project coincides with a 50-year retrospect of his work at the Verbeke Foundation
in Belgium, They're going to be doing something at the same time as someone in
Belgium is going to be doing something and there's Facebook Live and they're doing all
of these things. They're doing a production through Ghost Lite Productions, which is a
theater company out of Elko and they're creating a play based on it. It's this whole
amazing thing and it's taking into consideration places from Belgium. Oh, the page
would help, 14,

12



MARSHALL:

ESTIPONA:

MARSHALL:

NEBESKY:

MARSHALL:

ROBINSON:

KROLICKI:

MARSHALL:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | December 11, 2019
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

It's a teeny, tiny amount. It's only 93,000, but that's the one I'm the most excited about.
It's unique. It's interesting. It's taking into consideration some place far across the
pond. That's my favorite.

Thank you. That's fun. All right, so are there any more questions. Yes. Did you have a
question?

Edward Estipona for the record. | think this is maybe my fourth board meeting at this
point and | think one of the challenges is there isn't like an onboarding a board member,
50 you get thrown into the water and you're like;'l have no idea what I'm doing and I'm
just going to stay quiet here until 1 figure out:what I'm going to do. So, that's one. And |
think the other thing relating to the grants-and | know this from my experience from the
Arts Council is, when you actually service as a chair on these granting committees, you
really start to really understand the whole process and what goes into it. And then, you
really want to hug the staff really hard because they did'such a tremendous job. And so
I think that's part of the challenges.

| think Pam can recognize this because she served on that Board as a chair, but | think
that's something that | know at the Arts Council, we cycle out. Everybody has to serve
on that just so they have a full understanding and grasp for it, at least once at some
paint.

That's:a.very good point.. And Brenda, did you want:to talk about how you're going to
create a new member manual and what we're doing with the new members, the two
new members that we have just gotten?

For the.record, Brenda Nebesky.. We just had this discussion because | am aware,
there's no formal process.for onboarding and there should be. So, beyond just some
documents you could look at to familiarize yourself with the process, | think staff time is
really important.~. And, of course, that's based on the individual, but for instance,
yesterday, | did spend some time on the phone with Julie and offered up that staff time
and familjarization with what it is we do programmatically, budgetarily, operationally in
any context. | And, yes, it is missing. It's absolutely missing, and | think having each
commissioner be comfortable from the first meeting is a priority.

Okay,.then, thank you for the comment. | think that's important. If we have no other
guestions, concerns, thoughts, do we have a motion?

| will make that motion. | propose that the Nevada Commission on Tourism approves
the expenditure of $301,575 for the FY20 Second Cycle Rural Marketing Grants to the
recipients as outlined in the staff recommendation.

I'Hl second.

Thank you. We have a motion and a second. Do we have any discussion?

13



WINDBIGLER:

MARSHALL:

WINDBIGLER:

MARSHALL:

WINDBIGLER:

MARSHALL:

WINDBIGLER:

MARSHALL:

GROUP:

MARSHALL:

BOMBARD:

MARSHALL:

BOMEBARD:

ROBINSON:

BOMBARD:

MARSHALL:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | December 11, 2019
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

Madam Chair?

Yes.

It's Kristin. | just wanted to point out, | lead one of the rural organizations who is the
recipient of one of these grants and | just wanted to say how much we appreciate it and
we appreciate Shari, and that | should probably recuse myself on voting for anything.
For the grants?

Yeah.

Yeah, that sounds fine, but your input is still very important.

| am happy to provide it.

Yes, all right. Okay, so all those in favor?

Aye.

All right, any opposed and one abstained, well, motion passes. Tharnk you.

Thank you very much and now | am off to a Reno-Tahoe Territory meeting, so | will see
you next time. Thank you so much.

Actually, Shari, please tell the Board and me how many places you went to.

| was so proud of this. [ actually have it listed in case you asked because | have, like,
serious Nevada credibility right now. [Laughter] Stateline, Incline Village Crystal Bay,
which | counted as one, Las Vegas, Virginia City, Austin, Kingston, Tonopah, Hawthorne,
Luning, Rachel, Hiko, Alamg, Caliente, Pioche, Crystal, the one by Pahrump, Beatty,
Rhyolite, Amargosa, Goldfield, Battle Mountain, Elko, Tuscarora, Jarbidge, Wells,
Lamoille, Jiggs, Ely and McGill. Thank you.

Right [laughs]. | know, it was amazing. Nevada is incredible and anybody who gets a
chance to go to Jarbidge, take it. It was preity gorgeous. So, like population of 18
during the winter and a dirt road into town.

I think we should have a Commission meeting there.

Right. They have the space, not the—

Did you hear that Brenda? There's a request to meet in Jarbidge.

14



BOMBARD:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | December 11, 2019
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

Yes. | had to call my husband fram a landline because there's no cell service. | had to
pick up a real phone and call him, which was bizarre. It's been years since | did that
[laughter]. Okay, well, thank you very much.

Preview of New TravelNevada.biz Website

MARSHALL:

DRYSDALE:

All right. Okay, moving on to Agenda Item Number F, Preview of the New Travel Nevada
Website.

Hi, for the record, Bethany Drysdale, Chief Communications Officer. Websites are, of
course, a tool for communication, so | just wanted to walk you through very briefly an
update that we've made to TravelNevada.biz.

Okay, so this is our website design for our industry; for our partners throughout the
state. This is their source for tools for what they do, and we'll walk through that in just a
little bit. We knew that we needed to make it more streamlined. It was getting a little
clunky; it was getting a little dated. Se, this is just an update of what we had before.
Worked with our partner D4 and they've been fantastic on a lot of these little projects
and big projects.:

We launched this In conjunction with the Governor's Global Tourism Summit. This is a
then and now. We went from this.to this. | should say what you're seeing on the left
here, “Tourism Means More”, is the big header here there. “Tourism Means More” is
our legisiative and public affairs program andiit really didn't belong on the industry site,
so we have moved that off and'there is a standalone TourismMeansMore.com and that

Is for, again, public affairs, legislative programs to educate legislators and the public on

the ‘value of tourism_and economic impact of tourism. This is a very big business

industry and it should be taken as such. But it didn't belong on .biz., .biz is a tool for our

partners.

Now, you'll see these very quick buttons. Easy access to what people need when they're
looking for information from us. Logos and assets, that's a portal to our photos, videos,
logos, brand guidelines, everything. Grants, so this is the easy access to all the grant
information. Research and reports, there's a lot there and if you ever have some spare
time and want to see all the economic impact and rural impact and visitor profile, it's all
there:-And then, of course, our calendar of events.

This is a screenshot, just as a dropdown that you'll find throughout the site. Again,
everything about our agency, our Commission, what we do as a state agency is in this
site. And then, again, talking about the grants, this is what we used to see on the site,
and this is what we see now. So, it's just been a very cleaned up version of what we had
before.

Ultimately, because this is for our partners, we are trying to serve them, we want to
make sure that we're actually doing that. So, we have included just a little bit of
feedback from some of our partners around the state. We want them to use this. This

15



SANTOS:

DRYSDALE:

ESTIPONA:

NEBESKY:

MARSHALL:

DRYSDALE:

Agency Reports

MARSHALL:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | December 11, 2019
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

is not put up here to look pretty. We want it to really be useful, and so we're finding it is
useful. We welcome continuous feedback. We want this to really be a useful resource.
So, you'll see some of the feedback from partners that use it.

And that's it. Very short and sweet, but | just wanted to make sure that everybody
knows that we have this. It's available. It is a resource and if there's any guestions or
ways that we can improve on it, we're always open to that feedback.

Herb Santos for the record. There's sort of a new issue that's coming up with websites
now. That's whether or not they're ADA compliant. Do you know, is this ADA
compliant? If a website is ADA compliant, there'll be a little button at the bottom, or
somewhere, will have like a handicap sign and you push that. It allows a person with
vision or hearing issues to be able to access and since we're a state agency, I'm
wondering if this is ADA compliant and if not, maybe we should talk to the website folks
about that.

Bethany Drysdale for the record.” ADA compliance is a foremost goal, actually not a goal,
| mean, it's required. So, yes, we do make sure that things are built with ADA
compliance in mind. | would have to defer to the designers on where that's built in and
how, but we are very aware of the requirement for that and make sure that our
websites are built with that foremost in mind.

Edward Estipona for the record. Just so you know, Herb, because we build sites at my
company and one of the challenges we're having is they're still trying to workout what
level of compliance that they want to create for the state. And so, there are challenges

‘right now to head down a direction and spend money and then realize, "Oh, we're not

covering that part; but we want to cover this part." So, we have to work that out as a
state to figure out what's that level first. Otherwise, you're spending marketing dollars
that may go down the drain.

For the record, Brenda Nebesky. | just want to interject and say that TravelNevada.biz is
the logical home for marketing effectiveness with the grant program and it has been in
the past, I know, for tourism, the “Tourism Means More” campaign. We had a page in
which we listed within each territory how many grants had been awarded. Some
information about the wins and we need to bring that back so we have more
information there about what we're doing related to the grant program.

Thank you. Any more questions. That was lovely.

Thank you.

All right, so let's see where | am now. Agency Reports, Agenda Item Number G.

16



NEBESKY:

MARSHALL:

NEBESKY:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | December 11, 2019
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

For the record, Brenda Nebesky. We always include our quarterly report from the
Division of Tourism and so, this is the place where you get to ask me any questions
related to any of that. | also wanted to say that we had another conversation with the
Lt. Governor about interim communication from our office related to some of the
highlights. | know a former director used to do a 10-point communication in between
Commission meetings, and | think that is also something we should resume.

We try to make the quarterly report as digestible as possible, but it is a lot to absorb and
I think we'd like to communicate with you in between.

Do you want to give us an executive summary of the report?

Oh, gosh, okay. Let me sort of run through, let me find it first of all. Here we go. So, we
did an asset capture in the north_of the state with our creative agency, BVK. We have
captured video and put together, as you know, a commercial that had some locations in
the south. So, we're doing the same in the north and we'll have a new commercial spot
ready for the summer.

Let's see, we are re-platforming our TravelNevada.com, so that's sort of in process. As
you know, “Storm Area 51" was a hot topic in September and so we tried to kind of spin
that potentially negative event into something positive by reaching out to tourism
partners within the Silver Trails area and developed 51 other things to do besides stand
around in Rachel and wait for nothing to happen. So, that was very successful and an
integrated effort between marketing and the PR teams.

Social media, we always support the Great Reno Balloon Race with an online contest,
and we get really good participation as you can see. We had over 800 photo entries and
then we award balloon rides for the following year to the winner.

The Sales and Industry Partners team is always busy, and they participated in some sales
missions in cooperation with the LVCVA. They went to the United Kingdom on a sales
mission. They also participated in Brand USA's Travel Week in London, which is a kind of
a new hybrid trade show and educational conference hosted by Brand USA. They also
went on a sales mission to Mexico.

Let's see, what else is kind of highlights—| wasn't prepared to do this as you can
probably tell. Nevada Magozine, of course, you know, shouldn't fail to mention that
they, of course, are always publishing exceptional content. And the 42™ Annual “Great
Nevada Picture Hunt,” which also collects some just amazing assets for the magazine
and for us to use, was conducted in a prior quarter.

Also, in the report is the budget update and we've been providing you with this kind of
style of budget summary and really what this is intended to do is just demonstrate how
we're tracking related to prior fiscal years in these budget categories and the only one
that is, fluctuates more than others and is a little harder to anticipate is the training
category, Category 30, because that is so dependent on new positions, unfilled

17



MARSHALL:

KROLICKI:

MARSHALL:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | December 11, 2019
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

positions, new training offerings from the state, et cetera. | think that is all unless you
have any questions for me.

Thank you. Are there any questions. Brian?

Thank you, Madam Chair. Good morning. You know, I'm not sure to whom I'm
addressing this, and this is not a criticism it's just revisiting a conversation we've had
extensively a year ago. The international, you know, | see what you've all been doing,
and | know we're all stretched to the limit. But I'd still like to see more background.

| think it's important given the international tourists to Nevada that we've got some
numbers on the front page. I'm not asking to have it broken down for this meeting, but
just going forward. Again, Madam Chair, we talked about it a year ago. Is there some
way we can get behind the scenes?. You know, we have a new Indian rep, for example,
that's talked about, but rather than just saying what we've done and where we've
visited and who we've connected with, is there just some more substance. What are
the results of what we're doing?. How are the new, you know, in country reps serving
us?

We went through massive RFPs a year ago. They've had a chance to perform. How are
they doing? Again, that's _one of my personal biases in all of this. Brenda,
congratulations, you're on the Brand USA Board. Those kind of things, so we have
international insights. ' If 25 percent of our tourism, at least to Southern Nevada is going
to be composed of international visitors, where are we? You know, has it increased?

‘Obviously, there are larger things at play here for the United States and the

international tourism market, | get that, but | think those are all important things to talk
about, at least regularly at the Governor's Conference when we've often had our
quarterly meeting, we've had reports. We've touched these people. They speak at
lunch, but I'm just feeling, you know, for something that's so terribly important, this
Commission is just not touching that.

Again, | don't want that to be a negative. 1| just hope to learn more. Madam Chair, a
respectful suggestion, maybe during next quarterly meeting, we break this out a little bit
more so we really get a handle on how our new reps doing; how our money's being well
spent; the bang for the buck; the things that are a problem that are either inside Nevada
and our teams, or we're working with LVCVA, for example, or our friends in Reno, or,
you know, Brand USA, how are they doing. What are their metrics, but tourism is just 50
vital. The international market is the growth area potentially for all of this and | just
think it's important for us as fiduciaries of our tourism portfolio to really have a handle
on what's going on. Thank you.

Thank you, Brian. And we have discussed this last week with Brenda, also about | think
what the staff would like from the Board is advocacy in the community and strategic
guidance. | think we talked about in order to get some strategic guidance from the
Board, presenting the Board with what the picture looks like. And so, if you want to do

18



NEBESKY:

KROLICKI:

MARSHALL:

SPEAKER:

NEBESKY:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | December 11, 2019
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

international next quarterly meeting, that, | think would be good if the Board is
interested in that. Is that okay? Then we can do a breakdown of that, you know, where
we are; where we were at; where we hope to go type thing. Because that would really
help, i think with the strategic guidance you're looking for from us.

S0, guys, what you should know is that the staff asked me if they could have a meeting
proactively, so they came to me and said, "Can we meet with you and talk to you about
how we might be able to improve what, yvou know, what we're getting from the Board;
what we're giving ta the Board; and do this better." And | was very impressed that they
sought me out for that and you're hearing Brenda come up with some of these ideas
and you heard Shari talk about some of the rubric things. So, Brenda, if you want to
think about what you would like to present, right, to break apart because it is a lot of
information, we can do that.

Absolutely. Brenda Nebesky for the record. We'd be happy in March to have Director
Passink focus on what's ahead; some of the campaigns and market; what the challenges
are; what the opportunities are; and, into our budget planning for next fiscal year that
would be entirely appropriate in'March.

We could also have ouriresearch manager, Mr. Shulz give you some updates on statistics
and where we sit related to each market. Be happy to do that.

Governor. Marshall, thank you so much. | think the spirit of cooperation is great. |

understand we've got acting capacities; new.responsibilities for some of our familiar

faces, so | totally get it. " But again, it's beenra year and it's something, at least
personally, 1 think as a Board, 50,1'm happy to do it privately, but if it's at your pleasure
Madam.Chair’ and the Commission to touch this at least, you know, once a year, or
break it out more on a quarterly basis, | just think that is terribly important for what we
do-and the partners with whom we work because we're trying to get these folks out into
rural Nevada. lmean, it's the Germans who were exploring Lincoln County, so, just how
are we doing. So,thank you.

Absolutely agreed. | appreciate the comment. QOkay, any other comments? In order to
get strategic guidance from the Board, we will be having the staff make presentations to
the Board/and then asking the Board for guidance and advocacy on certain parts, right,
so that/it's much more interactive. Okay, anything else on this agenda item. In Vegas.
No, okay, thank you.

Oh, it's 10:00. Let's see where we are. We are at the interviews, right? We're not at
the interviews?

Not quite yet.

Brenda Nebesky for the record. | believe we still need to have item G3, which is Stacey
Montooth's presentation.

19



MARSHALL:

NEBESKY:

MARSHALL:

MONTOOTH:

DELONE:

MONTOOTH:

Mevada Commission on Tourism | December 11, 2019
Department of Tourism & Cultural affairs

Okay, | checked the wrong thing. Okay. So, we did the Chair report. Did we do the
quarterly staff update?

Yes, we did.
We did that. Okay. We did the budget update. Okay. Stacey. Hey, hi. Come on up.

Stacey Montooth, Executive Director of the Nevada Indian Commission for the record.
Good morning. Good morning, Lt. Governor, Madam Chair, distinguished panel. Good
morning Las Vegas. | have two important exciting bits of information to share with you
about the Nevada Indian Commission and the Stewart Indian School.

First, a little housekeeping. | wanted to alert-you all that this week, | will be attending
my first meeting regarding the restoration of the Stewart Indian School auditorium. My
predecessor had set into motion the restoration of a 300-seat building on the Stewart
Indian School campus after our friends at the Carson City Cultural Authority shared with
us information about the lack of a multi-use facility in this area. Again, 300-seats, it's
two-story, two-level building, not quite two stories.

If restored, could service in the capacity of not just live performances, community
performances, youth performances, but it would be marvelous to work in conjunction
with the Stewart Indian School Cultural Center and Museum, which leads me into my
second announcement.

Five days and we are opening the Stewart Indian School Cultural Center and Museum to
the public. | can tell you that the doors aren't painted yet, but we are opening on
Monday, 3:00 o'clock. We are going to welcome the students, the alumni, the families,
the folks that have direct ties to the campus whaose stories, experiences that we are
going to tell in the most unigque, most authentic means with that facility. What
guestions can | answer?

Is your school open for special events at all?

well, right now, we have a couple of options for special events, or special groups. We
have the walking tour, which is open seven days a week, 24-hours a day. It's cell phone
guided.” In the four months that I've been with the Nevada Indian Commission, we've
probably hosted at least 12 groups and when | say groups, | would say five or more. We
had two coach buses come in with nearly 75 people at one time. We will be continuing
that service which includes, again, the campus tour, which can be either done with the
cell phone or personally guided. |'ve done several presentations on the history of the
Stewart Indian School. That takes place at the campus and | travel.

I've gone to the University of Nevada, I've gone to BLM, because we're just off of
November, which is Native American Heritage month, | think maybe the calls for those
presentations will slow down a bit. But again, if we have the auditorium there, that
coupled with the newly released Stewart Indian School documentary, which | hape you

20



SANTOS:

MONTOOTH:

SANTOS:

MONTQOTH:

SANTOS:

KROLICKI:

SANTOS:

MONTOOTH:

CARANO:

MONTOOTH:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | December 11, 2019
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

all saw on PBS Reno on November 11', the auditorium not only could serve for live
performances, but it could be a movie theater as well. Sure.

Herb Santos for the record. s the auditorium where the basketball court was?

No, sir. There are actually two other distinct buildings that, one, we call the new gym,
which is operational, it's actually very hard to schedule. The scheduling for that building
is done through the Nevada Indian Commission. [t includes everything from weekend
tournaments for youth to post ROTC, they use it for practices. It's also the site of
parties, family events.

The old gym which most of our alumni have the most fond memories, it is looking to be
restored. | believe it was two sessions ago, the legisfature provided funding for a new
roof, 50 from an architectural standpoint, the building is preserved from the top, but it's
not habitable at this point.

Got you, so if | remember correctly back in the 70s when | played CYO basketball, it had
the rubber floor?

Um-hmm, yes, sir.

So, they can preserve the rubber floor, because that’s the only rubber floor | ever played
basketball on.

Did it help you?
| was able to sky! One inch. It was amazing.

I'llshave to check into the rubber floor, and | don’t want to compare ages, but I'm a
proud alum of Churchill County High School, Class of ‘84, and we played at Reed High
School, Reed High School used to have a rubber floor as well. May | answer any other
questions?

Stacey, Cindy Carano. I’'ve been to a dinner within the last three years out at the school,
and so as far as Mr. DeLone’s question, | believe that you do have areas for what | would
call special events, that would be some sort of occasion to actually rent out and cater an
event there, and have indoor/outdoor, and then also access the tours.

I'm speculating, but | believe the event you might be referring to would be the annual
American Indian Achievement Awards. That event was held, | believe two Novembers
ago, and it was in the old gym, which | think Board Member Santos might be referring.

It was the site of my predecessor's going-away party, if you all were there, so it is a
gymnasium. It used to be the home of the Carson City, or | think now it’s called the
Nevada Day Pow-Wow. It's built to be a gym, but it also has cross-purposes and, again,
it could be used to cater an event.

21



KROLICKI:
MARSHALL:

KROLICKI:

MONTOOTH:
KROLICKI:

MONTOOTH:

Upcoming Meetings

MARSHALL:

NEBESKY:

PAZINA:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | December 11, 2019
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

May | just follow up with more information about the first look, it's beyond a soft
opening for our cultural center. We are hoping that any state employee who is
interested-and we were asking for help to come to the museum next week to help us,
just as a soft opening, work the kinks out.

we'll have a special reception for state employees, all of our partners, on Tuesday, same
hours between three and six. We would love to have you all there.

And then we'll have typical cultural center museum hours on Wednesday, Thursday and
Friday of next week, 10:00 to 5:00 p.m. again, we would love to have you come out, tell
your friends, but we've got a commitment from the Tourism staff to help us with the
massive roll-out that we'll have in May. Thank you for your time,

Madam Chair, just before Stacey runs away, Brian Krolicki for the record.
Yeah.

You know Sherry Rupert is iconic... I'm speaking to two different people, but Sherry’s
shoes are difficult to fill, but what you’ve done has been extraordinary. My wife sits on
the Indian Commission, and she’s one of your biggest fans. So, | just want to say you've
just done an extraordinary job, and you've got a lot of people singing your praise, but
Jjust well done.

Oh, that’s so nice of you to say.
| just wanted everyone to hear that, people who see you every day.

You're absolutely right, huge shoes to fill. Honestly, three days a week | feel like
roadkill. Two days a week, | think okay, we're getting somewhere. | think my timing is
really good. Sherry did a lot of heavy lifting, and all of it with guidance from the Tourism
Commission. So, thank you. Thank you all.

Thank you, Stacey. So, H, upcoming meetings. Brenda.

For the record, Brenda Nebesky. In your packets are just starting suggestions for
Commission Meeting dates in the coming calendar year. We just want to garner your
input as to if there are any immediate conflicts, please let us know. | spoke to
Commissioner Pazina yesterday, and she does have one.

Yes, thank you. This is Julie Pazina for the record. December 8% through the 10" is a

huge industry meeting, the International Association of Exhibitions and Events in
Louisville. 50, December 9*" would be a conflict.

22



NEBESKY:

MARSHALL:

PAZINA:

MARSHALL:

NEBESKY:

KROLICKI:

NEBESKY:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | December 11, 2019
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

Thank you, we'll take that into advisement and see if there isn't a better day in
December. Anything else from the Commission?

Guys if you don’t have your schedule right with you now, you can always email Brenda,
especially as we get closer, if that sounds good. | don’t know my schedule on December
9t but I'm very impressed with Julie.

I try, Madam Chair.
I don’t know if I'm impressed or scared. Anyway 50...

Okay, if you could look at your schedules; if you don’t have them now, and haven't had
a chance to review it, just please get back to us and suggest any alternates. Thank you.

Madam Chair, I'm sorry to be chatty, Krolicki, just a question. | know it's difficult on
staff to combine the Governor’s Conference with that last quarter meeting, but that’s
been a tradition, whether it's good or bad, this year we chose not to, and probably
spared some high blood pressure in all those to have these things separate.

But if there is a conflict,I'm just wondering, Is it the new policy going forward that we're
not going to try to combine.those meetings.for all the right reasons, or is it still a
possibility? But you know for. those Commissioners wanting to go to the Governor’s
Conference, especially if there's travel involved to get a two-for if you will. [ still think
from our standpoint that might be'a good thing, but| understand from your world, it's
difficult. Are there any thoughts about potentially putting that last meeting back
together with the Governor's Summit? Do we have dates for the Summit next year yet?
Thank you.

Brenda Nebesky. | don’t think we have any objection to combining them. This year we
have the interview process to consider, so that became a little cumbersome to have an
entire day attached to the conference. But certainly, we can consider that. | know it
worked well.in the past.

Interviews for the Director of DTCA

MARSHALL:

ROBINSON:

Anything else? All right, thank you. Okay, so what we're doing here is moving onto
Agenda item Number I. We're taking a break because we're having people come in for
interviews, and they will come in beginning at noon. And so, it is 10:08 now. You have
two hours for second breakfast, third breakfast, and lunch. if you could be back here at
noon. | think it's going to be a long afternoon, so you know get your sustenance and
exercise and all that in.

Can you just walk through what the process will be when we return? That would be
really helpful, thank you.

23



WILSON:

SANTOS:

WILSON:

MARSHALL:

RECESS

MARSHALL:

WILSON:

MARSHALL:

DYKES:

MARSHALL:

DYKES:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | December 11, 2019
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

Yeah, Kate Wilson for the record. | was also going to say if we could actually have
members back, probably closer to 11:45 just to make sure everyone is in their seat and
ready to go, because the first interview begins at noon.

What you guys have in front of you, there should be a packet of information about each
of the applicants. It will have a resume of the applicant, and as in the emails that | sent
over before, this time we did something a little bit different. We did an action plan and
a writing sample for each of the applicants. Each of those are in the packets as well.
Some additional information that you'll have is'the job posting, just to refresh your
memory, feel free to take these to lunch and sort of read over them to make sure you're
familiarized. The prompt for the action plan and the writing assignment, so you make
sure you know what these people were asked to provide.

You will have all the questions in front of you. You will have an opportunity to read
through, take your own notes, make your own follow up guestions, but the main
questions will be asked by the Lieutenant Governor.

We have five applicants today; we have about 45 to 50 minutes for each interview.

Herb Santos for the record. For any of the folks that applied the first time, are they out?
None of them decided to reapply for the second round. Technically, one person did, but
it was after the application had been closed, and so HR personnel said that since they
didn’t follow the protocol, that they could not be included.

Okay, so I'm going to take a temporary recess then, if you could be back by 11:45. Any

issues with how we're running the process? Everybody okay? All right. Okay, so | will
see you at 11:45. Thanks guys.

We're back from the break. All right.
Lisutenant Governor, do you want to call roll?

Yeah, that's what | was going to say. Did you want to call roll, just to make sure
everyone is here please?

Thank you. Dee Dykes for the record. This is the afternoon roll call, Lieutenant
Governar Marshall?

Here.

Commissioner Carano?

24



CARANO:

DYKES:

DELONE:

DYKES:

SANTOS:

DYKES:

PAZINA:

DYKES:

KROLICKI:

DYKES:

MUN:

DYKES:

ROBINSON:

DYKES:

WINDBIGLER:

DYKES:

ESTIPONA:

DYKES:

STOLDAL:

DYKES:

MARSHALL:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | December 11, 2019

Present.

Commissioner DeLone?

Present.

Commissioner Hill? Commissioner Santos?

Here.

Commissioner Pazina?

Here.

Commissioner Vaswani? Commissioner Krolicki?

Present.

Commissioner Mun?

Here.

Commissioner Robinson?

Here.

And Commissioner.Windbigler.

Present.

Commissioner Estipona?

Here.

Commissioner Arnold? Commissioner Stoldal?

Here.

We have a quorum.

Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

Thank you. All right, guys, so | think we talked about befare we went on the break, the
process would be that you have a series of questions in front of you. So that it’s a little
less awkward, | will read the guestions. But I'm really letting you guys take the
interviews, because then | will take your recommendations to the Governor. | will let

you ask the follow up, what have you.

25



WEBSTER:

MARSHALL:

WEBSTER:

MARSHALL:

WEBSTER:

WILSON:

ROBINSON:

MARSHALL:

SANTOS:

MARSHALL:

SANTOS:

MARSHALL:

SANTOS:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | December 11, 2019
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

If you're dialing in on the phone, please mute your call, thank you. This is Ron Webster
for the record, technical AV.

Okay. So, | will probably ask each candidate if they wanted to make an introduction for
themselves, okay? And then | will ask them questions, and let you guys do follow ups,
they’ll have a total of 45 minutes, that doesn’t mean you have to soak up the whole 45
minutes. Herb don't make anyone cry. Okay. And we'll do it.

Any questions about how we're doing this process? You have the questions, you have
the resumes, you have the writing samples. Anything? You have the statute it says
what the person is supposed to do. Okay, ali right, so did you want to call in the first

person? All right, thanks.

Lieutenant Governor, I'm going to mute the audio call, somebody has their phone on
hold, so | don’t think there’s anybody from the Commission on the phone.

Yes, no worries.

Yes, they'll still be able to hear, we just can’t hear their audio.

Kate Wilson for the record. The notes packet that | gave you has the order of
applicants; the name is at the top. That is the order in which you guys will be doing the
interviews, just for clarification.

Kate, do we have — are their times certain so we [inaudible]...

There are no Board Members on the phone. We don’t have public comment during the
interviews that | know of.

Oh, that's right, we're private right now, we're in executive session, right.

No, it is public and there will be public comment at the end. But we're not in that
section there, yeah, okay.

Okay.
Yeah —no, they don't get that.

{ always get nervous when {Inaudible]

Applicant Melissa Evans

MARSHALL:

I know. Hi how are you? 5o, as you seat yourself, my name is Kate Marshall, I'm the
Lieutenant Governor and Chair, and | think you have the names of the Board Members
along the dais here. We also have Board Member Julie Pazina in Las Vegas.

26



EVANS:

MARSHALL:

EVANS:

MARSHALL:

EVANS:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | December 11, 2019
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

The way the process is going is you've given us a resume, you've given us writing
samples, right, and so I'm going to give you an opportunity to introduce yourself, and
then | have a series of questions. The questions are the same for every single candidate,
because we are a public entity. | will ask them, just so that it’s easier, but really it’s the
Board Members who will follow up. Is that okay with you?

That's just fine, thank you.

And we have about 45 minutes and if you need to take a break, or water or whatever,
no worries, okay? All right, so Ms. Evans if you,wanted to introduce yourself to the
Board.

Certainly, and thank you for this opportunity, Lieutenant Governor. My name is Melissa
Evans. | have a bachelor's degree from Grand Canyon University, that's in applied
business. And then | have.a Master's degree in Education from Grand Canyon
University.

| have about 23 years of government experience, including municipal experience, as well
as state. Most recently | currently work with Washoe Tribe of Nevada in California. And
I am their Tribal Administrator. Prior to that | did some consulting work for various
private corporations, and | worked for about four years for the City of Las Vegas as a
Senior Economic Development Specialist.

I feel.I'm a good fit, and you may ask this guestion later, but | feel I’'m a good fit for this
particular position because | have about 10 years of economic development experience.
And additionally, | have a few years working with the City of Glendale in their Tourism
Department. | promoted the Super Bowl 42, as well as the annual Fiesta Bowl, and then
| worked on the shop_local campaigns and various tourism promotions and campaigns
for.the downtown area. Thank you for the opportunity.

Thank you. So, Board Members ~ ) will ask the questions and then leave it open to you.
There are seven questions, okay, And the first question — so you were able to introduce
yourself, but did you want to explain your action plan or writing sample at all?

| took the approach of this being a research project-a project that had already gotten
positive response from various trave! writers.

My concept initially was that we would inquire as to the interest level, that would be the
research piece of it, with travel writers across the world, folks that had been
contributing authors in the past, or had just shown interest. And we would find out if
there was an opportunity to hold a competitive — a contest essentially to invite these
travel writers to visit every single county — rural county within the State.

That would give them an opportunity to write about the pluses, the fun things that they
experienced from a cultural perspective, from the tourism and adventure side, and then
also just the overall feel of the community.

27



MARSHALL:

EVANS:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | December 11, 2019
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

Associated with that was a three-level prize, tiered prize, and also a 10-page spread in
the center of the Nevada magazine. Again, this was written as if-and we had gotten
positive feedback, because | wanted to show an interest as | requested the money, |
wanted to show an interest by the travel writers, and also to put the cost back on the
individual counties at 12 and a half cents per capita to help contribute to the prize
money with that.

But | thought that that might initiate some additional travel, doing some promotion,
social media, as well as going out to some of the travel writer shows to bring people into
that competition. | know blogging is a big deal right now, people love to travel and write
about their experiences, and | felt like it would be a really good idea to try to capitalize
on that.

So, it just got me kind of excited, and | thought rather than focus on one particular
county, | would focus on the entire State.

Thank you. Did any Board Members have any questions about question one? We're off
to a great start.

All right, question two, could you explain your experience in hospitality and/for
destination marketing, and administrative or government experience? And | know some
of this is duplicative, | apologize for that, but just for the sake of the questions, maybe
just go into it a little more.

'm happy to. My tourism experience primarily is with the Tourism Office in the City of
Glendale, as | mentioned, | promoted the Super Bowl 42, it was the first time that the
Super Bowl had come to Glendale in the University of Phoenix stadium.

We had an entire Westgate entertainment district to promote, and then in addition to
that one-time event, later on ~ | had left, but later on they had the Super Bowl come
back, but we did the promotion for the annual Fiesta Bowl as well.

S0, a lot of opportunity for big events, but also at the community level, we did these
annual events, which were just really a lot of fun, it really engaged the community and
made them feel that they had a sense of place. There were things like the Chocolate
Affair, Glendale Glitters, things like that, little promoticnal campaigns and little events
for the community that | just really enjoyed being a part of.

On a grander scale, | worked in economic development for over 10 years. I've worked
with the City of Glendale. | was promoted in that position inte economic development, |
was the Director for a small town in central Arizona for a couple of years promoting
small events and trying to bring companies to that area as well, promoting some of the
open land, and building opportunities that we had there. So, that kind of covers the
Tourism background.

28



MARSHALL:

CARANO:

MARSHALL:

CARANO:

EVANS:

CARANO:

EVANS:

CARANO:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | December 11, 2019
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

As far as government, in general, as | mentioned | have about 23 years, and it's kind of
run the gamut. I've worked with municipalities primarily, but | do have experience now
working with a Tribe, and | really enjoy working with the Tribe here. It's been a very
different experience for me, but it opened up a whole lot of opportunities for me to use
skillsets that | didn't realize | had. So, | enjoy being there.

| worked in both small towns, like | said a population of about 10,000 with the town of
Camp Verde. But then I've worked you know with the City of Las Vegas, where |
promoted the downtown, and went out and actively recruited businesses to the
downtown; interacting with various businesses; and finding out what their challenges
were, their opportunities.

In deing so, while | was working there, 1 found out that there was a huge work force
issue which continues to be a problem, nationally: |But there, it was specific to tech, and
so | brought in a few tech training providers to upscale the local work force and provide
that work force base that we needed. It hasn’t solved the problem, but it certainly
helped quite a bit.

S0, that's | would say kind of in a nutshell,.that's my — that’s my government experience,
as well as my experience in tourism.

Thank you. Does the Board Members have any questions from question number two?
Yes.
Yes.

Thank you. V'm Cindy Carano for the'record, and Melissa, what was your position at the
City of Las Vegas?

Yes, ma‘'am. Thank you, Ms. Carano. | worked for the City of Las Vegas in economic and
urban development. My position was Senior Economic Development Specialist,
primarily focused on business retention. But as my interest grew, and | saw a need
there, | was allowed to have the liberty to reach out in the work force development.

Thank you. And so, with economic development, did you work with tourism at all?

| worked with the downtown-yeah, we had another specialist was really the liaison for
the downtown, but | certainly assisted her in her efforts. We promoted-we did a lot of
ribbon cuttings and coordination with special events for the downtown. And then my
market was primarily with the businesses, to try to help the businesses in the downtown

area.

And so, with the Washoe Tribe, do you work with tourism at all?

29



EVANS:

STOLDAL:

EVANS:

STOLDAL:

MUN:

EVANS:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | December 11, 2019
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

We have a cultural component, ma‘’am. The Tribe is severely understaffed, and that's
been the biggest challenge I've encountered since coming on board, it's constantly been
a hiring process for me. | would like to say that we have efforts dedicated to that area.
Right now we're in the process of getting an economic development director position
approved, it will go to Council Friday evening, I'll be presenting that to Council in hopes
that we are able to move ahead and get someone to be able to focus on that. Thank
you.

Stoldal for the record. During that five years with the City of Las Vegas redevelopment,
is there any one project that you can point to that's really worked, this was a success,
whether it was a team effort or something that you led?

That's a great guestion, and | alluded to it a little bit before, but being able to identify
that work force gap in the downtown, it was really an honor to be able to work with an
organization called Tech Impact, it's a nonprofit. | helped to get them expand from the
East Coast and they helped at risk youth get the training that they needed to be able to
apply for positions that were tech-related in the downtown.

Along with that was Red Flint which was an offshoot from the University of Phoenix, and
they had sort of an Apple store concept. So, they basically would let you walk in off the
street and kind of play with virtual reality and robots and all kinds of stuff to engage,
just the everyday person in tech, and establish some kind of interest and then offer
some training there. So, yeah that was really fun for me.

There was also a for profit company called Iron Yard, which was a national company that
did coding. And there was a coding bootcamp, so they would put someone through in
about 12 weeks, and they would come out and be able to write a very sophisticated app
that you and | would use on our phone. So, all of those folks were generating hundreds
of talented individuals for the tech work force community in downtown Las Vegas.

And the recruitment effort otherwise had been bringing people out of the Silicon Valley
at about 510,000 to $20,000 per head and then losing those folks after about a year, 18
months. So, In my opinion, this was something | took on, on my own, | was recognized
for it, by winning the Employee of the Manth award out of 3,000 people working for the
City, | felt pretty honored to have done that after just three years.

So, yeah, | feel like that was sort of my crowning achievement during my tenure there,
thank you.

Thank you.

Hi, I'm Cynthia Mun, and while you were employed at the City of Glendale, how [arge is
Glendale?

Ms. Mun, | want to say Glendale is about 300,000 now. It's on the west side of Phoenix,
soit's kind of a bedroom community, but it houses the University of Phoenix stadium.

30



MUN:

EVANS:

MARSHALL:

EVANS:

MARSHALL:

EVANS:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | December 11, 2019
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

Got it. And while you were there you've done marketing and finance, and economic
development, quite a lot of things. But in terms of marketing, what kind of challenges
do you have outside of the Super Bowl in terms of marketing, and how did you
overcome those, if you had challenges?

Yeah, | think the biggest thing is during budget cuts to realize how important it is, and
not let that go by the wayside, because people tend to travel less, and if you suddenly
lose interest in that market, | think it can be very detrimental and long term.

So, being able to convince Council to continue with funding for those important
campaigns, and then also hoping that you get those recurring grants. Because | was in
charge of several different grants when | worked there, and you know with budget cuts,
it became more competitive. So, that was a huge challenge while | was there.

But again, it was a very cohesive team, and we really hadia heart for the community
which is what | loved about that particular position. | was promoted twice there, 50 |
went from finance te marketing, and then to economic development. Thank you for the
question, Ms. Mun.

Okay, just a second, | write slower than you talk.
That's okay, I'm a fast talker.

Okay, question number three,7are you currentl_y employed, if so, which it sounds like
you are, why are you looking to leave your organization, and if not, if you might explain
your circumstance;

Sure. Currently, I'm with the Washoe Tribe in Nevada and California. And I really enjoy
the position there, | have to tell'you. 1 just started in August. It’s been my first job in
northern' Nevada having come up from Las Vegas. And as | mentioned earlier, I'm
utilizing ‘skilts that 1'didn’t really — | guess | didn’t realize | had, and I'm a very good
administrator.

The only reason for looking elsewhere is primarily 'm not able to use my marketing and
economic development skills like | have in the past. | spend an inordinate amount of
time—l,would say 90 percent of my time is focused on personnel. And while that's an
extremely important portion of a job, | feel like again, my skillset is heavily under-
utilized in that capacity.

I even thought about applying for the economic development director position as it
came open to be able to refocus on that, and the truth of it is, I'm so good at what I'm
doing right now, they don’t want me to do that. So, yeah | just feel a fittle bit limited in
using my talents, but it’s a great place to work. There’s great people there and | have
never worked for a better management team to be frank with you, very dedicated
people.

31



MARSHALL:

EVANS:

DELONE:

EVANS:

DELONE:

EVANS:

DELONE:

EVANS:

DELONE:

EVANS:

DELONE:

EVANS:

Mevada Commission on Tourism | December 11, 2019
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

Thanks, questions? Okay, number four, what was the largest operating budget
excluding debt service, that you've been responsible for and what year might that have
been?

Well, currently | have about a $30 million budget that I'm responsible for. Gosh, it's
really varied over the years. Projects as small as $300,000 and then alt the way up to
what I'm working with right now. | worked with the City of Las Vegas, and our budget
was pretty hefty as well, but again my focus was more on business retention and
expansion.

50, our marketing piece there was—l want to say it was about half a million dollars, and
we contracted out with a third party firm to do a good chunk of it, as far as doing the
web and social media pushes, but internally, we had some graphic design and certainly
all the concepts and campaigns came from our group.

Sa, to answer your guestion anywhere from $300,000 on up to about 36.

| have a follow up question.

Yes, sir.

Ms. Evans, thanks by the way for your time today. | just wanted to verify because we
had trouble hearing, you said the budget you're currently responsible for was 30, that's
three-zero million?

Yes, sir.

And it's just a yes or no, 30 million. And then are you in essence there the CEQ, the
chief executive?

| would liken it, because it’s more government, | would liken it to the City Manager role
in a municipality.

So, the point I'm getting to, is the $30 million budget, you are responsible for that, not a
cast of other employees?

At an administrative level, it's my responsibility. We do have a CFO, and we do have
accounting staff that actually put that together, but at the end of the day, it's my
responsibility to make sure we're not overdrawn on certain areas that the grants—which
it's another problem we have right now, we're under spent in many of our grants
because we have a lack of work force. So, yeah, ultimately, I'm responsible.

Another follow up question then, does the CFO report to you?

Yes, she does.

32



DELONE:

CARANO:

EVANS:

MARSHALL:

EVANS:

MARSHALL:

DELONE:

EVANS:

MARSHALL:

EVANS:

MARSHALL:

DELONE:

EVANS:

DELONE:

EVANS:

DELONE:

Nevada Cornmission on Tourism | December 11, 2019
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

Okay, thank you.

With your $30 million budget, where are those funds spent? What's going to labor and
what’s going to — I'm not sure what other services the Washoe Tribe actually has.

We have about 1,500 members, and we manage — about 300 of those are on
reservation. We provide services that run the gamut quite frankly, social services, Head
Start, we have cur own Police Department, we have grant management, we have a
health and wellness clinic. We have a planning department, so we are trying to develop
various areas on the Tribe.

We do marketing for various parcels of land." There is a casino on the property. And
we're looking at doing some other.things too and create opportunities for economic
prosperity there.

Okay.

| hope that answered your question.

You also have Wal-Mart there, don’t you?

Do youTun the casino too?

We do not."That's actually done through a'Porch Creek Band, and yeah, we may be
taking that over, sooner than we thought. I'm sorry was there another?

Don’t you have Wal-Mart on your property?

We do not. We do not reap any revenue from that.
Oh.

| have one more follow up question, an easy one.
An easy one.

When you look back at your career, what's the largest staff, number of staff that
reported up to you?

At this point in time, | have about 30 staff, 27 when | first started, now 30.
And I'm sure you have managers that run different areas, but at the end of the day,

you're saying you have about 30 people that you - are in your family and you're
responsible for?

33



EVANS:

STOLDAL:

EVANS:

MUN:

EVANS:

MUN:

EVANS:

MUN:

EVANS:

MUN:

EVANS:

MUN:

EVANS:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | December 11, 2019
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

Yes, sir. I'm actually responsible for 350 employees, 30 of them are my direct reports.
And there's really been a lack of leadership over the last few years, and now that we
have a really capable chairman in place, 1've been able to reach out to those individual
staff members at different times and establish more communication. 1 think they felt
very isolated over time, and so while | don’t supervise their everyday activities, |
definitely try to reach out and help them understand that I'm there for them.

There's been a habit of a jumping hierarchy in the past too, so I've tried to re-establish
that where people are talking to their direct supervisor, before they come to me, but
then they also know that they always have me;’and I’'m not going to ignore them, I'm
receptive to it.

On your resume regarding relevant work history, you’ve got it looks like two overlapping
responsibilities, the Evanly Consulting, you started there, you're a principle there in

2017, and you're still there as well as, you've now been a Tribal administrator for the
last four months. Walk me back and forth on those two.

So, the consulting at one point in time, | was doing full-time, and having your own gig is
a little overwhelming sometimes. I'm closing out some contracts that | currently have,
but my time is spent with the Tribe right now. Thank you for the question.

On your resume it says you had 27 direct reports currently-

Yes, ma'am.

—-at the Washoe Tribe. Prior to_this pasition, which you've been in for four months,
what’s the largest number of staff that reported directly to you, and where was that?

Sure. | worked for the town of Camp Verde. There are about 70 staff there, and | was
the second in charge next to the Town Manager. So, | had responsibilities there. They
did not have an assistant city manager position, but | filled that role as the Economic
Development Director, and he's ane of my references which I'll provide to you, before |
leave today...

That's the City of Las Vegas?

No, I'm 50 sorry, that's with the town of Camp Verde in central Arizona.

Oh. Okay.

There were 70 employees there. He's still the Town Manager and he’d be very happy to
talk to you.

Did you say seven-zero?

Seven-zero, yes, ma‘am.

34



MUN:

EVANS:

MUN:

MARSHALL:

EVANS:

MARSHALL:

EVANS:

MARSHALL:

EVANS:

MARSHALL:

SPEAKER:

EVANS:

MARSHALL:

SANTOS:

MARSHALL:

SANTOS:

EVANS:

SANTOS:

MARSHALL:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | December 11, 2019
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

And you were there just...

Twao years.

Two years, okay. Thank you.

And then | realize now that it's the Reno Tribe that has the Wal-Mart.

Reno Sparks.

Right, so that's why | was...

In that area, yes.

Right so you guys don’t have the Walmart.

| thought you were talking about the one in Garnerville.

Oh, yes, okay.

There's a Wal-Mart close to you?

Yes, ma'am there is.

Ali right.

Can | ask this one follow up...

Oh, I'm sorry, Herb.

Thank you, Herb Santos:for the record. So, your primary focus is the Washoe Tribe.
Does that mean that Evanly Consulting is going to—if you were a successful candidate for
this job, that would terminate?

It's pretty much terminated already; I’'m just fulfilling obligations that | had made. | have
several NDAs in place, so I'm just closing the contracts out. To answer your question,
sir, to be very direct, no, | would not be doing anything else.

Thank you.

Okay, so the largest number-you guys are moving ahead of my—okay, so all right. | think

we've answered the question largest number of staff, largest number of direct reparts.
Okay, 50 moving onto number six.

35



EVANS:

ROBINSON:

EVANS:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | December 11, 2019
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

What do you see as your strongest skillset, sales, marketing or management? And is
there something you feel that makes you uniquely qualified for this position? So, it was
sales, marketing, or management, or if it was something else?

| would combine the marketing with the management. And you know to some degree
sales, that's what economic developers do, right, we’re pitching our areas to various site
selectors and businesses. So, it's kind of a combination of those things.

And my career has been a nice blend of those, | think. I've had an opportunity to work
recently with a myriad of personnel issues being thrown at me, you know at a very
challenging, but very manageable rate. And it's what | talked about earlier, about seeing
talents in myself, | didn’t realize | can handle a lot. And I'm kind of surprised at what I've
been able to accomplish since I've just - I've only been here four months.

So, you know philosophically I'm just leaving this up to greater powers than |. | really
love what I'm doing, and if my skillset can be used in other areas at a higher capacity,
I'm open to that, but | love what I'm doing. | have an excellent job there, and I'm good
atit.

So, the management aspect is important | think to be able to do the other technical
things that you can have staff manage for you is really, really important that you know
when to step in as a leader and build a team.

And so, | would say of those three that you mentioned, my management skills are
probably the strongest. | think there were there all along throughout the leadership
programs that I've participated in, and my education. But only through the last couple
of years in my consulting business and through this opportunity have | realized how
good | am at leading a group of individuals.

Hi, Pam Robinson. Thank you for being here. Your resume is heavy on economic
development and that seems to be the bigger trend with some marketing. Where do
you see the tourism trends going over the next few years, and how would you use what
skills you have, if they're not tourism-based to look at the vision of developing new
kinds of trends and looking for new opportunities to promote tourism in Nevada?

That's a good question. Well, | like the way you approach this in asking your candidates
to create these campaigns, because | think it required a little bit of out-of-the-box
thinking.

| personally feel like there needs to be a little more emphasis on the rural communities,
having lived in Las Vegas for, you, know five years. The las Vegas Commission and
Visitor's Authority does a very good job. I'm from that area, and they, in my opinion,
don’t need a lot of help. But | think certainly the focus for this particular state would be
on those rural communities.

36



MUN:

EVANS:

MUN:

EVANS:

SANTOS:

EVANS:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | December 11, 2019
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

The whole concept of Sandoval's diversifying Nevada is extremely important. We
cannot be reliant on one particular industry alone, and tourism has been you know the
staple for this State, but | think we have to, as responsible stewards of tax dollars, we
have to look at ways to diversify in that.

So, certainly keeping up on the tourism, but just realizing that it’s one component of it,
and continuing to fight for those sparse dollars and grants that are available.

Just going back a question before, you said management is what you feel you're
strongest in.

Um-hmm.

How would you describe yourself.as a leader, what kind of like characteristics of
leadership do you think describes you best?

That's a really good question, Ms. Mun. | think it really goes back to two key points that
I've always tried to express to staff,"and it's sort of my mantra'| guess to the point that
people are probably sick of hearing about it.

But | believe in belng a good steward of taxpayer dollars. In everything that we do, we
should be cognizant of how we're spending that money, right down to the supplies that
we order. | also believe in trying'to maintain awareness of the press, always keeping

yourself out of the headlines whenever possible, unless it's in a good way of course for

promotion. ‘Butif a person is'able to truly go to work every day and think of those two

‘things, then | think they’ll keep themselves out of hot water.

My first bit'of advice to an employee is to be ethical, but if they don’t know what that
means, then | iexplain it to them. Keep these two things in mind, and this will keep you
out of hot water, and it will help you to become a very good employee.

Herb Santos for the record. If | could do a follow up on that. If | was to call the folks
that you supervise, and ask them to describe the type of leader that-how they perceive
you as a leader, what do you think they would say?

And then if they saw the transcript of what you said, how do you think they would react
to your description of what you think they would say?

Well, that's a good question, Mr. 5antos. First of all, | would think that they would say
I'm tough, but I'm fair. The word “accountability” comes to mind. I think there’s been a
period of time where there’s not been any accountability, and | expect people to earn
their paychecks.

So, I'm fair. And I think if they were to read that, | think that they would agree with it. |
would hope so, anyway. | hope that that’s a fair assessment. I'm very open. People can
come and talk to me with just about anything, and | try to receptive. And, you know,

37



MUN:

EVANS:

MARSHALL:

EVANS:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | December 11, 2019
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

just to give you an example, | have a gal that I'm working with right now. She’s not my
direct report, she’s under the General Counsel, but she's having some preity severe
health issues, and she’s been with the Tribe for 15 years, but they don’t provide the kind
of benefits that government does.

And now I'm going out of my way to make efforts with the local senior center and find
out about housecleaning, and Meals on Wheels and things like that, we're going to put
her down to 10 hours a week contract, 50 that she can work from home, and give
herself the opportunity to stay on health benefits.

So, I'm very compassionate, but I'm also not a doormat. If people are not doing their
work, they're going to hear about it. | hope that gives you a little bit of an idea of my
level of concern for my staff, yes, sir.

What are you most excited about this opportunity?

| think | represent well. | think because of my level of integrity and ethics, I'm able to
hold my head high with not pride or arrogance, but just a feeling of accomplishment
every day when | go to work. | work really hard.

This particular position 1 think is, | think it's a high profile paosition, but | think it also has
the opportunity to bring money to the area, which you know that always thrills me to be
able to market something and take advantage of Just sort of-what’s not there, just shed
some light on something that someone else should maybe look at.

So, yeah, economic development, it was really a blessing for me when | had the
opportunity to get into that field some 10 years ago, because it created a passion in me
to be able to create jobs and give people a higher quality of life. And to me, that’s what
it’s about at the end of the day. It's not so much work, you know what we do here is
what’s happening the rest of our lives. And if we can help enhance that quality of life
for the residents, then we’re doing the right thing. Thank you.

Last question, all right. How would you define heritage tourism? And how do you think
the Department of Tourism and Cultural Affairs can leverage this type of tourism in
Nevada, specifically?

well, certainly working with local Tribes to capitalize on what they have to offer, and
help bring more prosperity to their communities, there’s a lot of untapped resources, |
would say, in terms of awareness. And | know with the opening of the Stewart Street
School, being able to take advantage of our assets, and educate people on what the
Natives have gone through, what the land is about, what their philosophy is, their belief,
their traditions, it's really quite eye-opening.

And | think I'm being able to educate and market the general public on that, there's a
huge draw, especially from Europe on Native American tourism, and | would definitely
want to dip into that a little more, as well as the heritage of the State in terms of its

38



ESTIPONA:

EVANS:

DELONE:

EVANS:

DELONE:

EVANS:

DELONE:

EVANS:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | December 11, 2019
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

industrial heritage, and being able to capitalize on some of the historic stories, the ghost
towns | read in the recent magazine, the focus on that campaign, and | like it.

But yezh, | think there’s a huge opportunity to take advantage of the heritage aspect of
the State, and as | wrote in my proposal to, you know, shine on other communities, that
there are more than just lights in Nevada.

| have a couple questions, Edward Estipona for the record. When you had a chance to
do some research, what do you think are the biggest opportunities right now for the
State when it comes to tourism, as far as where do you think you can see the State going
in the next five years, and bringing in more visitors?

| would say there’s an opportunity for ecotourism. There's a lot going on here on an
agricultural level, and | think it's been successful in'other areas in terms of viticulture
and analogy, being able to teach people at local colleges.how to grow grapes, and then
how to make wine, | think there’s an opportunity there. 't did a lot of promotion down in
- in central Arizona on that, and they have a burgeoning wine industry, so | think that’s
one opportunity.

Again, though Ithink the cultural component, the heritage component is a big one,
taking advantage of the uniqueness of this State.

Currently, we have an Initiative, the USDA is funding an initiative, it's called Ready, Rural
Economic Development Initiative, and they’ve come in, and we're the only Tribe in the
State that has this opportunity, we've been able to draw on stakeholder knowledge, and
bring in the different community members to find out what it is they want as we move
forward to capitalize.on the assets of the Tribe.

So, | think the culture and the heritage piece of it is something that definitely could be
expanded upon.

What's your,current base compensation annually?

I make $113,000 and I have an extra four percent in 401K.

S0, this job pays a comparable amount?

A comparable when - yes, sir, when you deduct for the...

So, as we sort of head into the final lap of your interview, just summarize for me in
under a minute why we should as a committee select you as one of the successful
candidates to recommend to the Governor? What's your shining star here today?

Okay, well thank you for that. And | do hope that you’li consider me as part of the final

three. Certainly, my education, and certainly my government experience, and then just
also my passion for the community and wanting to serve the community, be a good

39



DELOME:

SANTOS:

EVANS:

SANTOS:

EVANS:

SANTOS:

ESTIPONA.:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | December 11, 2019
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

steward of taxpayer funds, and always do the right thing. I'm a good leader. I'm a good
- I'm a good manager, you know people know that | care about them. And | think that |
would represent the organization well.

Good answer.

On your resume it said-Herb Santos for the record-it says | develop personnel policies
and procedures, as well as direct the activities of all Tribal Council approved programs.
Can you give me an example of any Tribal Council approved program that has anything
to do with—somewhat with tourism? Or what type of activities are we talking about?

So, as far as—the first part of the question was about Tribal policy and procedure?

Well, your resume says | develop personnel policies and procedures as well as, and this
is what I'm getting at, direct the activities of all Tribal Counci! approved programs by
achieving the program’s objectives. What type of approved programs from the Tribal
Council do you direct?

Okay. Those, not so much in the area of tourism. As | mentioned before we're in the
process of hiring an economic development director for that purpose. Se, | just wanted
to clarify that for you, but in terms of the programs that | do advise council on, that
includes updating policies.

Right now, I'm working on the HR policy, there’s a lot of reference to personnel board,
and various conflicting information which is causing great confusion. So, I'm updating
that.

I'm also working with the Health Clinic to take advantage of a six-million-dollar health
and wellness grant that we've been awarded and advising Council on how best to
approach that in a systematic way. We have a plan in place, but we're having a few
obstacles with that.

So, those are some of the programs, in addition to roads programs under the RTA funds,
and shucks, working with the Police Department in their domestic violence funding, as
well as the Courts.

So, those are the types of programs, when they come in, | evaluate and | consult with
the manager or the director and then we come up with a strategy to educate Council, so
that they can make informed decisions.

Thank you.

Edward Estipona. In looking at your whole career, can you tell me perhaps from a

marketing standpoint and specifically on media standpoint, what has been probably
your biggest media campaign that you ran, or that you pushed through and managed?

40



EVANS:

KROLICKI:

EVANS:

KROLICKI:

EVANS:

PAZINA:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | December 11, 2019
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

I worked with the City of Glendale to get a public tax passed for public safety. And it
was a pretty hard push. There had been a lot of tax hits recently within like the last two
years, and so being able to push that through and create the right voter pamphlets, do
the right PSAs and just roll that out to the public and get it passed.

Some people think that public safety is always a no-brainer and they're going to pass it,
but that's not always the case especially if there’s been a lot of-if there’s been recent
increases in tax. So, | would say at a very local level, that was a pretty successful
campaign in terms of how it was approached.

On a bigger perspective, you know rolling out the Super Bow! promotion, that was not a
city campaign per se, but we certainly helped promote it to the best of our ability and
nat use tax dollars inappropriately, but we received a lot of free press on that and media
impressions as a result, so it was definitely worthwhile investing. So, that's kind of a
couple of different examples | giess. | hope that answers it.

Thank you Madam Chair, hi, .I'm Brian Krolicki for the record. Again, thank you for
sitting here and you know this isn’t always the most pleasant thing to do, thank you for
subjecting yourself and applying.

Thank you.
This -building is filled ‘with extraordinary people, with talents that you know | can’t

fathom sometimes, but the day goes from worrying about rural Nevada, to the other
side of planet, .and how to bring tourists here. There are a ton of stakeholders,

‘obviously hospitality tourism'is the major industry here in the State.

In the first 90 days, and we've got legislators, and you know other tourism groups, and
volunteers and professionals, what would your first 90 days be like? | mean what would
you do. How would you tackle it? How do you get settled into the chair?

That's a good gquestion. I'm sure it would be a very quick 90 days with all the activity. |
would definitely want to get to know my staff, and find out how the team works, what
the dynamics are, what the expectations are, and then you know begin to meet with the
community partners. | think looking at certainly the importance of the Nevoda
Magazine, and who contributes to that would be a hig piece of this position.

But you know primarily just looking at the different trends in tourism and seeing what
has worked and evaluating what might work better in the future. It's always difficult to
balance yourself between heavily populated areas, and we all know we have this
North/South thing going on and being able to give the rural communities the attention
they deserve. That's something that | would personally take on and want to be able to
try to promote a little bit better.

Hello, this is Julie Pazina for the record. Welcome and again thank you for being here
today. I'm chiming in from Las Vegas. And | was curious in your career, have you had

41



EVANS:

PAZINA:

MUN:

EVANS:

MARSHALL:

EVANS:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | December 11, 2019
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

any experience in trade show or convention marketing, it's such a huge component of
the tourism for our State?

Yes, actually, and | don’t know where I'm looking, where the camera is here. So, |
actually worked quite a bit at the convention center when | worked for the City of Las
Vegas, because we went out and talked to all the trade show vendors, you know it
depended on the industry. | was primarily focused on IT, and | did some manufacturing
there too, but certainly going out on the other side of the table and being able to
explain what services we had to those folks that were you know set up there.

And then on the opposite side of the table, | also was responsible to set up booths, and
do various events for the City of Las Vegas, when people were coming in to visit us. 50, |
actually have sat on both sides of that, good question.

Thank you.

I'm guessing that you've been involved in authoring a strategic marketing plan in some
of your companies. Can you tell me a little bit more about that?

There are two Instances of that. One | created for a small town, and then that was
pretty easy, because | didn’t have much to begin with. But | focused on getting a web
campaign at that time, I'm bringing in a consultant, because we didn’t have internal staff
to be able to manage that and having an online presence.

And then from the community perspective, | certainly put a lot of work into making
pecple have the feeling of a sense of home, a sense of place, so creating a lot of
marketing—I'm sorry, a lot of small events that would keep people home, but also bring
people to the area.

One of the things | did was get the area downtown designated as an entertainment
district, so that we could be part of the Verde Valley Wine Trail and bring in various
Wineries. There was a stipulation about being in proximity you know to churches and
schools. 5o, that's helped kickstart that. | also had an event where we brought in
[inaudible] from the northern areas on the university to do star gazing nights and bring
the kids in'to be able to look through the telescopes.

So, a lot of just creating that sense of home there. And then certainly with the City of
Glendale, | had a lot of opportunities which I've talked about. Thank you.

Okay, was there any final comment you wanted to make?
I just thank you for this time. | know I've been on the interview side of the Board many,
many times, and | know you ask the same questions over again, and people kind of look

the same after a while. And | just hope that | made an impression on you. | would like
an opportunity to come back and speak further if that comes up, but please let me know

42



MARSHALL:

EVANS:

MARSHALL:

EVANS:

MARSHALL:

EVANS:

WILSON:

Pause

WILSON:

STOLDAL:

MARSHALL:

SANTOS:

MARSHALL:

WILSON:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | December 11, 2019
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

if you have questions. | would only ask a follow up question, and that would be just the
formality of the process and what the next steps are.

First | wanted to say that | think you’re very professional, and | really enjoyed your
presentation, it was very nice.

Thank you, ma‘am. That means a lot to me.

If you could leave your references if you didn't give them already. So, what’s happening
today, is we are interviewing the top candidates; or the short list if you will. The Board
will make a decision today on what three candidates they will refer to me and | will bring
them to the Governor. Mt is the Governor's appointment ultimately, and so0 what he
chooses to do with that recommendation|is up to him.

Well thank you very much to you and Las Vegas as well. | appreciate it. Thanks for your
time.

Wwe'li move forward pretty quickly | think because it's been a long process. So, thank
you.

Thank you very much.

Kate Wilson, for the record. Our next applicant is-actually located in Los Angeles, and he
had a meeting there that he could/not change, so he’s going to be calling in. We asked
for the other applicants to not call in until 12:50 sharp. So, we just have a couple
minutes until that person will be calling in. Everyone else is still in [inaudible]. Ari
Levin? Yeah.

Commissioner Stoldal? Can you just turn your mic on because they won't be able to
hear you at all?

So, it was Pam!s question that really struck me is when you asked about the direction of
tourism, .there wasn't an answer there, and the answer she supplied with
redevelopment which, of course, is important we get that, but this is for tourism. So,
that really struck me as a key answer or lack of answer. Thank you.

Are there comments?

I had a thought too. When you guys put together these —

Just a minute. [inaudible] Just a minute please.

Hi, is there anyone on the line? If you're on the line, if you could please mute your
phone, that would be great. Thank you.

43



MARSHALL:

WILSON:

Pause

WILSON:

Applicant Ari Levin
LEVIN:

WILSON:

MARSHALL:

LEVIN:

MARSHALL:

LEVIN:

MARSHALL:

LEVIN:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | December 11, 2019
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

Okay, guys. I'm sorry. Maybe if you don’t mind if we hold it to the end?

One more time, for those of you who are on the line, if you could please mute your
telephones.

Hi, Kate Wilson, for the record. Do we have Mr. Levin on the line?

You absolutely do.
Perfect. I'll hand it aver to the Lieutenant Governor.

Hi guys. Okay, so we're back online. Mr. Levin — is it Levin or how do | pronounce your
last name?

Yes, ma'am, yes, it’s Levin. Thank you.

Levin, all right. So, let me talk to you a little bit about how we’re going to do this. Thank
you very much, first, for calling in from L.A. | appreciate you doing that. You are a part
of a group of the short-listers here. | will give you an opportunity to make some opening
statements, and then | have a series of questions.

There's seven questions, but sometimes we get ahead of ourselves, and so some
guestions are answered, And | will ask the questions, but | will let the board members
follow up, okay? And then at the end I'll give you an opportunity to make any closing
remarks, should you so choose. | think we have 45 minutes total. If that's okay with
you, we can begin. Does that sound good?

Yes, thank you so much first and foremost, Lieutenant Governor. | greatly appreciate
you and the rest of the Committee working with me while | am at the Regional Census
Office in Los Angeles representing Las Vegas and the State of Nevada.

I'd just like to say | am the number one person in the region, and not only that, actually
the number one person in the country that has secured the largest partnerships for the
State of Nevada. And | know, Lieutenant Governor, you’ve been very active and very
supportive of the 2020 census, so again, thank you so very much.

Thank you. And | appreciate that. Did you want to then make an opening statement
about your application and then we'll move to questions?

For sure. So, I'm pretty much a native of Nevada, and that has been my entire goal and
my life dedicating to the cultural life and edification of Nevada and have been

44



MARSHALL:

LEVIN:

MARSHALL:

LEVIN:

MARSHALL:

LEVINE:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | December 11, 2019
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

responsible for some of the largest cultural and other events that have grossly helped
Nevada, both in cultural life and to the state and tourism throughout my entire career. |
was doing this before even the Smith Center was open.

| have received special recognition, both formally, from former Lieutenant Governor and
Governors for my economic and cultural developments to the State of Nevada, and
specifically from former Lieutenant Governor Lorraine Hunt Bono, and also former
Lieutenant Governor Lonnig Hammargren, as well as former Governor Guinn.

These events, again, included the rarest and highest caliber of art and festivals in the
country. This included the only United States performance of the Royal Shakespeare
Company that | brought exclusively to Las Vegas, again, the only U.5. performance of the
Kirov Ballet which still to this date is the largest attendance of a ballet in Las Vegas
history, over 3,000 people.

And have also created festivals and worked with former Mayor Goodman in bringing the
2007 MBA All-Star Game to Las Vegas which was the first time in MBA history that a city
hosted an event, an all-star game, that doesn’t have a team. And even more recently,
I've been responsible for bringing Oprah Winfrey entire productions to film here in Las
Vegas for over four years.

So, again, this is something that'I'm extremely passionate about and have the most
proven;-successful track record in“creating cultural life for the State of Nevada. Thank
you.

Thank you. Did you want to explain anything or do a presentation on your writing
sample and action plan that the candidates were asked to submit?

I'm sorry, Lieutenant Governor, could you repeat that?

Yeah so, you know, each candidate was asked to provide a writing sample and then an
action plan.’ You were given a couple of questions, right?

Yes.
1 'wondered if you wanted to talk a little bit about your submission.

Certainly. Thank you, Lieutenant Governor. So, my submission, again dealing with the
culture and the arts, this is a very big industry, and it's very nationally recognized
through the National Endowment of the Arts and Americans for the Arts, how much arts
and culture increased population, increased why we want to stay and live here.

So, my idea, and | had worked with rural counties before, again, in bringing the arts
fastival and the performance of Baryshnikov to Reno. So, in expanding that and
specifically dealing with the rural communities, my idea, and | submitted a temporary
budget and action plan, was to do an arts festival that involved several of the rural

45



MARSHALL:

CARANO:

MARSHALL:

CARANO:

LEVIMN:

MARSHALL:

LEVIN:

MARSHALL:

LEVIN:

MARSHALL:

ROBINSON:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | December 11, 2019
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

counties, including Carson City, Elko and Reno, and having them interact with this arts
festival.

I've done this before with several locations, again with the arts festival years ago when
we brought Baryshnikov there to Reno. So, interconnecting the festival and the events
in these rural properties only helps create public awareness as well as the arts. So, that
was my idea.

Thank you. Any questions of Board members. Al right, moving to—
Yes.
Oh, I'm sorry.

Mr. Levin, Cindy Carano. Thank you for bringing Baryshnikov because | enjoyed him
thoroughly in our show room, however, | was looking at your conceptual cost appraisal
for your arts festival and adding that up several million dollars. So, your three-day
festival-1'm trying to see how that would work in your proposal. Just wondering about
return on investment or how are you going to fund this?

First, let me say, that was just a sample. The instructions just said to do a sample
hudget. It wasn’t supposed to be accurate by any means in the instructions that we got,
just a sample budget. S0, that was a sample budget that | had used before, It wasn’t
done specifically for that. It was done in a generality which is what kind of | understood
the instructions:to be. It wasn't supposed to be'a formal budget preparation. It was
supposed to be a sample budget of what it would look like.

Okay, moving to the next question. Could you explain your experience in hospitality
and/or destination marketing?. Do you have any administrative or government
experience?

Well I'm currently with the Federal government now, and again, have worked
exclusively with past Lieutenant Governors and Governors, on dealing with tourism and
culture and the arts and destination management, having worked with the LVCVA and
other large-scale DMCs on promoting these events and tourism.

Okay. Thank you. Moving to the next question, | think you answered that you're
currently employed. If you're looking to leave your organization, why is that so?

The position I'm in now is a term position, so that’s why.
Very succinctly put. flaughs] All right. Pam?
Thank you, Mr. Levin, Pam Robinson. So, obviously the census gets over and, you know,

results are given to the Federal government, but what prompted you to leave your
previous position at Jolon Productions to go do the census?

46



LEVIN:

ROBINSON:

MARSHALL:

LEVIN:

MARSHALL:

LEVIN:

MARSHALL:

LEVIN:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | December 11, 2019
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

It was very, very important to me. | got heavily recruited because of my past work and
connections with the entities in Nevada. You know, not many people know-l mean the
2020 census is a big deal. This is the first time in the history of the census that, you
know, it will be done online. Of course, you know, it's how the state gets funding.

The most important thing for me was not just the House of Representatives, but it was
the importance of funding for hospitals, schools, and something that I've always taken
special care for is Title | schools. So, in all of my events and festivals and cultural
activities and tourism, i’ve always really heavily.incorporated outreach and diversity
worthy. So, that's why.

Thank you.

Okay. Moving on then, what was the largest operating budget you've been responsible
for and if you could, what year was that?

Sure. So, the absolute largest would be Paramount Studios and Star Trek. It was a
$75M budget, and that ended in 2005, would be the absolute largest budget. | had over
450 employees. Again, something that | brought to the State of Nevada that no one else
can compare to as far,as sjze'and scope.

Not-only.did we bring Star Trek there, but we built a 66,000 square foot facility,
employed over 450 employees, and | was specifically responsible because Paramount
Studios wanted, to hold ‘auditions and interviews even for ground workers and

‘construction workers and maintenance workers. They wanted to interview people

because this was, you know, huge., They wanted to hold interviews all over the country.
And | vetoed that and had all'the auditions, all the hiring, everything was done
completely.in Nevada. Again, a first for Paramount Studios.

The second would be when | was at the Tropicana Hotel, | was responsible for a $10M in
annual budgets and over 150 direct reports.

Okay. Please don’t mind that you hear these gaps. I'm logking to see if other Board
members have questions and things like that, so | apologize if you hear these periods of
nothing and wonder whether-we are here.

No prablem.

Okay, so what is the largest number of staff you're been directly responsible for, and |
think you talked about direct reports, but the largest number of direct reports you've

been responsible for,

Correct. So, again, Paramount Studios, 450 employees, second to that would be the
Tropicana Hotel, 150 employees.

47



MARSHALL:

LEVIN:

MARSHALL:

STOLDAL:

MARSHALL:

STOLDAL:

LEVIN:

STOLDAL:

LEVIN:

STOLDAL:

MARSHALL:

LEVIM:

ROBINSON:

LEVIN:

Mevada Commission on Tourism | December 11, 2019
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

And | think you said those were all direct reports?

Yes, ma'am.

Okay.

Question.

Yes. Just a minute.

Stoldal, for the record. Could you define ‘direct reports’ for me?

Those are FTEs, full-time employees and part-time employees and even at different
points, volunteers that reported directly to me.  This included, you know, anywhere
from grounds and maintenance and union workers to managers and directors.

Stoldal, for the record. You would evaluate each of these 150 people? Or did you have
vice-presidents or sub-directors that oversaw some of these different groups, whether
they were janitors or did the janitors report directly to you?

Both. You know, like let’s say a maintenance worker or a grounds worker or a facilities
persan would have their manager, but then that manager would also report to me. And
overall signing of raises, bonuses and disciplinary action was all my signature.

Okay. Thank you.

Okay. Thank you. Moving on, what do you see as your strongest skillset? Sales,
marketing or management? And is there something that you feel makes you uniquely
qualified for this position?

Yes. I'll say what's uniquely qualified me for this position again is my creativity and my
100 percent proven successful track record in the largest cultural events in the state,
hands-down. | would say my strongest asset would be management, with a close
second of marketing.

Pam Robinson. It locks like you've got a strong promotion and marketing background.
What do you see as the trends in tourism and where it's going in the country and/or
internationally and how that relates to Nevada?

You know, marketing has over the past, you know, five years has drastically changed.
It's all digital now and social media for the large part. The only thing | would like to add
about that and what I've always done is heavily involving again diversity and also heavily
involving the community.

But other than that, that's how it's drastically changed is it's all, you know, if you go
back on the strip 10 years ago it was all, the What’s On magazines and in-roam and all

48



ROBINSON:

LEVIN:

SANTOS:

LEVIN:

MARSHALL:

LEVIN:

MARSHALL:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | December 11, 2015
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

those are still there. It's nowhere near the publication and if you go and look at the
subscription of the RJ which, you know, is literally a quarter of what it was 10 years ago,
all because of online, and that is the trend of the United States as well.

Thank you. Can t do one follow-up on that? So, with the trends, a lot of what we've
seen, and it was part of the tourism, the Governor's Global Tourism Summit just
recently is that a number of areas, the RSCVA and the LVCVA in particular are promoting
districts and they’re creating districts in their cities and areas to stimulate tourism.

How can you see that moving out into the rural communities where you could help
them develop those same kind of districts which'is most of what the Commission on
Tourism is responsible for?

Yeah, it's about creating an event that excites people and attracts people and something
that's, you know, uniquely different or something that they haven’t experienced, you
know, especially in those rural areas.

Herb Santas, for the record. You had commented about your bringing the NBA All-Star
game to Las Vegas back in 2007. Three questions on that. First, what was the biggest
challenge in doin_g that?. When you look back on it did you believe it was a successful
event? And what would you have done different?

Well there's a couple things. Look, did'it promote the city on 110 different broadcasts
throughout the world and televised in 43 different languages? Absolutely. So huge,
huge marketing and PR effect.” Did we have Kobe Bryant there? Did we have Kareem
Abdul Jabbar here? Did we have Michael Jordan here? Yes.

And | would say, would you call it successful? Look the way how strong Vegas is now
with sports with the Allegiant Stadium and the Raiders coming here. You know, and of
course the Golden Knights. Was'that a steppingstone? Absclutely. Some of the biggest
challenges were, you know, that the Thomas and Mack was not up to NBA standards.
So, there was a lot of dealing with that now.

But look at also, you know, the exhibition games that have come here and have sold out
immediately. ' So, it prompted and showed, you know, other professional sports
organizations that hey, you know what, we're ready.

Okay, last question before summing up, how would you define heritage tourism and
how do you think the Department of Tourism and Cultural Affairs can leverage this type
of tourism in Nevada specifically?

You know, | would say, you know, in dealing with the Indian Commission and Nevada
tribes, and just the different museums and history that's here, and again, you know,

creating public awareness about these which there’s not a lot of right now.

Thank you. Yes?

49



KROLICKI:

LEVIN:

MUN:

LEVIN:

MUN:

LEVIN:

MUN:

MNevada Commission on Tourism | December 11, 2019
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

Good afternoon, Ari. This is Brian Krolicki. Thank you for joining us today. I'm sorry you
couldn’t be with us in person, but certainly understand it’s hard.

Should this be the nod that you get, this is a very massive operation in Nevada.
Obviously, tourism is a central economic engine of our state. This building in Carson City
and our folks in Las Vegas and the volunteers and others who are affiliated scattered
around the state, you know, it's a massive and robust organization. We touch rural
Nevada, we touch the world and the other side of the planet. We have budgets, we
have Legislators, we have stakeholders.

Your first 90 days sitting in the chair, how do you envision rolling this out and just
getting both feet firmly planted into the Nevada Commission on Tourism?

Thank you so much, Mr. Lieutenant Governor. | think, you know, in marketing we do
what’s called a situation analysis, and that is what is working and what is not working. |
dive right in, you know. I'm not somebody who sits back. And | think that's a
conversation, and of course, you being the former Lieutenant Governor, having, you
know, your input-is hugely important for stuff that, you know, you wanted to see
happen, and then of course, with Lieutenant Governor, Ms. Marshall, now kind of
throwing my ideas and my plans in with her and what her ideas are and making them
coexist and come to full fruition.

Hello, Mr. Levin, this is Cynthia Mun. And the question | have is how would you describe
your management styie and in your leadership role what were some of the challenges
you've had in managing staff?

So, | follow a very synergistic and there's type of management. There’s also, you know,
there’s three basic types of management, and | follow the democratic style of
management which is a very open-door, and that’s not a political term. That's a style of
management. But. | follow a very synergistic, open-door democratic style of
management where it means as far as everyone, all of my direct reports and all of my
employees, | have a complete open-door and face-to-face with.

Okay, and the second part of that question in terms of any challenges you've had in
terms of managing your staff or your leadership?

You know, haven’t really had much challenges, you know. Would have to say probably,
you know, the most would be in dealing with the unions and collective bargaining
agreements and disbursement and stuff like that. But you know, again, | was very
skilled in arbitration and collective bargaining agreements, but those were the only
ones, and very few that ever came up.

Thank you.

50



MARSHALL:

LEVIN:

MARSHALL:

LEVIN:

MARSHALL:

LEVIN:

MARSHALL:

LEVIN:

WILSON:

LEVIN:

MARSHALL:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | December 11, 2019
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

Okay. | think we've finished our questions. Did you want to make any final concluding
remarks?

Yes. Again, first and foremost, Lieutenant Governor and former Lieutenant Governor
and the rest of the Committee, greatly appreciate your time and aliowing me to call in. |
wish it could have been face-to-face, but again, thank you so very, very much.

You will not find anyone that has dedicated so much time over, you know, 20 years, or
more passion of leading the cultural and edification of Nevada than me. It's been my
passion my entire life. And when people and other officials said, you know, it couldn't
be done, | did it. And not only did | do it, butit was a huge success.

And now that economically we are so strong rig_h't now with everything that's coming to
Nevada, it's the perfect opportunity to build and grow the culture and tourism. So, I'm
very excited about this opportunity, and again, thank you all so very much.

Thank you. Let me just explain to you what happens here. We are interviewing a subset
of the applicants. Everyone is asked the same questions as you were, same format, and
if you have any references, if you could make sure that Katie Wilson gets those.

Sure.

And.then the Board will be making a decision today after the end of the interviews to
recommend three candidates to the Governor. | will take those recommendations to
the Governor, and then the Governor, it is within his purview what he chooses to do.
So, that's kind of the process, okay.

Wonderful: Thank you so much, Lieutenant Governor,

Thank you. And again, thank you for making the time. | really appreciate all the work
you're doing on the census. It's a lot of money, resources, for Nevada so we think it's
very, very important, so thank you very much.

Thank you also very much. | look forward to meeting everyone in person. Thank you,
again.

Kate Wilson, for the record. Mr. Levin, again, as we mentioned, for the privacy of the
other applicants, if we can have you jump off the line just as a courtesy, that would be
hugely helpful. Thank you 50 much.

Thank you.

Okay, guys, so where we are now is it's 1:20. Katie, is Tony available? We can bring in
the next one. Is that what y'all want to do? Okay, so guys, some of you are not chatty.
And as long as you feel like you're getting the information you need; because | want you
all to feel participatory and stuff. Okay, good, okay.

51



SPEAKER:
DELONE:

MARSHALL:

Applicant Tony Lyle

MARSHALL:

LYLE:
MARSHALL:

LYLE:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | December 11, 2019
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

[inaudible]
Kristin, in about a year and a half you’ll get a seat.

We normally put Phil there, just saying. And then, Julie, you had some questions, but |
want people to feel comfortable that anything — okay, all right, so that’s good. All right,
sa Katie, we can bring the next one in. You guys all comfortable with that? Okay.

Just a second. I'm just getting myself organized. 1 apologize. All right. Okay, Mr. Lyle, is
it? Yes, okay. Let me explain to you the process. I'm Kate Marshall, Lieutenant
Governor. This is the Board. You also have Board member Julie Pazina in Vegas.

What we're doing here is give you an opportunity to make an introduction of yourself.
There's a series of questions. All the candidates are asked the same guestions because
we're a public entity, okay. For purposes of ease I'm asking the questions, but really it is
the Board, and | will let them do any follow-up that they would like.

Then I'll let you make any concluding remarks, if you have any. And I'll explain to you
what happens after that at the end of the process. Does that sound good to you?

Wonderful. Thank you.
Okay. So, why don’t we start by letting me ask you to introduce yourself then.

Thank you, Lieutenant Governor Marshall, members of the Commission, and in Las
Vegas. !t's a pleasure and an honor for me to be here today to be considered for the
position of the Director of Tourism and Cultural Affairs here with the great state of
Nevada.

I'd like to take this opportunity, if you wouldn't mind, to go back a little bit further than
my resume which | hope you have in front of you. It starts in 2002 and it's all tourism
related. But I'd like to let you know how | got into tourism and what | did before that, if
that’s okay.

| left schoot at 16 and went to work with British Aerospace where | was an apprentice
studying electrical and electronic engineering. So, after four years | got my credentials
and my indenture and didn’t stay there for much longer than that. And got into media
and marketing for the first where | worked for a company, well actually three
companies, that specialized in audio text publishing.

And this is back in the late 80's, so this involved basically premium rate telephone
information and entertainment, horse racing, football results and things like that where
you pay a premium to get that kind of information. Very quickly | became the Office

52



Nevada Commission on Tourism | December 11, 2019
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

Manager in charge of Operations, and we were writing scripts and recording pieces,
sales, accounting and account management. It was really kind of interesting.

However, it got me to thinking what was my true passion, and it was the outdoors. |
spent a lot of time at high school in the outdoors with various clubs hiking and biking
and things like that, and that's really what | wanted to do. But | couldn’t get a job
because | didn’t have the experience, and | couldn’t get the experience without the job.
It was kind of chicken and egg.

S0, | decided | would go back to school. So, | went back to university to Liverpool where
{ studied Outdoor and Science Education. It'was going to give me everything | need in
order to get the job that | want. 5o, | studied Outdoor Education and Science, Physics,
Chemistry, Biology and Geography. |'wasteaching at high school during my training,
and | got the ultimate job | wanted which was to be an Outward-Bound Instructor. | got
it.

And | got a job up in the Highlands of Scotland and | was there for several years. But
they would lay me off for two months every winter because I didn’t have the highest-
level winter mountaineering qualification, which was fine becausa | went to work at a
rental shop at one of the local ski resorts.. And yes, there are ski resorts in Scotland.
There's five of them.

And I-did that for a couple years, and Iithought well\l love this skiing and | want to be
.able to do it:for the whole winter, not just two months, and that's where | discovered
tour operators.. And tour operators sent in British skiers and snowboarders to the
French Alps, all over the world in fact, and so | applied, and | became an Inn Resort
representative for.one of the ski tour operators, now defunct, and | went to work in
France.

| then:went to work in Spain for them for a summer season and then moved to the
largest ski and snowboard operator at the time in the UK called Crystal Holidays which is
now part of 2E [phonetic), the 2E Group, out of Germany. And because | had an old visa
and my passport, they sent me straight to the U.5.

Il spent a season in Vermant, and this is all customer facing, so i'm looking at operations
of bringing these guests in and making sure they all have a good time and they’ve got
everything they need.

Backwards and forwards, | worked in London in recruitment in that program in the
summer. Then | would come back. | spent time in Colorado and then ultimately, | was
in recruitment, so | placed myself at Lake Tahoe. And that's when [ first came to Lake
Tahoe.

After a couple of years an opportunity arose after | stayed at Lake Tahoe and ran my
own receptive tour operator business for small U.K. based tour operators that couldn’t
afford to have their own staff. And then a job opened up at Heavenly which is where

53



MARSHALL:

KROLICKI:

MARSHALL:

LYLE:

MARSHALL:

LYLE:

MARSHALL:

LYLE:

nevada Commission on Tourism | December 11, 2019
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

my resume that hopefully is in front of you starts. And so, that's my story, and that's
how | got into tourism and that’s ultimately what brings me here today.

Thank you. | think my knowledge of English skiing has to do with that fellow who used
to do dryland training. Remember, he'd go to the Olympics and he — what was his
name, Charlie or something, and he was just like a —

Eddie.

Eddie, Eddie, that was itl Okay, anyway, okay, well I'll just get off topic, but Eddie, that
was it. Okay. | realize that's not part of your resume. So, going into the first question,
did you want to explain, so every candidate was asked to provide an action plan and
writing sample, and did you want to talk a little bit about what you provided to the
Board?

Absolutely.
Okay.

The direction that | was given was to pick one of the rural counties and come up with a
marketing plan, a situational analysis and marketing plan, on how you could drive
visitation to that particular county. It would have been easy for me to pick Douglas
County or even Washoe County, but so | picked White Pine County, a county that I'm
falrly familiar with having recently driven from Salt Lake City back home, and with my
17-year old son. So, we were all about adventure and exploring and being pioneers
while we were doing the journey.

I went in with my limited knowledge and a lot of research online, and | tried not to look
at [inaudible]. So, | looked at what the county has to offer from Ely to Great Basin
National Park which we tried to visit, to the railroad museum there, to the arts and
indigenous population and activities, places you could visit. But also, things like the hot
springs and Diana’s Punchbowl and getting off the beaten track.

| tried to focus on that and really came back down to what | currently know and how |
would go about marketing White Pine County would be collaboration, obviously using
the team here, but requesting money. Ultimately, the marketing proposal had to
indlude a budget and a letter as well to request the funds. I'm not sure if you have that
in front of you.

Yeah. We do.
But that's all there. But really looking at what would appeal to new visitors rather than
driving through and ultimately driving overnight stays, cause ultimately that's—we want

people to stay and spend their money on lodging but also on everything else, food and
entertainment.

54



MARSHALL:

CARANO:

MARSHALL:

CARANO:

LYLE:

CARANO:

LYLE:

CARANO:

LYLE:

MARSHALL:

LYLE:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | December 11, 2019
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

It's one of those kind of documents, it could have been 25 pages long. It could have
been, you know, just one page or so. | kind of got into it and didn’t realize that it
probably wasn’t going to be executed. It was more of an exercise to demonstrate how
would | approach it.

Thank you. All right.

Excuse me.

Yeah.

Did you actually take the drive?

| did. Yeah, I did it a couple times but this time | actually picked up the passport and our
goal was to get all the stamps.

One of our passports.
And we got every single one apart from Fallon.
Good for you. Thank you..

Because we cut across instead and we have the certificate at home as well. We mailed
in the little card off the back and sent that in:

That's very good. Okay, so | think you have already talked about this, so | apologize if
the question is a bit.duplicative, but if you could talk a little bit about your experience in
hospitality ‘and destination marketing and also if you have any administrative or
Bovernment experience.

Okay." Ever since my resume started in 2002 it got me thinking that I’'ve really actually
been in destination ‘marketing longer than | give myseif credit for, I'm starting with
Heavenly Mountain Resort, my job was about time to sell lift tickets. And that’s the
metric, how many lift tickets can you sell through third-party vendors, any way that you
can sell them.

But in_order to sell the product | have to sell the destination cause people need to
understand where is the U.5., where is the State of Nevada, where is Heavenly, what is it
like, what does it smell like, what does it taste like, what does it feel like, why would | go
there, what's the view like? You have to build everything up and sell the whole
destination before you get to the close where really, where | want you to buy a lift ticket
and come skiing.

The same with my time at Mont Bleu at the casino. I'm selling a room, I'm selling a
pillow, and | can’t really go into the amenities of the room because everybody is very
similar when it comes to rooms. So, really, | have to sell the whole destination again.

55



MARSHALL:

LYLE:

MARSHALL:

LYLE:

ROBINSON:

LYLE:

ROBINSON:

LYLE:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | December 11, 2019
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

Likewise, when | ended up Zephyr Cove, there’s all sort of businesses going on there,
We have, you know, from lodging to F&B to the marina product, to snowmobiles, to the
cruises, obviously. But again, I've got to go through the same process.

So, when the job came up at the Lake Tahoe Visitor’s Authority truly doing destination
marketing, everything came together, and now I'm actually selling all of those other
businesses in part of the process to get people to come to the destination.

Thank you. What about government and administrative?

The Lake Tahoe Visitors Authority that | currently work for is a bi-state agency. We
obviously have the Tahoe Douglas Visitors Authority on the Nevada side that provide
funding to us, on the California side, within the city limits we have the Tourism
Improvement District that provides funding towards the LTVA.

So, we really answer to three boards, the TVVA, the TID board and then we have our
own Lake Tahoe Visitors Authority Board that we have to answer to, plus we have a
marketing advisory committee as well. So, there's lots of masters that we have to work
with and report to.

Okay, moving on to the next question then, it looks like you're currently employed.
Why are you looking to leave your current employment?

I've been at the LTVA, the Lake Tahoe Visitors Authority, for just over seven years now.
It's a great team, it's a great job that | have, and | love it there, but jobs like this really
don’t come up very often. It would be an honor, almost a pinnacle of my career, to
advance, to serve and develop myself. And | wouldn't have applied if | hadn't thought
that | was at that stage of my career, that | had something to offer at this level, and |
think I'm ready for a challenge and to move up.

| just need clarification. - On your resume you've got for the LTVA and High Sierra and
Mountain Symposiums, that they're all present jobs right now. Are they different
aspects of-—

They're associated with my job, but they're really volunteer positions.

Oh, Okay.

So, the High Sierra Visitors Council is very like the State of Nevada. They have rural
regions, so cbviously we have Reno-Tahoe territory on the Nevada side and then on the
California side we're part of a High Sierra Visitors Council. | head that up as the

President and I've been there for 18 months or so now. I'll do a two-year term and then
we'll pass it off to somebody else.

56



ROBINSON:

MARSHALL:

LYLE:

MARSHALL:

LYLE:

MARSHALL:

LYLE:

MARSHALL:

LYLE:

MARSHALL:

LYLE:

MARSHALL:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | December 11, 2019
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

The Mountain Travel Symposium is a third-party vendor trade show. It's been going on
for 43 years, 44 years, | think. It moves around the country to different mountain
destinations, and it's a travel trade show where buyers meet suppliers of mountain
product. And on the same note, going back to the High Sierra, there is a Visit California
rural committee that | also sit on, and I've sat on that for six years, six and a half years at
the moment.

Thank you. | appreciate that.

Okay. Moving to the next question then. Largest.operating budget, if we exclude debt
service, you know, public entities often have debt service, private too, that you're been
responsible for and what year might that have been?

The largest budget that {'ve been involved in is the current one, the Lake Tahoe Visitors
Authority, The budget is just over $6M. Each year'we start in the spring building out
the budget. So, we know our departments, we know we have revenue and then we
know our various expenditure departments that we have, and we build that out
knowing of initiatives that we want to execute in the next year.

We then have the executive, which is our CEQ, our senior vice-president and me. We'll
sit there, and we have many rounds then going backwards and forwards with the
budget. And I'm the one that will'then go in and enter the numbers, make the changes,
until we get to a place where it's presented to sometimes the marketing committee but

ultimately, it's approval of the LTVA'board.

'Did you say 60 or 600?

56M.

6-0?

Just S6M,

56M. Okay. Thank you. Sorry.

Yeah. ! wish it was larger.

| just gave you a huge increase!

Thank you.

All right. Okay, moving on. What's the largest number of staff that you’ve been directly

responsible for and the largest number of direct reports that you have been responsible
for?

57



LYLE:

MARSHALL:

LYLE:

ROBINSON:

LYLE:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | December 11, 2019
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

Currently where { am, we're a lean team. We're a team of nine full-time staff members
plus about four hourly staff that run our visitor centers. | have-l sit on the executive,
the three of those, the President, CEQ, Senior Vice President and myself. And then |
have three direct reports coming up to me.

One is a marketing manager; one is our digital manager and we have a project manager.
But at the same time, we have an internal digital committee that | head up which has
some staff members. And then through that group of the digital team, we manage our
social media agency, our digital agency and to a certain extent our creative agency at
the same time.

At Vail Resorts, if | go back, that was probably the next largest where | had four direct
reports, but multiple reports underneath that because | was at headquarters in
Colorado. We had staff in each_resort that we would manage down, but they were
under somebody else.

You're looking at a team that’s much larger then because we also had a reservations
department that specialized in international reservations for tour operators. So, you're
looking at something a lot bigger in the kind of 20-30 range, but never more than about
four directs.

Thank you. Moving then to skillsets, what would you see as your strongest skillset?
Sales, marketing or management? And is there something you feel that makes you
uniquely qualified for this position?

‘Ooh. | think I'm a salesman'at heart. I'm all about relationships and getting to know

people. It's difficult in destination marketing because ultimately the word sales is used,
but there’s no final transaction. We really have really marketing and matchmaking the
correct peaple together at the same time.

But | like to meet people. I'm interested in people. | like to listen to people, and | think
that's part of sales, s if | had to pick one of the three, | would pick sales.

Tony, what do you see as the trends in tourism, both domestically and international,
because obviously Nevada’s a huge international draw. What do you see happening and
how would you address those trends?

| had an email this morning with a U.5. Travel Association report talking about the
continued decline in the U.S. market share of global long-haul travel, and they see that
happening. It's a tenth of a percent each year. It's not massive numbers, but the
market share is declining, and they see that through 2023.

I think what's important is then to lock at Nevada’s market share of the visitation to the

U.S. and ensure that it does not go parallel with that of the union as a whole. And I've
seen examples of this in California, for example, when you look at numbers increase, or

58



CARANO:

LYLE:

MARSHALL:

LYLE:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | December 11, 2019
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

not necessarily decline as much as the whole country, they're clearly gaining market
share within the U.S.

I think that is something that really needs to be kept on top of. I'm a big data geek, 50 |
love logking at numbers. It's nothing to be worried about. The forecast is to increase
over the next three years; however, you've got to take into account that market share.
It could have been bigger. So, you've got to keep a hold of your market share and make
sure it's front of mind.

Mr. Lyle, Cindy Carano, for the record. | would jist like to go back to the last question.
What do you feel makes you uniquely qualified for this position, being it travel and
cultural affairs?

My apologies for not addressing.it. Yeah. | think.my experience draws on various
aspects of tourism, whether it be outdoor activities; whether it be hospitality, lodging
and hotels or destination marketing. | think the mix compliments myself with having all
these various experiences in my career in the last 17 years or so, and since my resume
starts there.

You know, | mix with-In circles with my peers from other destinations and they’'ve come
through different ranks. | think being on the other side, when you look at the tourism
side, having worked fortour operators as well, I've done both sides, so I've sold product,
I've been front of house in front of people, but also worked for the different aspects of a
visitors’ experience first-hand.

‘Okay, so moving to the last question. How would you define heritage tourism and how

do you think the Department of Tourism and Cultural Affairs can leverage this type of
tourism in Nevada specifically?

| did mention‘that in my White Pine County document. Obviously, heritage tourism is
about what people can see, feel and do that is authentic to a particular destination or
state, the history, the peoples, the people that are there right now.

People want to meet locals. They want to feel like a local. They want to soak up the

whole destination themselves, and for a brief moment, whether it's a couple of hours or
a‘couple of days, they want to feel like a local, that they belong there.

So, really, the three different departments really all play a part because if you look at my
perceived definition of heritage tourism, if you have the arts, especially if it’s focusing
on Nevada artists and art, that's part of the fabric. But when you look at the Indian
Commission, well just by definition and it’s location, that's part of the fabric. The
museums have artifacts that are Nevadan, so it all mashes together, and it’s all part of
the Nevada fabric and is in my belief heritage tourism.

59



STODAL:

LYLE:

STOLDAL:

LYLE:

MUN:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | December 11, 2019
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

A broader based question, reading the last couple of days about the ski industry, and
the massive consolidation. Do you see that continuing and what impact would that
have in Nevada?

There is consolidation going on for sure. You've got the two largest corporations in the
US, both based up at the lake and there are partnerships that are forming on a more
informal basis amongst the smaller independents. The independent ones are getting
together.

It is affordable, the past products, the season past products of these larger corporations
are putting out there, if you buy them in time, it makes skiing extremely affordable and
is driving numbers.

Obviously, with the ski industry, the bigger question will be looking at the climate as
time goes on, but they are diversifying into more summer offerings. You see these ski
resorts now offering mountain bike trails, and roller coasters and things like that, ropes
courses.

So, overall, | believe the consolidation is good for the industry, and good for tourism,
and good for Nevada.

One last question. The issue, the challenge we all face with climate change, how is that
impacting the ski industry?

Well, they need snow to operate, and cold temperatures to make snow. | met someone
from the Californla conservation last week, and we started looking at 100 years ago, the
snow was just on:the top of the mountains. | think all of us involved in tourism have a
responsibility to be responsible and sustainable and look at tourism and whether we're
doing the right things for the environment, but also managing our guests at the same
time, and our expectations of our guests. We're talking about respect for the outdoors,
littering.

And then we look at crowding, the phrase that people use, you know over tourism |
think is used toc much. But we have to start managing our guests, which is a great
opportunity for Nevada, and especially rural Nevada, when you're starting to direct
them.

You look at California, Yosemite for example, it gets very crowded in the summer, so you
have to start managing those guests and give them other options, and appeal to them to
go somewhere else and explore. Everybody is into the hidden gems and off the beaten
track attractions and places to go and see, so | think that's where we need to go. Thank
you.

Hi, this is Cynthia Mun. In terms of your leadership, how would your direct reports
describe you?



LYLE:

KROLICKI:

LYLE:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | December 11, 2019
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

Interesting question. Thank you. I'm very approachable. I'm very giving with my time.
| run an open-door policy; people can come in anytime. | have a listening ear; | won't
judge too quickly. | won't give my opinion or direction quickly, | want to get all the facts,
and | ask lots of questions. But I'm not scared of asking the direct questions.

Everybody knows in the office where | am at the moment. | really don’t tolerate gossip
and rurmor and speculation, I'll nip that in the bud straight away, because I'll ask what
are the facts? Let's get that person in, and let’s go over it, and find out what the real
facts are. 'm friendly. | like to have fun, but we get the job done. | think that’s what
they would say. Thank you.

Thank you Madam Chair. Tany, good to'see you. | have full disclosure, | can confirm
that he does like to have fun, but I've known you for many years, and it’s just a pleasure
to have you here today. And I'm surprised Carol let you out of the office to do this.

You are familiar with NCOT;ibecause you've been part of-you've traveled with it, you've
worked closely, but this building is full of incredible people, 'but you've got the rural
Nevada, you've got the international markets, you've got budgets, you've got
legislators, you've got stakeholders both here and beyond. My question is, in the first 90
days, besides moving to the State of Nevada, should you get this position how do you
envision your first 90 days to be? How would you tackle it? How would you take it one
bite at a time?

Thank-you Commissioner Krolicki.<'We travéled together in 2004 with then Lieutenant
Governor Hunt, when we opened the first office In China, and we went to South Korea
‘and China with our delegation. And thank you for your question.

The first 90 days, I'm not.in a rush to prove anything. There's certain aspects of the
Department that | need to become educated on, new policies, and procedures and the
way things are done, how to“find the information that | need to find, but more
importantly, it's the people. | need to understand who the staff are in each of the
divisions, what they do, how they do it, and looking at strategic plans and guidance, and
engaging the staff, but also all of the stakeholders.

That's really my priority before jumping in to make any recommendations or changes or
anythinglike that. I'm notin a hurry to do that.

There’s also parts of the State that I'm not so familiar with. I've never done the drive
from north to south or south to north on the eastern side. | know, but you know I've
done 50 and 80, and the drive to Vegas I've done many times, and then down to LA from
Vegas, I'm familiar with that area.

When | say stakeholders, it's also, you know, territory chairs and their stakeholders. |

need to understand what the expectations are, not only from Lieutenant Governor and
the Commission, but also the Governor, but also what are the expectations of me from

61



PAZINA:

LYLE:

PAZINA:

ESTIPONA:

LYLE:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | December 11, 2019
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

the staff, what are they hoping to see from me, and also from obviously the various
divisions, and division heads as well at the same time.

So, | see myself being a sponge, asking lots of questions, how things are done. And
throughout the whole process, peaple will get to know me and understand my capacity
and what I'm going to be able to bring and do for Nevada. Thank you.

Hello, this is Julie Pazina from Las Vegas, thank you so much for joining us today. My
question would be both what excites you, and what scares you most about the role of
Director of Tourism and Cultural Affairs?

Let’s start with the scary one. It's obviously, government, and it's something that | am
not so familiar with. | take everything in my stride, and it doesn’t faze me in any way,
but it's the unknown, and | know that I've got to understand the way that everything
works here.

What excites me is being able to make a difference, and | believe I've got my skills and
my talent to offer. And | like to think out of the box. I'm not scared to try things.

I'm okay with failing, so long as there is learning afterwards. And | like to be creative.
We've got to stand out from our competition. We have to be truthful to our visitors,
totally truthful and transparent. i really do believe that once | get in looking at agencies
that.you work with and the different departments and what everybody does, and just
be able to step back, | have this ability to step back and evaluate and look a ways
forward.

My colleagues in the office often make fun of me at staff meetings, because they’ll pose
an issue or a problem, and I've actually got the solution before they've finished
explaining what the problem is; so my brain kind of works that way and | will try to -
there’s always a solution. We can do anything we want. There is always an answer. So,
I’m excited to bring that approach to Nevada.

Thank you very much.

Edward Estipona for the record. I’m just kind of curious. You've seen all different parts
of the world at this point. What do you think Nevada has at this point, that they bring to
the table that nobody else can? What is the unique opportunity from a tourism
standpoint that we can sell, that nobody else can sell?

I've traveled all over the world, and all over the States as well. And Nevada is-Ilook at it
from new eyes. We see it every day. And we often come up with an answer because
we know it, and we're very familiar.

| think someone coming in for the first time and seeing it, especially international
guests, and a lot of domestic visitors as well, it’s like it's something you've only ever
seen in the movies. It's a dream, it's not—they haven’t seen it and experienced it before.

62



MARSHALL:

LYLE:

MARSHALL:

KROLICKI:

MARSHALL:

LYLE:

MARSHALL:

LYLE:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | December 11, 2019
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

You have the mountains, one of the most mountainous states in the country, but you
also have the deserts. You have, if you want to call it the Wild West kind of cowboy
history that people are intrigued by. | remember taking an Indian fam, we were in
Genoa, at the Mormon station, absolutely fascinated by all the artifacts, and there was a
docent there that explained what things were there.

People are really, truly interested in the history of what the place is really like. And it's
uncovering that and conveying that in the correct way, marketing it in the correct way,
so | believe you'll be successful. You're honest, you tell the people what it is, but you
scrape down and let people see hidden gems and feel like they're the first person to
ever experience that. I've done something that nobody else has done.

Thank you. So, guys we're on the little time clock there. Mr. Lyle, do you have any
concluding remarks you wanted to make?

After speaking with you today, thank you. i've enjoyed talking to you all. | truly believe
and am excited about the possibility. | believe that | am a qualified candidate, and I'm
excited about the opportunity.

Hopefully, I've conveyed my experience and background and passion effectively to you
all today. | am highly motivated. | do commit 100 percent. One of the things I've
learned is not to be too over-zealous. But at the end of the day, you know | pride myself
on what I've done, and I've achieved so far, personally and professionally.

You know | hold myself highly accountable for my actions. | also pride myself on my
integrity at the same time. It's probably the most valuable thing | have. Thank you.

Thank you. | have heard wonderful things about you, and | appreciate it, despite what
Krolicki says. | haven’t heard anything about your partying techniques.

I have pictures.

Anyway, so | appreciate it. What we're doing now is if you have any references, if you
could provide those to Katie, if you haven’t already. We are interviewing a subset today
of the candidates and the Board will make a decision today of three candidates to give
to me, and then | will take those to the Governor. Then it's within the Governor's
purview what he chooses to do. Does that sound clear?

Okay. Do you have any timeline guidelines?
Well, so I'm hesitant to say, because | have had those, and each one has been dumped
off of the edge, so all | can say to you is that it’s been a while, and we're really trying to

move this forward.

Okay. Thank you for your time.

63



MARSHALL:

WILSON:

MARSHALL:

PAZINA:

BREAK

Nevada Commission on Tourism | December 11, 2019
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

Thank you very much.

Kate Wilson for the record, so we have two options. If you guys look at the discussion
Agenda Item J, there is a regulation that we have to discuss. It was posted about two or
three months ago, and because of the way that it was posted, it had to be done after
1:00 p.m.

Our next applicant is not technically until 2:30, they’re here, we can continue with the
applicants, and just go straight through those, and do the regulation at the end, or we
can take a break, have the Deputy Attorney General explain the regulation to you guys
and pick back up with the applications at 2:30.

Julie, we're taking a little break of like five, ten minutes if that's okay, and then we're
going to do a regulation and then we're going to go back on the interviews, okay?

Sounds perfect, thank you.

Public Hearing on Notice of Intent to Act Upon Regulation

MARSHALL:

TARUC:

MARSHALL:

TARUC:

MARSHALL:

All right, guys we’re going to get this show on the road. We only need Krolicki and a
couple people.

Okay. Justin is doing the presentation. We're waiting for two people, okay?
All right, thanks Lieutenant Governor.

All right, hold on a second. All right, guys, I'm calling the meeting back to order. Krolicki
is here. So, Justin did you want to take it away.

We are taking things out of order guys, we are currently on Agenda Item J, 1 is the
discussion, K is the potential motion on a regulation. And Justin if you wanted to do the
explanation.

Sure, thank you Madam Chair, this is Justin Taruc, Deputy Attorney General for the
record. It looks like this discussion is regarding LCB File No. RO80-18. It looks like this
specific proposed regulation sets up a procedure as far as if individuals want to petition
this Commission to adopt, file or amend, or repeal any of its regulations.

On page two of the packet, it shows the proposed language. And it looks like within 30
days of the petition this Board or Commission will have to either deny it, initiate
lawmaking procedures, or accept it.

Do you want to give us some background what's going on here?

64



TARUC:

MARSHALL:

RECESS

MARSHALL:

TARUC:

MARSHALL:

TARUC:

MARSHALL:

SANTOS:

MARSHALL:

TARUC:

MARSHALL:

SANTOS:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | December 11, 2019
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

| apologize Madam Chair, but | wasn’t informed that | should be giving a full
presentation on this. | just have the information that was provided to me in this Board
packet.

It's my understanding that the Notice of Intent for the regulation was posted last
month, and so that’s why this is on the Agenda today.

Okay, guys, I'm going to take a recess for two seconds, please.

All right, I'm going to bring the meeting back to order. Justin, we're going to interview a
couple other people. Apparently by law we have to'do this by the end of the year. So,
I'm going to give you some time.

| understand you were asked to present on this, so I'm gaing to give you some time that
you can go back please, get a hold of another DAG or whatever, but you've got to be
able to present, so this Board can make a decision on this by the end, okay?

We're going to go forward with interviews. You can either get a hold of another DAG,
go back the AG's office or do something, but'we've got to get this done by the end of
the year.

llunderstand..

So, go ahead and get yourself prepped on this, okay? Does that sound good?

(Okay, thank you. Yeah, thanks Madam Chair.

Yeah, no worries. " Okay.
Can | ask hjm a question before, so he comes [inaudible] these questions for him,

I'm going to have one of the Board Members give you a question so you can prepare for
that, if that helps?

Sure.
Okay.
Thank you Madam Chair, Herb Santos for the record. One of my concerns is, is that this
is amending Nevada Administrative Code Section 231. When | logk at Nevada

Administrative Code 231, it’s entitled Economic Development and Tourism, and there is
an entire section under 231, which only addresses the Office of Economic Development.

65



MARSHALL:

TARUC:

MARSHALL:

KROLICKI:

MARSHALL;

TARUC:

SANTOS:

MARSHALL:

SANTOS:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | December 11, 2019
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

And my concern is that this amendment is—I just want to get a little bit of a history on
this amendment to know whether or not this is going to put a requirement on our
Taurism Commission to basically generate regulations as it applies to tourism, and then
the inherent conflict within this section that’s being proposed that we’re supposed to
vote on, where it's telling us that we have to act within 30 days of getting a petition,
when we only meet four times a year, and trying to get a quorum to be able to act on
something within 30 days, which to me is an impossibility. But there is no other
administrative code regulations that apply to tourism, unless I've missed it.

So, if you can go back and research something, that's what I'd like you to be able to
come back and explain to me.

The other thing Justin, | know you feel like you're being broadsided, and you are, just so
we know. But the other thing is, if you can get the Attorney General's office to say that
we don’t have to do this until March, whatever you can do, okay. But | can’t have the
Board taking a motion on something that they don’t have a full legal briefing on.

You've got a couple options there that you’re going to have to work your way through,
Merry Christmas.  So, we'll do the other interviews, okay, and then !'ll come back to you
with whatever your recommendation is for what we do in this meeting, what we have to
do in this meeting, what should we do. Does that sound okay to you?

That sounds fine, thanks Madam Chair. Il be right back then.

Yeah, | get it, okay. Okay, Board is that okay? Because he wasn't...

Madam  Chair, | know you know this, it's Brian Krolicki for the record, you know in
statute it has to say that you have the ability to create a regulation. | mean | think you
just said that Herb. But just to make sure that-I'm not sure what regulations NCOT or
it's maybe within the different divisions there is an ability, but it should specifically state
that in that section of statute that thou can do a regulation. So, this confuses me a lot
too. | thought your remedy is perfect for the situation.

Justin, yes.

Sorry,-Madam Chair, Commissioner Krolicki, NRS 231.200 provides that the Division of
Tourism may adopt regulations to administer and carry out the policies and programs of
the Division of Tourism. | believe that is referenced in the Board packet as far as the
authority.

Did he cite the statute or [inaudible]?

He cited the statute.

All right.

Bb



MARSHALL:

TARUC:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | December 11, 2019
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

Anyway, I'm going to give you time, Justin to sweat it out there, all right. And we’ll do
the interviews, okay?

Thank you.

Applicant Brenda Nebesky

MARSHALL:

NEBESKY:

MARSHALL:

NEBESKY:

MARSHALL:

NEBESKY:

Okay, so Brenda, let me explain to you the process, so we are here with a subset of
candidates are being brought forward today. I'm going to give you an opportunity to
make your opening presentation, and then we’ll ask some questions.

For convenience sake, I'm asking the questions but it’s really the Board that's going to
do the follow up, right. And then at.the end, 'll explain to you how we're proceeding
after that. All the questions are exactly the same for, every candidate. | think that's it.
Am | saying what | said to everybedy, I'm trying to remember? Does that sound good?

That sounds great.

Okay. We have had an issue where some of the candidates had to move the mic a little
forward, | don’t know...

Is that better?

Better there?, Okay. Let me start by asking.you, if you wanted to make any opening

remarks to the Board.

Sure, because!l rezalize though I'know many of you, you probably don’t know that much
about me.

My family has been in northern Nevada for generations, my kids are the fifth. So, there
aren’t too many of us who have been here that long. In fact, my grandmother actually
attended the Fourth Ward School with her sisters. And my dad’s side is a ranching
family. |feellike | am hard-wired to have a deep understanding of the rural mindset for
that reason.

I've graduated from UNR, thinking | was going to be a copywriter. | also have a major in
English Lit, so | thought | was going to be a writer. But very quickly within marketing
sort of fell in love with graphic software, | fell in love with Adobe, so | ended up jumping
over to the visual side of marketing.

Went on to work in marketing leadership at a very hig publicly traded company called
True Blue that provided temporary work forces, they owned five companies, some of
them with national store fronts. And in retrospect that did a lot to inform my job now,
because even though we were marketing for all of them, they had very different
customers, very different sectors.

67



MARSHALL:

NEBESKY:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | December 11, 2019
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

When | came here as Art Director, | think | found my calling with Destination Marketing
for two reasons. One is, | think | got to finally focus on one product, and it’s the product
| love, which is Nevada. And the other was, | found tourism as an industry and a
community. And it really is something pretty marvelous, | mean it has to do with — you
know what we all have in common as humans, it's wonderfully human, and it’s tied to
the joy of travel.

That was lovely, thank you. All the applicants were asked to present a writing plan, an
action plan and a writing sample, and | wondered if you wanted to speak to what you
presented?

Sure. | brought it with me, just so | could refresh my own memory, if | needed to. So, |
chose Lincoln County for a number of reasons. One is, it does not have its own tourism
entity to advocate on its behalf. It has proximity ta Clark County. It has the maximum
number of parks, state—the parks to promote some of them lesser known. And it has
you know some really good sort of grassroots efforts within it already. It has one of the,
I would say, best Tribal tourism products in some of the petroglyphs in that area are the
most unique in the world.

And then I went on to kind of enumerate how | would do it, which is to leverage both
programs that already exist within Travel Nevada, and then some of the new initiatives
that | believe very strongly in.

So, some of the old ones are-they're not old but you know current are to market it
within our existing road trip itineraries, and as you can see if you're looking at it, it
touches on several of them. One of the challenges in Nevada is it's a big state, it's vast,
so what our road trip campaign addresses is to make the most of the journey. One of
our headlines that | think'is wonderful is Journey Before Destination.

What can the traveler take in in‘between those miles, those miles between community,
and there is so much. That's one thing is to have Lincoln County-you know, leverage
that as much as possible.

And the other are some of these programs that are you know up and coming, are sort of
in our future, | hope, one of those being destination development. | really feel like this
is something that the Division of Tourism needs to embrace. We've had our marketing
grant program in place for decades, which | think is a form of destination development,
but this would be different.

This would be a real partnership with economic development, the new office of Outdoor
Recreation, and our own cultural agencies with the Arts Council, with our museums, and
especially the Tribal Policy Liaison within the Nevada Indian Commission.

And what this would mean is going into communities to listen to them, to listen to
residents about what they feel is really missing, and how we could contribute to their
quality of life. That really is our mission, you know it's to drive visitors into rural

68



MARSHALL:

NEBESKY:

Nevada Commissian on Tourism | December 11, 2019
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

communities, but that's the outcome we want is to enhance the quality of life of
residents.

So, listen to them about how tourism product might contribute to that, and maybe help
them think about it too, because many people don’t-aren’t aware of all the options.
How could maybe industrial tourism contribute to their lives? How could agri-tourism?
Maybe how could the Arts Council help them build a collaboration of local artisans, etc.,
etc.

S0, it helped them kind of took at tourism through a new lens. And prior to that how -
what incentives through economic development need to be there first, for tourism—of
tourism product to even exist. Because | don't think tourism is always the lead, but it's
certainly a contributor.

“Discover Your Nevada” is a campaign that we've had in place for a while. It's always
been seasonal, and | really think that encouraging Nevadans to travel within Nevada is
something that we don’t do enough. So, especially in Clark County, | don't think too
many people consider traveling north for a vacation.

So, we plan to address'that audience all the.time now. And one of the partnerships I've
initiated is with the .Department of Education, so we have approval to distribute a
publication in the schools, statewide. Fourth grade students already study Nevada, so
we're-going to have Nevada magazine produce:a very professional, beautifully
interactive publication that will givé them not only the facts on Nevada history, but then
beautifully tie in all of our other agencies here..

So, we'll be able to tell them all about our State museums and western heritage within
the State.” We'll ‘be able_to tell teachers how to take advantage of our arts and
education programs, etc., etc.

And then also, you know | was thinking in terms of the international visitor, they don’t
recognize borders, and neither should we. S, if we could initiate a parks route that was
in collaboration with Utah, that would take them through our State Parks and to Great
Basin, and then into their Mighty 5. We have the advantage of there are large crowds in
all those Utah Parks, and many of ours don't. | mean so it's a wonderful contrast, and |
think that is something that could be done fairly easily.

| can talk about any other aspect of it, if you'd like me to. But I'll stop there.

Okay, moving then to the second question, if you could talk about your experience in
hospitality andfor destination marketing and if you have any administrative or
government experience.

I do. I don’t think | put it on my resume, because | don’t believe in going back too far on
a resume. But as a much younger person | worked for the Chamber of Commerce, back
when they had a separate membership for downtown businesses, downtown core.

69



MARSHALL:

NEBESKY:

MARSHALL:

NEBESKY:

MARSHALL:

NEBESKY:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | December 11, 2019
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

| started to learn a lot about hospitality and destination marketing there. | also worked
at the city of Reno, managing their event program. That was at a time when-and this
prior to Commissioner Delone’s tenure-but back when our CVA had a robust event’s
grant program, and we took full advantage of that. | had to manage permitting and
collaboration with other city agencies, then actual management on the street for
events.

As | said when | came here, | was you know kind of fully immersed in destination
marketing, came here as Art Director, | was promoted to Chief Marketing Officer, then
as Deputy, now in my acting role. So, I've had all aspects of destination marketing
through this agency, starting with building content, which is the center of everything,
right? Content is king and as our Director worked with all of our content development
manager, and that’s how | learned-that’s how | hegan to learn about all of the
destinations throughout the State, because you have know them well enough to do
that.

Thank you and did you want to talk about administrative, or government experience?

well, | would say in my role as deputy, and now as acting, | have definitely had a trial by
fire, if you will. But am certainly learning every day more about administration. The
agencies are very different. They have different missions. They have different types of
people who work thera,

And they all have different needs, different |egislative needs. So, I've not only had to
get a grasp beyond marketing, because | think | learned that as the Chief Marketing
Officer what thelr marketing needs were, but maybe other things, like what professional
development is necessary within those agencies, how can the Division of Tourism
collaborate with them, and help them.,

it's really the integration of all the agencies that is the administration of it, and helping
those directors do their jobs better.

Thank you. You may get less questions because everyone knows you.
And everyone's tired.

| think we know vou're currently employed, and we know you're not looking to leave.
But if you want to explain why you would like this position as Executive Director.

Well, I've been test driving it for exactly a year this week, it's my anniversary as acting.
And | think there are-one thing that isn't tied directly to me, but | think is very relevant,
is | think this agency deserves the continuity of keeping me in the role. We haven’t had
an appointed Director in well over two years, and in 18 years there have been seven
different Directors.

70



SANTOS:

NEBESKY:

MUN:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | December 11, 2019
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

And | think it is always true that when the leadership at the top has changed, there’s a
reset. And there probably should be, | mean that person has to you know take
ownership of it, but | think now there is so much going on with the new administration,
and with just the timing of what's happening here, the next three months is critical for
us to just keep the momentum going. So, that’s one of the reasons.

The other is | think, you know, really one of my strengths is I'm an alliance builder, and
I'm really proud of some of the action I've taken even within this year. Our
Memorandum of Understanding with the BLM is something that is the first of its kind in
the country, which has given tourism access to public land throughout the State. We
have a similar agreement with State Parks, and a wonderful partnership with them. As)
mentioned we have this agreement now with.the Department of Education, you know
that’s been sort of kicked around fora long time, what could we do to help students,
and how can we build sort of a Nevada brand loyalist.from that age? And I think that is
the way to do it, you know we have'a partnership now, and everybody is excited about
it and you know inspired to do it.

| think also you know the Governor has Task:Forces in place that are kind of subsets of
the Cabinet, and again we’ll be partnered with GOED and the Department of Education,
not on those projects, but | just am excited about that. And | think that's the way we
make each other stronger, as state entities.

Herb Santos for the record. When the first rounds of interviews went, you didn’t apply.

,And now you've applied this time. Can you explain‘'to us what was it that made you

decide not to apply the first time and then you'changed your mind and applied this
time?

A couple of things, | had some things going on in my personal life, that | wasn’t sure—this

Jjob takes alot of personal investment, it's a lot of above and beyond, a lot of extra time,

a lot of energy. ‘And | just wasn't sure | could do them both, both personally and
professionally, to take it on.

The other is, as the Deputy Director, | oversaw the Division of Tourism, which was what |
was the mostiinterested in, it was what | knew, it was what | was good at, that's where
‘my_people were and I'm very happy in that rele. But | think over the past year, I've
learned that you know | have more to contribute to this, than | thought | did. And 'm
more effective than | thought | might be.

As | said a |ot of these initiatives that | take ownership of, | would hate to see them not
happen now. It would bother me a great deal.

Hi, Cynthia Mun for the record. Brenda, so you've been the Acting Director for the past

year and as the person leading the organization, what are your strengths as a leader,
and what are the opportunities?

71



NEBESKY:

ESTIPONA:

NEBESKY:

MARSHALL:

NEBESKY:

MARSHALL:

NEBESKY:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | December 11, 2019
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

well, my strengths, | think | mentioned one of them, | think I'm great at collaborating,
and it’s hard always to judge who's willing to make the same investment in a program or
project as you are, but | will always ask.

| will always push into an area that the agency hasn’t been before, I'm kind of unafraid
of that. I'm undaunted | guess is one of the qualities | have. I'm also someone who |
don’t just accept our inherited circumstances. As a State agency we have a lot of guide
rails, some of them are good, some of them aren’t. And you know to act with some
latitude within those isn’t always easy.

But | always ask, why are we doing this? Why? Isit something we have to do? Can we
do it differently? | always ask, you know, what's next? And in marketing that's always
important. We have a lot of website visitation, what happens next?

So, | think those are some of my strengths, | always push, and | always ask.

Edward Estipona for the record. On the flip side of that, what's been the biggest
challenge now that you've been in that seat for the last year, what's your biggest
challenge and what do you think at this point are the solutions around those challenges?

| think the biggest challenge.is the role itself, is odd, that the Department was put
together, there was a Department. of Cultural Affairs, and a separate Department, you
know, for Tourism, and they were put together for some economic savings which were
minor.

Some of it doesn’t work quite frankly, but | think the challenge has been to integrate
those—and they’re all so important, each agency, none is more important than the
other, ‘I think Js identifying where we all intersect, and how we can best serve one
another, but yeah, there’s no perfect person for this position. | think it's something of a
unicarn. But'| think integration is the key, and just communication with the other
Directors.

Okay, largest operating budget excluding debt service that you've been responsible for,
and what year was that?

Well, the largest one is definitely here, so the Division of Tourism’s budget is right
around 32 million. The entire Department is something like 47 million,

Okay. Largest number of staff that you've been directly responsible for, and the largest
number of direct reports that you've been responsible for over the course of your
career?

There were 24 direct reports within the Division of Tourism. | think there are currently

117 within the Department, there are some positions unfilled, I think it's more like 125
total.

72



MARSHALL:

NEBESKY:

ROBINSON:

NEBESKY:

ROBINSON:

NEBESKY:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | December 11, 2019
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

You're just giving a rundown of-okay all right. So, what do you see as your strongest
skillset if we look at sales, marketing, or management? Is there something you feel that
makes you uniquely qualified for this position? | know you kind of were answering that,
but we are asking everyone the same questions, so maybe just elaborate where you’ve
already answered.

Okay. | did-definitely marketing, it's been my career, the bulk of my career.
Management would be probably second, sales last, though our agency doesn’t do any
traditional sales. There's never a "hey I've closed the deal, sign on the dotted line” sort
of sales. It's a bit of a misnomer,

As | started to say | think partnerships are definitely my strength. | think | have a very
clear sense of our mission, and defending the mission is a big part of the job. It comes
up all the time, more than | ever'would have guessed. So, overall as a department
what's our mission, what's tourism’s mission, what is each agency’s mission and how to
support it.

The other thing | think | have a sense of what Nevada’s strengths are as a destination,
and they aren't as easy to identify, especially if you're not from here.: | think our great
strengths are our public lands, and our, preserved western heritage, those two things
together are incredibly strong, and it also ﬁappens to be what ties our department
together.

Hi Brenda.

HL

Pam Robinson for the record. 1'listened to you talk a little bit about the destination

marketing, and we recognize the RSCVA and LVCVA do that pretty well, and they create
districts, and I've got a couple of thoughts here.

So, how would you see trying to develop those types of districts and destinations in the
rural community that have not yet been done? And with the new development, with
the new division of outdoor recreation, Travel Nevada has done a terrific job | think in

promoting outdoor recreation, and how would you see working with DCNR in that new

division to_enhance and integrate that without duplicative services around, so that
we’re.all working in the same way?

Well, I think translating the idea of districts to smaller communities is a wonderful way
to look at it, because those are all organized around something, so it's either an activity,
like an arts district, or it's an audience of you know - of another kind, whether it's
culture, or foodie’s—and that is one way to do destination development.

The outdoor recreation office | think is still being defined, and needs to kind of evolve
into its space, but Travel Nevada promotes the heck out of outdoor recreation

73



WINDBIGLER:

NEBESKY:

MUN:

NEBESKY:

Mevada Commission on Tourism | December 11, 2019
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

opportunities all the time, but it doesn’t get into business development, like helping a
community identify hey what outdoor recreation business could we attract here?

That would be economic development’s kind of purview, but | think working together
and being able to say once that business exists, we can promote it and make it part of
our itinerary along a route or promote it in any way possible is an advantage that
doesn’t always exist.

Kristen Windbigler for the record. You said earlier that content is king, and creating
good content is not an easy thing to do. | would like to hear a little bit more about your
ideas about content strategy.

Well, you know we really rely on our tourism partners to kind of spark that for us. So, |
know when any Travel Nevada staff is out in the State, they're really looking to meet
people, and have conversations that inspire content ideas, or you know there’s that.
There's just sort of organic creation of content.

And then there's from the other side which is our overall brand and content related to
that, basic brand awareness is kind of a broader category, and in many ways is easier to
do. But | think it all has to do with talking_ to the right people and getting the details.

As many of you know our “Don’t Fence Me In” campaign was based on the real stories
of real Nevadans, and it was the details of those stories that really gave life to all of that
content.

As the Folk Life Director, you know that. |1 don’t need to tell you that.

Cynthia Mun. My earlier question was really specific to leadership, so I'm going to ask
you a slightly different way. Having known you for a year, | know you're very well-liked
by your staff. .Can you tell me what your staff would say about you in terms of your
leadership, and what you think would make a great leader? Like what are your ideas on
what makes a great leader?

well, | hope that they would say that | treat them all as professionals. Our staff has
some unusual circumstances in that many of them travel internationally. A lot of our
marketing team is out on weekends and working strange hours, and | really never
expect to hold anyone’s hand. | expect everyone to be a professional.

| expect our Directors to bring a lot of vision about their own departments and, you
know, new ideas that we're currently looking at writing a new strategic plan, and | look
as much to my staff to help me write that, as | do my own brain, and that’s the way it
should be in my opinion.

| think the Department Director is there just to facilitate a better work environment and
to assist the good people in those leadership positions to do theirs,

74



STOLDAL:

NEBESKY:

KROLICKI:

NEBESKY:

KROLICKI:

NEBESKY:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | December 11, 2019
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

| hope this is not an odd question, but likely it is, if the Commission voted today and the
Governor says you got the job, what difference is that going to make in how you
approach your job?

Well, | think it does, being acting is a lot of people aren’t sure. Well, the assumption is
well why don't you have the real job? So, it kind of removes that layer of-makes you
credible in other words, right?

| will finally have the authority to just move forward with as much momentum as | care
to give it, instead of-but | never minded- like.I'explained | never minded the Deputy
Director position, because | think that was every bit as exciting and held as much
potential, but now I think | can support the person in that role in the right way, and give
them more opportunity while still-you know, Commissioner Stoldal | was just with you
at the Museum Board Meeting, and there is just another entire world of opportunity
there, that if | can help advance that, | would like to.

Madam Chair may | ask questions, Brian Krolicki for the recard.. And first, | just want to
say thank you. You know we are all grateful for what you've done for this past year
plus, and everyone,on the team, but it's a unigue hardship that you've endured, in not
having the full responsibility, but truly grateful for all the keeping together you've
performed. So, regardless of what happens today or down the street.

Thank you.

But I've been asking people today, you know similar to what Mr. Stoldal just asked, was

you'know in the first 90 days'you've got a building that you know the people, you know

their. strengths, you know the customers, you know the world, you know our partners,
you know the stakeholders. But rather than just having the authority on day one of 90,
what are the things that you might envision, if youve got the baton for the next 90 days,
what are you aching to do if this'not a custodial role anymore, but one of-this is your
department to run_ under the leadership of the Chair and the Governor?

Well, as | alluded to the timing is such that we have to start building our new budgets
for the biennium as of March. And also demonstrate any bill draft intent, so there's—
and there’s a lot to figure out. What do we want to ask for budgetarily? How do we
break it down? we’'ll have to look at each agency and help them do that.

We also have, as you may be aware, the problem of Nevade Moagazine being held te an
enterprise fund by statute when it is faced, as any print publication in the world is faced
with, the problem of operating as a business, that depends on ad revenue.

And we need to change that, it's just time. It's time to change it. And preserve the best

of Nevada Magazine, make sure Nevada Magazine exists but re-imagine what it might
be in a very digital era. And that would all before the end of March.

75



MARSHALL:

NEBESKY:

MARSHALL:

NEBESKY:

MARSHALL:

NEBESKY:

MARSHALL:

NEBESKY:

MARSHALL:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | December 11, 2019
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

Okay, the last question then, how would you define heritage tourism, and how do you
think the Department of Tourism and Cultural Affairs can leverage this type of tourism in
Nevada specifically.

Well, we always talk to a cultural traveler as an audience, but | think of heritage as
something kind of more uniquely specific to-as | mentioned before, our preserved
western heritage. We of course think first of our museum system, and one of their tag
lines is "The heritage lives here,” which is a tag line technically | authored, because it
does. So, you know they're of course our priority in regard to heritage tourism. But
there’s so much else, there’s so much more. You know her historic markers are you
know we have more ghost towns than living towns. We really have so much in regard to
heritage that is there.

It's not necessarily staffed or something that we can collect dollars surrounding, but it is
part of the experience. And so, to make sure that that traveler understands along each
itinerary what's available to them to enjoy is how | would do it.

Okay, 50, | finished the questions. Did you want to make any concluding remarks? Or
did you have any concluding remarks?

well, | think | may have already said it. You know i am really an advocate of the people
here. The staff here is just really incredible. | mean some of them you couldn’t recruit
or train for, people who are as passionate about Nevada as they are. And that's just a
pleasure. You know it’s a pleasure to work with people like that.

| think we have some real vision, and things that | would just be so proud to be a part of
coming up. And you know | think it's an interesting time, with the outdoor recreation
office, and some of these partnerships that are available to us, | think we're going to do

more in the next ten years than we have in a long time. And | just feel that.

Thank you. So, let me explain to you what you might already know. | think we have one
more candidate.

Okay.

If you have any references, if you could please give them to Katie Wilson.

Okay, | included mine in my resume, so yes.

That's good. The Board is determined to make its recommendations today. They will
recommend to me three candidates. And then | will take those candidates to the

Governor. Then it is within his purview.

We are, as you know, the process is taking a little longer, so we are trying to move this
process along. Thank you for recognizing the one-year anniversary date, that's lovely.

76



NEBESKY:

MARSHALL:

WILSON:

MARSHALL:

WILSON:

MARSHALL:

SPEAKER:

MARSHALL:

WILSON:

MARSHALL:

MARSHALL:
Applicant Jeff Klein

MARSHALL:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | December 11, 2019
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

So, that's where we are. | think that’s it, right? Yes, okay, so that’s what we’re going to
do. And everyone, we have one more.

Okay, thank you everyone for giving me the time. | didn’t want to assume that | would
be one of the people. | really appreciate you giving me the opportunity. And it’s great
working with you, even if | shouldn’t be the appointed. It’s wonderful to work with all of
you. Thank you so much.

Okay, guys, so where are we on timing?

In a strange turn of events we are ahead of schedule, but our last applicant also just got
here, so | asked him if he was willing to start a little early, and he said yes. So, if you
guys are good.

Okay, then while we’re interviewing the last applicant, Katie, if you could find out - so
the DAG is not here, okay.

Correct.

And Herb has told me he doesn’t wantto work for me. So, when we get to discussion
part, | think we may be required to have a DAG-here? What do you think?

Oh, we're talking about that.

Yeah, | think we may — anyway, I'm not sure, but | don’t want us to go through this
whole process, and then be told that it was for naught.

So, while we Interview the |ast person, because we're asking the same set of questions,
and they're providing the answers, | don't really see the exposure, but can you make
sure that we are in line with whatever we need to be in line with, right after we finish
the next person? 'Is that okay?

Yeah, Kate Wilson for the record, Dee Dykes is going to go and message him, and just let
him know to be back within 30 minutes, yes.

Okay, thanks, okay. All right, so guys do you need a break, or do you want to take the
last person? Are we ready to go?

Okay, let's do that then, all right.

Hi, how are you? So, my name is Kate Marshall, Lieutenant Governor, and this is our
Board, and we have Julie Pazina is also a Board member in Vegas. I'm going to talk to
you a little bit about our process, and then at the end, I'll talk to you a little bit more,
okay?

77



KLEIN:

MARSHALL:

KLEIN:

MARSHALL:

CARANO:

MARSHALL:

DYKES:

MARSHALL:

KLEIN:

MARSHALL:

KLEIN:

MARSHALL:

KLEIN:

MARSHALL:

KLEIN:

MARSHALL:

KLEIN:

MARSHALL:

KLEIN:

Mevada Commission on Tourism | December 11, 2019
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

Good.

So, this is like 45 minutes with a cake-so we have like 45 minutes.

My cake made it on time, so that’s perfect.

The cake made it on time...

Happy Birthday.

Look at this.

This is from Brand USA [inaudible].

Oh, very good, good timing on your part.

it's all a part of my plan.

With the sweets, yeah, ckay. What's going to happen is I'm going to let you provide
some introductory remarks, and then I'll ask a series of questions. All the candidates are
being asked the same questions.

Great.

For ease of presentation, I'll be asking the questions, but it's really the Board and they'l
be following up, okay?

Perfect.

So, we'll start there, and then when we finish, I'll explain to you the rest of the process,
does that sound good?

Great, absolutely.

So, then to start, did you want to provide some introductory remarks.

Sure. I'm excited to be here. I'm a native Nevadan, so when | saw the opportunity pop
up | was excited to throw my hat in the ring, and see if we can give this a try, so I'm

excited to be here, and | appreciate the opportunity to talk with you guys.

Then moving on to the questions. You were asked to provide an action plan, and a
writing sample.

Yes.

78



MARSHALL:

KLEIN:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | December 11, 2019
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

I wondered if you wanted to make some remarks or talk a little bit about what you
provided to the Board.

Sure, yeah, so for the action plan, | chose White Pine County. | thought the whole area
of the State is—it really appeals to me personally, and | think there’s a lot-a lot of great
itemns that can be promoted within that region of the State.

In particular, the outdoor, I'm very much into outdoor, so | thought that would be a
great thing to promote, and something that Nevada offers a lot of, ranging you know
across the entire State.

My strategies were to work hand in hand with the local municipalities for diversification
of the tourism opportunity. More programs, more events, and just promoting
everything that the County has to offer, so everything from the Christmas railroad that's
going on now, which is fantastic to the ghost town adventures, to the Great Basin
photography.

So, taking what=not only taking what they have, but adding to that-and really pushing it
across traditional;press. My background is in public relations, so pushing it across

traditional press:opportunities with print and Align, and also social media as well.

What's that? Cake and music, | braught it all today for you guys. The choir is coming in
any second.

So, yeah, with the strategy number one, so it's with the outdoor recreation, obviously

it's one of the fastest growing industries in the country, in the world, and | think the

County'is prime to.really promote everything they offer. The Great Basin is one of the
least visited National Parks in the country, so it's something that could definitely be
pushed a little bit more.

And then just some of the other unigue items that | find interesting, | think would be
great for promotions is the longest road in America, maybe produce like a marathon
across, obviously not the whole thing, | don’t think people would make it across, but at
least a port]on of it. You know ice fishing lessons, ATV tours, that kind of thing.

The second prong of strategy one was the Native American cultural events, really push,
we have such a big foundation of Native Americans in the state, so really promote —
promote the history, and you know talk about the things that all the Tribes are doing
today.

And finally, the historical tours. The ghost town tours and bike tours across Ely, and talk
about all the old shops that are there, and that—so, really just encompassing, the first
one is talking about everything the County provides, and talk about-hopefully come up
with some new opportunities, which is what I've-l have a background in public
relations, different clients is coming up with new events and interesting ways to

78



MARSHALL:

KLEIN:

MARSHALL:

KLEIM:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | December 11, 2019
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

promote clients that either are new or have been around for a while, looking for a
refreshing—a freshening—-a freshening of their-the promotional strategies.

For strategy two, was the increased overall awareness, just again, | mentioned this
befaore the traditional media, gateway to the Great Basin National Park, | think that's
one of the big ones of the county. It’s such a beautiful part of the State, and like 1 said,
it's one of the least visited National Parks in the country.

| think it's something that— know | would be interested in checking it out more, I'm
really into photography and | think that with social medial, | think it's prime for
Instagram locations and really pushing the stories on that. It's such a visual worid now.
Everything is pushed on Instagram and social media, and I think there’s guite a few
opportunities there with Great Basin.

And then strategy three was just continuing the branding and marketing of White Pine.
So, kind of wrapping all together any sort of-keeping everything in line together with
you know it's the gateway to the=so, there's Great Basin National Park and in the middle
of everywhere, and | love that, that's [inaudible], that’s kind of the gist of the campaign.

Thank you, Okay, moving to the next question then. Please explain your experience in
hospitality and/or destination marketing and do you have any administrative or
government experience?

Nothing with government or administrative, but with the travel and the tourism, I've
been working in public relations for about 13 years now, and I've had a huge range of
clients, ranging from entertainment to hospitality, and nonprofits and the cannabis
industry. which | had the pleasure of creating a leading a national campaign for a
cannabis client that | have down in Las Vegas.

So, when they kicked off the recreational end-we started with them, with the medicinal
and moved into recreational. So, we had media members from around the world come
in, and really led that campaign.

So, everything 've done over the last 13 years in public relations is really focused on
driving tours not only to my clients, but to the — I'm based in Las Vegas, 5o to the City
and to the State as a whole, and it's something I'm really enjoying, I'm passionate about
it.

Ckay. | take it you're currently employed. And if so, why are you looking to leave your
current organization?

It's not so much that I'm looking to leave. | think this is a great opportunity. Like |
mentioned, {'m a native Nevadan, my roots are in the State, | was born in Vegas, went to
college in Reno, met my wife in Reno, got married in Tahoe and had my kids in Vegas.

So, all across the State, and I'm truly passionate about the State, | love it. And this
whole process has been fun, I've really gotten to research more of the State than I've

80



MARSHALL:

KLEIN:

MARSHALL:

KLEIN:

MARSHALL:

CARANO:

KLEIN:

MARSHALL:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | December 11, 2019
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

done in a while. It made me realize how much | love living here, and how unique it
really is here.

So, it's not so much that I'm looking to leave my current position, but | feel like this is a
great opportunity, and something | was interested in.

Okay. What's the largest operating budget excluding debt service, some organizations
and public entities [inaudible] have debt service have you been responsible for, and
what year might that have been?

To be honest, | haven’t been responsible for.an entire budget. I've worked within larger
budgets of clients, depending on where they land in terms of size of the client, and how
that works.

I've worked for several hotels‘and casinos down in Vegas, so the public relations or
marketing has been a portion of their budget, right anywhere ranging from you know a
couple thousand dollars a month to you know some of the bigger properties can provide
a little bit more, but in terms of the overall grand scheme, | haven't been in charge of a
budget, but I've worked within budgets of different clients.

Thank you. What’s the largest number of staff that you have directly responsible for,
and what is the largest number.of direct reports that you have been responsible for?

Sure, the firm that | work for now, there is only-currently there is only six of us there.
50, it’s lean and mean we say. I'm one of'the three senior account executives and
there’s two coordinators below us. So, we all kind of work hand in hand, depending on
the client and the need of that client, how big they are, and you know how many people
we have staff each one.

50, for.example |:have an art exhibition right now that | have a coordinator working
under me, so at any given time, either one or two coordinators and the sole owner is
the direct —who | directly report to.

Okay.

That's the largest?

I mean for currently. So, the previous firm that | worked prior to that, even then there
was about probably 40 people total in the firm. So, the two firms 've worked for have

been relatively small, and then above me just the sole owners.

In the previous entity that you worked for where there were 40 people in the firm, how
many people would report to you directly?

81



KLEIN:

MARSHALL:

KLEIN:

STOLDAL:

KLEIN:

STOLDAL:

KLEIN:

STOLDAL:

PAZINA:

KLEIN:

MNevada Commission on Tourism | December 11, 2019
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

I would say, | started, my career there, so probably just a couple. So, that was my first
few years there | was at the first firm, so really my senior level has been at this current
firm with the smaller in-house.

What do you see as your strongest skillset, sales, marketing or management, and is
there something that you feel makes you uniquely qualified for this position?

I would say marketing. | focused mainly on public relations and marketing over the last
13 years. | really do enjoy it. Because I've had such a wide range of clients, it's helped
me be able to adjust and give—cater myself to different clients, which | think would be
fitting for the State. Because each County Is different and has its own unigue
advantages and promotional opportunities, so | think it's something that | could adjust
and help promote, depending on which county is—we're focusing on at any given time.

It's on your resume that you-Stoldal for the record—orchestrated a national publicity
campaign for Essence.

Sure.

Give me an example for, the Today Show, and some of the others are these that you
initiated and said hey we’ve got this thing or were they producers that called from these
various media outlets and said we'd like to do a piece. Which way was it?

For the most part, it was me pitching it out, so we were there from the beginning, we
were with Essence from the time they were still' medicinal, and we kind of navigated
them publicity-wise through that, and then leading into-transitioning to recreational,
and once we switched to recreational we reached out to the national programs, the
Today Show, MSNBC, Fox News that sort of thing, and let them know that hey we-you
know, this is a big moment not only in Nevada, but in the country, that is-this is a
historical moment, and invited them to come out and not only visit the dispensary, but
check out the cultivation programs they have, and really get a good idea of what they're
offering ‘and how sophisticated the program really is. So, it was definitely something
that we initiated to them.

Great, thank you.

Hello, this is Julie Pazina in Las Vegas and | see that you have some great tourism and
hospitality experience through your clients and PR. | was wondering if you also had any
trade show experience or background.

Actually recently we've had a few trade show clients in the past, | haven't directly

created a trade show, but I've done publicity for several over the last year — the last few
years.

82



PAZINA:

KLEIN:

PAZINA:

ROBINSON:

KLEIN:

ROBINSON:

KLEIN:

MARSHALL:

KLEIN:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | December 11, 2019
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

We recently had a trade show called Big Boy’s Toys. It was basically an extreme toy,
cars, and boats, and yachts and that kind of thing. That was recently just a couple
months ago, that we put the campaign together.

Where was the trade show held?

At the Convention Center, Las Vegas Convention Center.
Thank you. Thank you.

Pam Robinson for the record. Thank you for being here.
Of course, thanks for having me.

So, your resume has focused a lot on the PR and marketing side, and so from the
tourism perspective, what do you see, and have you followed what the trends are in
tourism nationwide, and specifically to Nevada, and how would you address those types
of things. And specifically, how'do you go out to the rural communities and help them
with those trends-and changes.

Sure. [ know with'the rural counties, | know like | was mentioning before, was | think a
lot of the younger crowd is getting them out with social media, using a lot of visual
Instagram ads, Instagram stories and visuals.

The younger-crowd gets excited about going to take that Instagram moment, and | think
for example, the White Pine, which | did the report on is perfect for that, because the
Great Basin Nattonal Park is such'a fantastic photographer opportunity.

So; for the rural | would, depending on which county it was choose a few items that we
want to highlight and really promote that via social media and traditional press.

In terms of tourism numbers, | know speaking of Vegas, | know the tourism numbers are
there, but a lot of people are not spending as much money down there it seems. | think
again that’s just highlighting some of the great, the great aspects of each city or county,
depending on which we're focusing on at the time.

All right,'so the last question then is how would you define heritage tourism, and how
do you think the Department of Tourism and Cultural Affairs can leverage this type
tourism in Nevada specifically?

To me, the heritage tours then would be promoting basically how Nevada began, how
each county began, what's the history behind them, what is-what’s fascinating about
each individual city or county, and for the cultural tour, or for the-I'm sorry, the
separate part of your question was how the...

83



MARSHALL:

KLEIN:

STOLDAL:

KLEIN:

STOLDAL:

KLEIN:

STOLDAL:

KLEIN:

SANTOS:

KLEIN:

Mevada Commission on Tourism | December 11, 2019
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

I'm sorry, how do you think the Department of Tourism and Cultural Affairs can leverage
this type of tourism in Nevada specifically?

Yeah, it's all about highlighting what’s unique to each individual area. Me, personally
when | was reading about White Pine, a lot of the things | didn't know about a lot of the
history, the little—you know, some little shops and that kind of thing. I find that stuff
fascinating. And I believe other people do as well,

Learning where we came from is always an interesting part of visiting or learning about
how a city began is always interesting when you're visiting somewhere, so | think that
we can-depending on which city or county it is, it's all about highlighting how it began,
how we can push it and use whatever means necessary whether it's traditional media,
or social media, or you know contest, or depending on what we're doing, and then
trying to really push that — push it out.

Stoldal for the record. Just'a quick gquestion. What was the transition from Doaks to
where you are now?

I'm sorry, what was that?
The transition from Kirvin Doaks to where you are now?

What was it, | was at Kirvin Doak for a few years and | had the opportunity to move to-
I'm at PR Plus now, switched the firm. I1like the boutiqueness of the smaller feel of the
firm, | liked working hand in hand with the owners a little closer, and it was something
which is a little different atmosphere ~I loved my time at Kirvin, but it was just a
different feel to the firm, | wanted something a little more boutique that | can a little
more invested into the clients, and the atmosphere there.

Great, thank you.
Sure.

Herb Santos for the record. One of the things is the administrative component of this
job. And under our job description it says, to create and manage the overall department
budget, implement appropriate internzal controls, and evaluation processes, recommend
changes, if necessary, and produce thorough financial reports for public accountability
and transparency so that the Department's fiscal integrity is protected.

With not having a whole bunch of experience, convince me that you would be the right
person to be able to meet that duty and responsibility.

Absolutely, you know it's funny, when | was preparing for this, there is always that

what's your biggest weakness questions and | fully understand that with this job, would
be my biggest weakness would be the budget.

84



KROLICKI:

KLEIN:

KROLICKI:

KLEIN:

MARSHALL:

KLEIN:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | December 11, 2019
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

You know I'm a hard worker, and I’m dedicated to everything that I've ever done. | feel
like it’s something that I'm-I took a lot of classes in college years ago, that was a little
more of the marketing/buying side of things, so | definitely have experience with
budgets in terms of projects, not real life, but more projects. And I think it's something
that | know | can do, and I'm passionate about promoting the State and t would be
willing to you know do whatever it takes to learn how and prove myself at it.

Hi, Brian Krolicki for the record. Welcome, thank you for being with us today, | know it's
a fun exercise to be doing.

Yeah, you know it’s been a while since I've been in Carson, 50 I’'m excited to be here.

You know my question really tracks on what youjust said, just inserting yourself here.
So, what I've been asking the different applicants is;about the first 90 days. This is a
new realm for you, it’s a big bite as we’ve discussed, but you've got a building full of
extraordinary people who have a great handle on tourism, that’s hospitality, and you've
got the different cultural pieces, the heritage pieces and the different divisions. For the
first 90 days, you've got stakeholders, you've got legislators, you've got other
convention and_tourism professionals, you've got the whole world. : You've got rural
Nevada, but remember we promote on the other side of the planet, but how do you
tackle that? How do you come.in for the first 90 days?

I've.always had the idea, that you surround yourself with people that are better, if
there’s'something you don’t know exactly how to do, surround yourself with people

‘that are better at it.

So, there’s really no choice but'just dive in, and you know invest 100 percent of myself,
and be here, and pick people’s brains that have more experience in the things that | lack
in. 1 feel like | provide a lot with the public relation side, and the marketing, and the
promaotions.

The budget side of things would be something that | really have to just dig in, and invest
in, and then study the people on the team that have done it more than me.

Okay, so.we've finished our questions and | wondered if you had any concluding
remarks that you wanted to make?

You know this whole process has been a lot of fun for me. Like | mentioned I’m a native
Nevadan, my father was born here, | was born here, my brother, my kids, | was married
here, and it’s something that I'm passionate about, the State of Nevada, | love living
here. | love how you can be on the strip in one hour and fly up and snowboarding the
next—and it’s something that | really enjoy.

| love living here, and | think there’s things about the State that a lot of people don’t
know, and I think with my background in public relations, it's something | can help and
promote. And | appreciate you guys, your time in having me up here, and everything.

a5



MARSHALL:

KLEIN:

MARSHALL:

KLEIN:

MARSHALL:

KLEIN:

MARSHALL:

KLEIN:

MARSHALL:

KLEIN:

MARSHALL:

KLEIN:

MARSHALL:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | December 11, 2019
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

Thank you. So, let me explain to you the rest of the process. What's going to happen
now is we interviewed a subset of the applications that we received. The Board is going
to discuss and make a decision to recommend three applicants to move forward. They
will give me three recommendations, and then | will take that to the Governor.

The choice for the Executive Director is within the Governor’s purview, okay. Timing
wise, we're trying to move this along, it’s been a little bit of a process.

Yeah.

We're trying to get things done, so | don't have like a moment in part, because it's the
Governor’s dacision, but we are trying to move it along.

If you have any references, if you could provide them to Katie, if your application didn't
include your references already. And | want to thank you for the time.

Thank you.

Did you fiy up today, for this?

| did, yeah, | flew up this morning.

Oh, thanks, that’s very nice.. What's the weather like in Vegas right now?

It was nice today. | think it was in the 50s | think when | left it was in the 40s. | think we
had a high in the 50s today, but it's all right, I'm going to use it to do some Christmas
shopping down at the student store, so I'm going to knock that out, two birds with one
stone.

Shop local.

Not Nevada stuff, not the Wolf Pack stuff as much!

Anyway, thank you very much, we really appreciate you taking the time.

| appreciate it, thank you.

I'm going to give you like five minutes, think about your top three, okay, because it may
be that everyone is settled, right. I'm just going to give you five minutes to take a sip of
water or collect your thoughts, and then we'll start again.

Justin, the reason | wanted you to come back at this moment was because once the
Board members start their discussion | wanted to make sure there was a DAG here in
case there becomes any question of whether we followed the process properly or what

we did, right?

86



TARUC:

BREAK

MARSHALL:

PAZINA:

MARSHALL:

SANTOS:

MARSHALL:

WILSON:

STOLDAL:

MARSHALL:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | December 11, 2019
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

| know that | jammed you, I'm a lawyer, such is the life of a lawyer, except for Herb. So,
we'll do the process here first with the candidates, and then I'll see where you’re at, and
| apologize for jamming you, but | didn’t have much of a choice, buddy. Ckay? So, five
minutes and then we'll come back, okay, guys?

All right, thanks Lieutenant Governor.

Okay, guys, 50 we're going to come back to order. Here's what | want to propose, and
you tell me if you don’t like it, it’s all good, here’s what | want to propose.

If everyone wants to write their top three on a piece of paper, | will look at those. If
there are three that have floated to the top, | will announce those three publicly here,
and then if there is any objections, people can say that they have objections.

If there are no objections, if in fact it is what it is, then | will ask people if they can give
me comments, and.feedback that they would Jike me to forward to the Governor when |

make the recommendation.

How do you feel about that? Do you like that? Do you not like it?

From Vegas, should | emall someone my top three?
So, you're going to text Katie.

Is this a public, like do we have to..,

I'm going to announce the top three, so I'm just looking, guys, all I'm doing is looking, all
right. “Write down three pass, three pass. You do not have to put your names on it. |
didn't ask for that. Okay. The Governor has asked for three. You’re not forced to do
three, but there has to be three, okay.

Kate Wilson for the record. You guys are also welcome to have a discussion if you so
choose; | know it’s a strange forum because it's a public meeting, but historically and
again, Commissioner Krolicki, | will defer to you somewhat on institutional knowledge
here, but from the minutes it looks like this is how they've done it in the past, where
you were able to pass—you can either do it, the Lieutenant Governor can call a person’s
name, and you can do it by a roll call vote, or a hands vote, or you can do it on a piece of
paper. So, again, | sort of defer to you guys on your comfortability.

I'm going to check with the [inaudible)

Just, you won't pass them forward? Thanks, I'm glad you're there, Bob.

87



CARANO:

MARSHALL:

SANTOS:

MARSHALL:

PAZINA:

MARSHALL:

WILSON:

PAZINA:

WILSON:

PAZINA:

WILSON:

PAZINA:

MARSHALL:

TARUC:

MARSHALL:

ROBINSON:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | December 11, 2015
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

It's not going to make it in.

All right, | need the south, right, | need the south, and then you’re going to have to give
me two seconds for my math. Oh, okay, you're so nice, all right.

| fee! like this is like Survivor right now.

You're voted off the island. No rose for you.

So, this is for Kate Wilson, this is Julie Pazina for the record. | did just text you my three.
Thanks, and then if you want to just write it on a piece of paper, or whatever. Let’s see,
I have one, two, three four, so what:was the other one? Oh, Jeff. Let me see here,
Melissa, Ari, yes...

Commissioner Pazina?

Yes.

Just for clarification, are these in preference order?

It was a tie between the first two followed by the third.

Great, perfect thank you.

Thank you.

We'll see how that works_ out. I'li ask people to put preferences if they have them.
Does that sound fine? Melissa, Tony, Brenda, Tony, Brenda, Melissa, Brenda, Tony,
Klein...

And am 1 voting on this too? Justin, am I voting on this also?

Madam Chair, as long as you're a voting member of the Commissions yeah, you're
welcome to vote on this as well.

I'm recommending to myself to recommend myself-okay, so | will add mine there.
Okay, all right guys. So, | think |'ve added everyone up. Herb has been watching me

with eagle eyes.

All right, so | have the top three are, envelope number one - in no particular order:
Tony Lyle, Brenda Nebesky and Melissa Evans. Do | hear any objections?

When you say objections, | mean what does that mean?

88



MARSHALL:

ROBINSON:

STOLDAL:

MARSHALL:

GROUP:

MARSHALL:

SANTOS:

MARSHALL:

SANTOS:

MARSHALL:

SANTOS:

MARSHALL:

KROLICKI:

MARSHALL:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | December 11, 2019
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

Does anybody say that they absolutely, that they're uncomfortable with those three
being forwarded to the Governor.

| would be uncomfortable with Melissa being forwarded to the Governor. | don't think
she had the skillset at all for this.

| second that.

Okay, so | have two people uncomfortable with Melissa, so we will have to take—is
everyone comfortable with Tony and Brenda?

Yes.
What?
Three for Melissa.

Three Melissa. Okay, so I'm going to take a vote now, for the third person, | will start
with the individual that received the highest votes.

So, now we are taking “no” votes, do you get.it? I'm going call out a person’s name,
we're taking no votes, are you're comfortable with that?

I don’t understand.

Okay, you just voted on two people. Two people are going to the Governor. The statute
says.we must send three people to the Governor, okay. | have objections to the person
that received the next highest votes.. So, one way for me to handle that is to provide a
name and how many nixes do I'get.

Gotit.

Or | could provide a name and how many positives do | get? What do you guys want to
do? Nixes?

Madam| Chair, I'm agreeing with the process but just confirming that there's no
discussion on these other people. | mean if there is something that is known or relevant
or we wish to be shared, perhaps it’s important for others to hear.

Well, | think what | was going to do for the two that everyone has agreed with, | was
then going to ask for comments that people wanted me to forward to the Governor,

right?

Because when | go to the Governor, and | give him the names, he's going to say well, so
who are these people, right? | will say here is what the Board recommended, Joe Blow

89



KROLICKI:

MARSHALL:

KROLICKI:

MARSHALL:

KROLICKI:

MARSHALL:

SANTOS:

MARSHALL:

SANTOS:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | December 11, 2019
Depariment of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

and here's what they had say about Joe Blow. The Board recommended Jane Doe, and
here's what they had to say about Jane Doe, right.

Again, respectfully, if there’s something material or insightful into one of these three
people, | would like to know it prior to me saying that would be a great name to provide
the Governor, other than the two. Does that make sense?

Other than the two.

No, the two that are on their way, we know impeccably well, or at least | think | do,
because | know them persanally, but you know | don't know all...

You want to discuss the other three before we vote.
Yes, if possible.

Got it. All right, guys | agree, If people feel comfortable with that. We have three
names left, they are Melissa Evans, Ari Levin, Jeff Klein.

If there were things that people wanted to say about those three, that they felt was
pertinent to whether or not they'd be recommended to the Governor, | open the floor.
Please state your name for the record, and what person you're commenting on.

Herb Santos for the record.  First, let me just comment a couple little red flags popped
to me regarding Ms. Evans.

Ms, Evans, okay.

The first is, when she described the type of leader she would be, | just had some red
flags regarding some of her comments whether she would be a good match, but | think
what was important was when you prepared the questions that we wanted these folks
to answer, one of the most important things is how well people follow instructions.

And the instructions says pick a county. And she wrote about all the counties which not
following the instructions, and it makes me wonder if there was direction from you,
Lieutenant Governor, the Commission or whatever asking her to do something is she
going to follow that instruction? 1s she not going to follow instruction and do what she
wants to do? So, it just popped up a red flag regarding that.

I also unfortunately, | was in support of Mr. Levin, because | saw two things on his
resume that | thought showed great success, one of them being importantly of the Star
Trek experience, having seen that also, but you know when you have to do an interview
by telephone it’s tough. 1don’t think he was able to really convey to us his-or just the
interview process is not the same as when you're in persen, so | thought he was a little
bit behind the ball, but when you look at what he’s done, it seems that he’s had great
success.  Part of this job also is as a spokesperson for the Commission, and | just

90



MARSHALL:

PAZINA:

MARSHALL:

STOLDAL:

MARSHALL:

STOLDAL

Nevada Commission on Tourism | December 11, 2019
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

thought that he looked like he had those skills. So, that's why he was my third person,
and why Melissa didn’t have my support, or Ms. Evans didn’t have my support thank
you.

Other comments?

This is Julie Pazina from Las Vegas. | think my challenge with Ari Levin was that he
seemed to put no real work into the homework. And that was frustrating for me. |
don’t know if maybe { just didn’t get it, but | didn’t see any actual action plan, and then
his budget seemed to be something that wasn’t'real world, realistic. | believe the Vice
Chair had commented on that as well.

And then his letter which was supposed to be to.the Senate Finance Chair was to the
wrong individual, which | also felt like wasn’t following instructions and so easy to see
on the State's website. It just seemed to me he didn’t put the work into the homework,
and so that’s why he was not my third choice.

| will say | was a little concerned, even though I did initially with Melissa | made my third
choice, my concern with her was that she seemed to not take Las Vegas, and | say this as
someone located In Las,Vegas, as seriously when she had made the comment well Las
Vegas needs no work: And i think we all know that if you’re not expanding, if you're not
putting in the effort than you're_surpassed by Orlando, Chicago, so many other
destinations.

While the entire State is important, so is Las Vegas. And when she said Las Vegas

needed no work, that was my frustration with her, but she was still my third choice,

given our candidates.
Other comments?

Stoldal for the record. | was concerned with Ari in the sense that he seemed to be so
event driven, and his plan was simply for a 1.6-million-dollar art festival. He didn’t really
seem to have solid grasp beyond putting events on. Despite the fact that he had a great
deal of experience in putting events on, he didn't fit.

And then Melissa compared to Tony, who was just so authentic, that's just such an
overused word, but he is just so honest and direct in his questions, and she didn’t seem
to have that sense of leadership that | think is so important to this position.

That left me with the young-l shouldn’t say, it's inappropriate to go into age or gender
or whatever, but he-

leff?

=the last candidate, | think he just had a good sense, so | would move him ahead of
those two.

91



MARSHALL:

ESTIPONA:

MARSHALL:

KROLICKI:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | December 11, 2019
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

Okay.

For the record, Edward Estipona. When | was looking at it, and again, that’s why | asked
three-can we just do two, because | saw problems with the other three candidates.

When | looked at Ms. Evans ¢ felt like as a marketer, and this job, a lot of it is marketing,
she did not comprehend it very well. You can tell me you worked on the Super Bowl,
but you had a bunch of team members that worked on the Super Bowl, and it didn't
seem like she was the one leading the charge and had that comprehension.

With Ari, |, myself, felt like Bob that he was so event-driven, that his answer to
everything was an event. And his lack of understanding-or the budget even though |
know it’s just a proposed budget, you should have a clear understanding what you think,
and is it realistic, you know | think that's-anybody can dream, but there is realistic
things tied to it.

And Mr. Klein, | love his enthusiasm, but | just don’t think he's got the administrative
experience or the budgetary experience at this paint, but from a marketing standpoint
he does get it, he does understand it, but he’s missing the other two components, which
he’ll drown | think in this environment without those. Thank you.

Other comments?

Madam Chair, it's Brian Krolicki. Again, | appreciate the ability to have this conversation,
it's always difficult to do this in a public setting, and covered by our friends in the media,
but | appreciate everyone coming through this process.

| think certainly, Brenda, you know she’s already demonstrated her abilities profoundly
under difficult circumstances. Tony certainly has the chops to do this job too, so | again,
we're comfortable,

With the interviews today, I'm just not sure. They're wonderful people, but Melissa and
Jeff, | just don't see them have the chops for this tomorrow. Perhaps, some day they
can grow into it, or they can be a part of it, but you know it’s just limited.

I think Ari has chops, but perhaps not the right ones for this, and 1 think that's what I'm
hearing. | mean it’s all events, and he’s done some extracrdinary things.

I think it might be difficult to get this third name. So, Madam Chair | give you my proxy
for that third name. | think you have certain opinions on these folks, but | think we've
got the right two people. Hopefully, we can package the recommendation that we've
got one or two in a different tier, but complying with the rules of engagement, you
know here is a third name, but | yield to you on that, at least from my standpoint if you
have a person that you prefer.

92



MARSHALL:

ROBINSON:

MARSHALL:

CARANO:

MARSHALL:

TARUC:

MARSHALL:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | December 11, 2019
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

Okay, other comments? Pam?

Pam Robinson. | was frustrated a little bit by Ari, and | think it's because he wasn’t here,
partly. It’s a very difficult thing to do. 1 think that Jeff Klein has got a lot of potential,
but not necessarily as the top person at this point, but | could see him bringing
tremendous energy, and expertise and enthusiasm to the department.

The other part about this job is that it's so unigue, because it sits on the Governor’s
Cabinet. We're the Commission on Tourism, but we're not the Commission of the
Department for the other agencies. And that person, although tourism has to be part of
their biggest focus, there are those other agencles that they have to make sure that they
take into consideration, and that as they manage them, they’'ve got the management
ability to do it, and give you and the Governor the appropriate advice and
recommendations for budgeting and management and staffing, and for all of the other
things that go into it.

So, it's a comment, | put mine in order as | gave them, but the number three | would
probably go with Jeff but with the idea that he's got potential, but not necessarily the
right person at this point.

Okay, other comments?

Cindy Carano for the record. | do agree that I'd be very comfortable for you to present
to the Governor the top two. The third one should be prefaced to the Governor that the
Commission was not in agreement and consensus with this third one.

Ari‘Levin | would.think could be'the most qualified, actually | didn't put him down,
because of the fact that—well, the budget, he didn’t put the work into it. And he didn't
discuss the rurals at all, and I'just don’t think that he has an idea of what actually the
Department of Tourism and Cultural Affairs does.

So, tourismiin Las Vegas, | agree Las Vegas needs help, but they have the Las Vegas
Convention Authority with a bigger budget than we have here. So, our job is to
concentrate on the rurals, and use Las Vegas and Reno as the entre into the rest of
Nevada, and how do we get our visitors to do that.

| really can’t go with Jeff because he's not qualified, as far as I'm concerned, and | just
wouldn’t even put him forward. So, | am going to stick with Melissa as my third, and |
agree that she’s not going to be my top pick.

Justin, it has to be three, is that right? Can it be a number different than three?

Lieutenant Governor, it says in the statute it must be three, three persons submitted, so
it has to be three.

It says three what, read it to me.

93



TARUC:

MARSHALL:

STOLDAL:

KROLICKI:

CARANO:

MARSHALL:

CARANO:

MARSHALL:

CARANO:

MARSHALL:

WINDBIGLER:

MARSHALL:

STOLDAL:

TARUC:

STOLDAL:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | December 11, 2019
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

So, it must be appointed by the Governor from a list of three persons submitted to the
Governor by the Lieutenant Governor from the recommendations made to the
Lieutenant Governor by the four entities.

Okay, more comments?

Well, mine would only be that [ just follow the Lieutenant Governor, you have my proxy,
and how-if it gets down to a push and shove...

You said it.

Yes, the diplomat aver here. He was giving you the proxy.
Proxy.

| agree.

You agree? Yes.

Yes. The third...

Kristin? [lnaudible]

Yes at this point.

Okay. Talk to me a little bit about what you would like me to say to the Governor with
respect to the top two?

Stoldal for the record, you start off with [inaudible] there’s a whaole bunch of things,
[inaudible] a year on:the job and I think will move forward in a very positive direction
with acting [inaudible] recently [inaudible] together to...

Lieutenant Governor, this is Justin Taruc down in the South. Mr. Stoldal we couldn't
hear you, your mic wasn't on.

I've got to learn to turn the green light on. Brenda has been there for the past year;
things have moved forward in a very positive way. We recently had an opening — we
have an opening for the Director, Administrator of all the State Museum systems, she
went through a process, a professional process to come up with a selection, worked
closely on that process.

The budget is due in 90 days. | mean it's a quick turnaround. And administratively
that’s going to take somebody that already knows the system.

94



MARSHALL:

ESTIPONA:

MARSHALL:

MUN:

MARSHALL:

ROBINSON:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | December 11, 2019
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

I don’t want to say that’s the number one reason, because it's not, but I think she’s done
a solid job, and she knows marketing.

QOther comments on the top two?

Edward Estipona for the record. | like both of the candidates because | think they're
both genuine people. And | think that represents us as a State, we're genuine people.
And | think that’s a good point from the leadership.

But when | start thinking about if | had to pick one of the two, | think | would have to go
with Brenda myself, mainly because I've had the opportunity kind of serving on the Arts
Council Board for | think 'm in my sixth year now. I've seen it where there's been no
conversation and no collaboration, and it started with David where the collaboration
started, and Brenda has taken it to the next level.

And you know we're a part.of the whole family. And we always were, | think, the other
divisions or the other departments were always treated a little bit like a stepchild, so to
speak. | think between David and Brenda, they've really started creating that
connection. | think.that's excellent.

And | think for the same reason that Brenda had stated, | think we need more continuity
now, we have momentum, we need continuity, and she is the right person. Though if
Tonyswas in that position, he would do a great job, but I think from speed and just

getting poing it makes sense, at least for. me; that Brenda would be the one out of the

two, but | like both of them a lot.
Okay, Cynthia?

Cynthia Mun. My two candidates were Brenda and Tony. And of those two, I've had
the opportunity to work with Brenda, and I've seen what she can do. i think in terms of
the speed of onboarding, she already has done the job.

There are opportunities for her, but then there would be another Deputy Director, and |
think with someone that you know she would be able to hire to complement her skills,
that she could become a very good leader, and with some mentorship, she'd be an
excellent |eader.

Other comments, Pam?

| agree with Cynthia, and | think that a couple of the things that people who haven't
waorked in the public lands arena, and | have for most of my career, but for her to have
spearheaded, and this is small, but it's big, an MOU with the BLM is really a very, very
good thing, and the outreach with partnerships and that kind of collaboration spirit that
she brings, | think is really important. Because I think particularly as we go into the new
division of outdoor recreation and it's going to be integrally tied with tourism, and some
of the other things, she’s already started to make some of those inroads.

95



KROLICKI:

MARSHALL:

SANTOS:

ROBINSON:

SANTOS:

MARSHALL:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | December 11, 2019
Department of Tourism & Culftural Affairs

I think that there are some things that if she is ultimately selected by the Governor,
that-because she hasn’t had the same kind of leadership experience on a big level, but
those are some opportunities to get new skills, and to help enhance that. So, | would
probably Brenda -1 would put Brenda first, probably.

Madam Chair, thank you. You know I've always been in praise of people who have just
earned it, who have been part of a team, who've gone through battle just because
they're supposed to, and they excel.

This building, you know, the Nevada Commission on Tourism, and the divisions and the
department folks in Las Vegas, you know it's been tough. You know we've had this
interim situation for two years. | think curing this leadership vacuum as quickly as
possible, especially with some of the hard deadlines, you know Brenda has absolutely
earned you know this opportunity.

You know it’s not for us to make the final decision, but if the Governor does decide that
Brenda you know is not only just deserving, but in fact the best candidate, and | hope
that's how it’s approached, you know you've not asked the question, and I'm just going
to put it out there, but | hope if there is a vacancy at a senior level in Nevada or the
department that Tony would be approached. Because | think he would be an
extraordinary addition to this team, and again that's beyond my pay grade, and it's not a
question being asked, but it would give me great Joy to see Tony being part of this.

Okay.

Herb Santos for the record. | agree with everything that's been said, and my one
thought was, do we have a Deputy Director right now?

Brenda is.

No, no, no, | know. “So, exactly what you said, we've got two good peaple that know
their stuff, and | know that the Deputy Director is not appointed by the Governor, but |
would hate to lose this opportunity to maybe snatch two good people. So, however
that gets done, | don't know.

Being put in a position where you're just sort of thrown into it, | know it was tough on
the last acting director, and the acting director we have right now, and you know it
seams like things have gone pretty smoothly. We had a great Governor’s conference. |
think Brenda would be my first choice too, with the hope that we could somehow figure
out a way for Tony to be able to join our team.

Okay. Any other comments.

96



WINDBIGLER:

MARSHALL:

KROLICKI:

SPEAKER:

TARUC:

WILSON:

MARSHALL:

TARUC:

MARSHALL:

KROLICKI:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | December 11, 2019
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

Kristen Windbigler for the record. | would just like to say that | wholeheartedly agree
regarding Brenda and | would hope that she would be the top candidate, and | also think
that Tony is a very strong candidate.

Okay. All right, so here is what I'm hearing. I'm hearing that we have two top
candidates to recommend to the Governor. A great scenario would be if both of them
ended up working for the Commission on Tourism.

i’m hearing that Brenda has earned it, that there is continuity, experience, some of the
things she’s done in the last year, people are very impressed with. And that people also
feel that Tony would be a great addition.

I'm also hearing that with respect to,the third candidate, nobody settled on someone.
You'd be willing to give me the proxy, as long as | was clear with the Governor that there
is a gap there between number two and number three.

If that’s the case and people are comfortable with that, | will accept a motion to forward
the first two with the proxy for the third being on me recognizing that | must explain to
the Governor the gap between the first two and the third. So, do | have a motion?

So moved.

So moved.

‘Lieutenant Governor-I'm sorry, Lieutenant Governor this is Justin Taruc. | guess my

concern with that.for the interest,of transparency is we might want to state the third
person on the record.

Kate Wilson for the record. | have the recommendations from Sarah Bradley before she
left, and this was sent to all of the Commissioners, but one of them says that the Chair
could arguably receive recommendations for 12 people from the Commission, and
ultimately the recommendation comes from the Lieutenant Governor of three people as
necessary. 50, theoretically from this meeting, you could say like we're going to say that
it's,the list of five, and then who you choose to ultimately suggest to the Governor is
your prerogative.

It looks like by statute, | could receive a recommendation of five, with two starred for
the top two, knowing that | will put forward to the Governor three.

That's a reasonable understanding for the statute, so that's okay then.
All right, then Ill accept a motion, if people are comfortable with that.

Move to approve.

97



MARSHALL:

MUN:

MARSHALL:

STOLDAL:

MARSHALL:

CARANO:

STOLDAL:

KROLOCKI:

STOLDAL:

MARSHALL:

SANTOS:

TARUC:

SANTOS:

MARSHALL:

TARUC:

MARSHALL:

KROLICKI:

MARSHALL:

Mevada Commission on Tourism | December 11, 2019
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

Second?

Second.

Okay, so the motion on the floor is that five people will be forwarded to me for
recommendation, with the caveat that Brenda Nebesky and Tony Lyle are the top two,
and so | have a motion, | have a second. Do | have any discussion?

I'm not sure — the statute says that we've get to vote on who the three people are.

No, you can vote to send five to me, if you want.

But he said because he's not a voting member.

But I don't know if | can vote on the motion to...

No, he said can a non-voting member vote?

Yes.

Can a non-voting member vote?

It's voting on the names that are being submitted, on Commission business,

Lieutenant Governor, the way that 1 read it is the non-voting members can recommend
the names that you're going to submit. But | don’t read it as they can vote on
Committee action.

Herb Santos for the record. We have to submit names—the Commission, the heads of
the Departments, the Museums, we have to submit names. And the only way we can
submit the names is/if there is an action from us that’s in the agenda that we have to
vote to submit the names to the Lieutenant Governor.

So, the motion could be that there is a motion to submit five names to the-excuse me
for speaking of myself in the third person, to the LG, with two of the names underscored

as recommended for the Governor. So, | think Bob can vote to recommend, right?

50, my interpretation is he can recommend them. | don't see that it requires a vote for
him to recommend anybody.

So, you're telling me not to take a vote today?
No, Madam Chair, if | could...

Yes.

o8



KROLICKI:

MARSHALL:

TARUC:

STOLDAL:

MARSHALL:

ESTIPONA:

SANTOS:

KROLICKI:

STOLDAL:

MARSHALL:

STOLDAL:

WILSON:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | December 11, 2019
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

You know I think we are all in agreement, so just to make sure there is no come-back to
this process, maybe only the voting members vote on this, but with an indication that
there is unanimous suppaort of the non-voting members for that motion.

For the non-voting members, | would like to hear publicly your recommendation, okay?
Because | need to hear your recommendation.

For the voting members, you can vote on the recommendation, if you would like which
is on the table, if you're comfortable to recommend to me five names with the top two
starred. If you are a non-voting member | understand the DAG to say you can't vote,
but | nead to hear your recommendation. s that good?

That's correct.

Stoldal for the record, what I'd like to vote on...
I would like you to recommend.

Recommend,

Herb Santos for the record. Who do you recommend for the names to be submitted to
the Lieutenant Governor?

Or do you support the motion?

Okay, well, I'm voting, because that’s what the statute says that we will-I'll vote, and
that’s...

Justin, you've got to rule. | don’t know what to do, buddy. You’ve got to rule on how
the process goes.

I think the confusion is the five. And if there is three that we can recommend to vote on
the three—and the third one, you're certainly going to explain what the issues are to the
Governor.

Kate Wilson for the record. Again, and speaking to this at length with Sarah Bradley,
and again, Justin, correct me if 'm wrong. Technically, there doesn’t have to be a vote
at all, it's just the recommendations.

The casting of the vote by the Members is simply-that is your vote is what you casted to
the Lieutenant Governor. What the Lieutenant Governor takes forward, she could
honestly not have taken any recommendations—or, | mean, the people who came here,
you can give your recommendations, but she doesn’t even necessarily have to follow
those depending on who she wants to go forward to the Governor.



STOLDAL:

WILSON:

TARUC:

MARSHALL:

TARUC:

MARSHALL:

TARUC:

MARSHALL:

STOLDAL:

MARSHALL:

STOLDAL:

MARSHALL:

KROLICKI:

STOLDAL:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | December 11, 2019
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

Yes, but I'm sorry. Did you just say that if we send the Lieutenant Governor three
names, she doesn’t have to use that list?

There can be more than three names. So if you guys came forward with 15 names, if
each Member brought three names that they are recommending, the Lieutenant
Governor ultimately has to pull three names from those recommendations. Your act of
voting according to this conversation with Sarah Bradley, is making your
recommendation. That is you're casting of a vote is the recommendation that you are
making.

Again, ultimately who the Lieutenant Governor moves forward with, it could be a list of
12 names that she pulls three from. It can be a list of five, or ten, or what have you. So,
again, you're not being-you’re-and again, Justin, correct me if 'm wrong. The statute
[inaudible] your positien in this is to make a recommendation as the Board Member of
the Department of Museums. So, that is the recommendation, that is your “vote.”
Justin Taruc for the record. ‘That is my understanding of my reading of the statute is,
yeah, you guys can make your recommendations, but it doesn’t require a vote | don’t
believe.

Okay, so...

An official...

Then to be clear on the record, should | accept a recommendation fram each person on
the Commission?

Madam Chair, if those papers that you were handed, | believe those were their
recommendations.

Okay. Are you okay, Bob?

Sure, you have my recommendations.

Okay. | want to make sure that we don’t have to come back and redo this. So, are we
good here, If | take the piece of paper, which | have kept, and | go forward with that, are
we good?

We didn’t put our names on them.

It's still everyone right?

I'm not sure if you want to go down the line, just to avoid confusion that you've
[inaudible]

Okay. Gotit-well, see | want to...

100



MARSHALL:

PAZINA:

MARSHALL:

WINDBIGLER:

MARSHALL:

ESTIPONA:

MARSHALL:

STOLDAL:

MARSHALL:

SANTOS:

MARSHALL:

MUN:

MARSHALL:

CARANO:

MARSHALL:

DELONE:

WILSON:

MARSHALL:

KROLICKI:

MARSHALL:

ROBINSON:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | December 11, 2019
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

But I'm going to go down the line just to avoid confusion, okay. | don’t want us to have
to come back and then it was ali a mess, okay? All right. Pen, blank sheet of paper, all
right. Julie, go for it.

My recommendations were Brenda and Tony and then my number three was Melissa.
Kristen, go for it.

Brenda and Tony.

Edward, go for it.

Brenda, Tony and if | had to do a third, it would be Ari.

Bob.

Brenda, Tony and Ari.

Herb.

My three are Brenda Nebesky, Tony,Lyle and Ari Levin.

Wait, | forgot Cindy, hi. Cindy.

'It's Brenda and Tony, and a proxy for third.

Okay. Cindy.

Tony, Brenda and Melissa.

Krolicki.

Top two would be Brenda and Tony, as a third alternate, Melissa.
And just for clarification that was Commissioner DeLone.

Phil. Oh, that was Phil, | wasn't [ooking, Brian.

Krolicki recommends and Madam Chairman, thank you for indulging the process,
Nebesky, Lyle and you have my proxy on number three.

Pam.

Brenda Nebesky, Tony Lyle and | think | wrote down Jeff and Ari. 5o, my third is not
necessary, proxy if you'd like.

1M



MARSHALL:

SANTOS:

MARSHALL:

STOLDAL:

WILSON:

MARSHALL:

CARANO:

MARSHALL:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | December 11, 2019
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

Okay, | have written down all the recommendations, you're verifying?
Yep.

Okay, are we good?

Yes.

Kate Wilson for the record, we have more than three recommendations going forward,
50 we've met the statutory requirement for three,

Okay, good. Okay. Good, all right. Now, we're gaing back to our-what time is it, 4:12.
It's happy hour.

Hold on | have to email my husband, just hold on a second, please. Let's go-thank you
very much for indulging me on that.

Public Hearing on Notice of Intent to Act Upon Regulation - continued

MARSHALL:

TARUC:

So, now we are back to Item J and K. Justin, first off, did anyone want to give us a little
background on Item ] and K?

Lieutenant Governor, this is Justin Taruc. | spoke with Sarah Bradley, who is the Senior
Deputy Attorney General who was working with | believe Dave Peterson, who is the
interim Director prior to Ms. Nebesky.

| guess it was'their discussions that precipitated the proposed LCB File No. RO80-18.
What that basically was is the history that | understand is it was filed with LCB in April of
2018, and so if the regulation is to be adopted has a two-year statute of limitations,
essentially, | don’t want to use that term, a legal term 1 guess, but it's kind of like that.
Either it gets approved in two years, or it just dies.

But basically RO80-18 was drafted because pursuant to NRS 233b.100, it requires, and
I'llreadit.

“Any interested person may petition an agency requesting the adoption, filing,
amendment, or repeal of any regulation, and shall accompany the petition with relevant
data, views, and arguments. Each agency shall prescribe by regulation the form for such
petitions, and the procedure for their submission, consideration, and disposition. Upon
submissian of such a petition, the agency shall within thirty (30) days either deny the
petition in writing, stating its reasons, or initiating regulation-making proceedings.”

So, the reason why R080-18 was, | guess, proposed is to comply with NRS 233b.100 that
the State Agency have some sort of process for the petitions. | understand in a prior

102



KROLICKI:

MARSHALL:

KROLICKI:

TARUC:

KROLICKI:

TARUC:

SANTOS:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | December 11, 2019
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

discussion that Commissioner Santos asked where the 30-day time limit came from,
And that’s stated in NRS 233b.100, and so we can’t really digress from that, or change it,
because it's specifically stated in 100, that it's 30 days from the date that the petition is
received.

&nd looking at the public notice that was published in last month, in November, it looks
like in that notice, it was required that the Commission or someone on their behalf issue
responses in that notice. And it says that there is really no anticipated economic effect
on businesses, or the public based on the adoption of this specific regulation.

| mean it doesn’t seem like they anticipate any cost for the enforcement in the
regulation, and they really honestly didn't anticipate that many petitions being filed,
that would address it under this, but.again, under. 233b.100, the agency has to adopt a
way for someone to address a petition before the Board.

Madam Chair?
Yes.

Just a quick, | heard everything you said. I'm not sure why we need to take action if NRS
says that this is the case, why do we need to approve the reg, if it's already...

Sorry.
Orif we don’t take any action today, what happens? | mean what's the repercussion.

| guess'the repercussion is that\RO80-18 just won't be enacted, and so there’s really no
petition in'the regulation stated for this agency. 233b.100 just says that you have to
prescribe the form for the petition ‘and the procedure, so because it says each agency
shall prescribe by, regulation the form for such petitions, and the procedure for the
submisslon, | guess that's why this reg is coming into play.

Herb Santos for the record. When you look at NRS 233b.100, it says that under
paragraph one, upon submission of such a petition, the agency shall within thirty (30)
days either deny the petition in writing, stating its reasons, or initiate regulation-making
proceedings, that's inconsistent with number four that says, the Commission will notify
the petitioner in writing of the Commission’s decision regarding the petition within
thirty (30) days of the date when the petitioner filed the petition.

That in and of itself it going to be impaossible for us to do, because that would require us
to schedule a meeting within that 30 days to rule on that. That language, if we're going
to have this, has to be consistent with 233b.100, where | think you could put in there
that regarding the petition-the date in which petitioner filed the petition-but it’s got to
be something where it's going to say that it's going to put on the next Commission
meeting as an agenda item.

103



TARUC:

SANTOS:

TARUC:

SANTOS:

MARSHALL:

SANTOS:

MARSHALL:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | December 11, 2019
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

Because what 233b is the Administrative Code, and basically looking at the agencies that
have like the division of industrial relations, things like that, to where they have a
process, and they have actual regulations. We have no regulations.

But if you look under the Administrative Code, this would be the only thing sitting in
there. This is for someone to want to either repeal or even create a regulation, so we
get a bunch of people now submitting regulations, they want the Tourism Department
to do, there’s no way that we're going to be able to do that within 30 days.

So, the language in this reg has to be able to reflect the reporting, and advance notice
requirements of this agency, because we're acting as a Commission, as opposed to a
department agency that’s acting through its department heads.

I don’t know — hopefully, that made sense. | don’t know if it did.

No, it does. And | guess the only response | had for that is and with speaking with Sarah
Bradley as well, is | guess under OML, the Commission is able to hold telephonic special
meetings that could address this. And that’s all we've got for you.

So, if you’re saying that if someone submits a petition on January 1* and how long do
we have to—what’s our notice for a meeting, is it 17 days?

It's three working days.
Oh, it's only three days. Oh, well, then...
Mo, it has to be posted and anyway we need a week.

It’s got to be posted and you have non-employees but Commissioners that would have
to adjust their calendar =1 mean | think it's just a procedural nightmare.

Also, the problem is, is that we don’t have any regs. So, the only reg you're going to get
is where someone is going to come forward and submit a reg. So, they're going to ask
us to adopt a reg, so then we’re going to need a legal analysis on whether or not that
reg fits in with the statutes that cover this agency.

The question comes back to not only can this Board rule in 30 days; but can the
Attorney General provide a legal analysis of the effect of the reg and its concurrence
with our statutory obligations and duties. And I'm guessing that the answer to that is a
hearty no.

We don't have any regs. The only thing that happens here is somebody submits a reg.
You've got a brand new reg, Joe Blow comes in off the street, here’s a reg, we've got 30
days, we can’t move unless we have a legal analysis, that's a written analysis. If you go
back to the AG's procedures, right, and you say | don’t want an email, | need a written
analysis of the AG's recommendation.

104



SANTOS:

MARSHALL:

SANTOS:

KROLICKI:

MARSHALL:

KROLICKI:

MARSHALL:

KROLICKI:

MARSHALL:

KROLICKI:

MARSHALL:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | December 11, 2019
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

The AG is going to tell you, it's 90 days minimum. Sometimes, they take a year to do
that. That’s the problem here, that you're not going to get that in 30 days, and | don’t
understand how that works, right? How does it work? And then it says that we, the
Commission will notify — | don’t understand how it works.

Yeah, when you look at this reg, it shouldn’t be the Commission, it should be the agency
will notify the petitioner in writing that they either-it's got to be initiate regulation-
making proceedings.

Yep, yep.

Because that's what the statute says.” It says or initiate regulation—it says, the agency
shall within thirty (30) days either:deny the petition in writing stating its reasons, or
initiate regulation-making proceedings.

So, it should say that the agency shall notify the petitioner_ that they will initiate
regulation-making proceedings-1 just don't know if we want to deny.it, that's the...

You know the opportunity for abuse by you know -by a mischievous person, you know
they could introduce a reg every day. So, you'just need to control your own destiny.

And gum.up the process.

But | agree, ] mean you know | did as the:question if we did nothing today, what
happens?

But then are we'in violation of some law that the legislature passed?

Well, that's the question, are we'in violation of the law, or can we amend-well, can we
groove our respense.to be that the department shall notify the Commission and be
considered by the Commission at its next regularly scheduled meeting or something like
that, but there has to be order in the process.

The Commission will notify the petition in writing of the Commission's decision
regarding the petition, if the Commission approves the petition, the Commission will
initiate a regulation (inaudible] but did LCB write it? LCB wrote it?

That's why.

Okay, so here’s the deal — no, it's a statute of limitation that it dies. So, here's the deal.

We're in December, yadda, yadda now, right. What's today? The 11", okay. What has
to happen for that last paragraph to be written in a more refined way?

105



TARUC:

MARSHALL:

TARUC:

KROLICKI:

SANTOS:

MARSHALL:

SANTOS:

TARUC:

MARSHALL:

CARANO:

SANTOS:

MARSHALL:

SANTOS:

MARSHALL:

SANTOS:

MARSHALL:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | December 11, 2015
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

Lieutenant Governor, | believe that we can resubmit if there's any comments based off
of the comments back to LCB. | believe this draft has already been submitted to LCB,
and it's being brought back to the Commission for a final review.

Based off of the comments on today's meeting, we can take those, and | guess modify
the proposal and send it back to LCB.

And then does that put us outside the statute of limitations, if we don’t do something by
end of the year?

So, my understanding is that if the process isn’t completed within the two years,
someone from the Commission has to appear in front of LCB to explain why it didn't
occur within two years.

The first [inaudible].

Herb Santos for the record. If we approve something can we edit it?

Can we edit it?

Or do we have to accept that language?

If it's a major change, then you would have to resubmit.

it's just a clarification.

Cindy Carano for the record. "I move that we do not approve this regulation in its
current form. And if we can’t just modify it by our timetable that we actually meet, then
just not approve it, and I'll be happy to go and talk to the scary LCB.

Here's another thing we can do. We could go ahead and approve this today, work on
the language, and then one of us submits a proposal to modify the existing reg, using
the reg that's right there.

So, at the next meeting we submit a reg?

We submit our own reg.

Under the home process.

Under the home process.

Then we have 30 days to eat up our own reg. | like it.

106



KROLICKI:

MARSHALL:

SANTOS:

MARSHALL:

WILSON:

MARSHALL:

WILSON:

MARSHALL:

ROBINSON:

MARSHALL:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | December 11, 2019
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

This may be the first contested vote we have today-this is Brian Krolicki. Any time you
approve a reg, it’s really hard to unwind, you know it has a life unto its own. And
sometimes it mysterious.

| get what you're saying, but why approve a reg that we cannot comply with? | think
that’s a really good reason not to approve the reg, to say, hey LCB, if we approve this,
we cannot comply because our schedule doesn’t you know comport to that. Yes, we
can have a noticed phone call meeting or something like that, but it just ~ I think there
must be a better way.

So, if there’s no punitive if we're not approving it today — if there’s a punitive, | want to
hear it, but I'm still not hearing it, then 1 just think we’re much wiser to do nothing until
we know what we wish to do.

Justin, { think if we can take this back to LCB, and explain that the Board could not get a
clear understanding of whether or not, it could meet the requirements of the reg, and of
the reg-let me get specific here—of Section 1.3 and 1.4, is that right?

No, no, Section 3 and Section 4.

I'm sorry, Section 3 and Section 4 on page 2.of the draft of proposed regulation R080-18.
So, because we could not get clarification on what exactly we were doing, we can’t take

a vote; because there's no meeting of the minds.

Under that scenario, we would respectfully reguest maybe someone from LCB could
come here and walk us through how this works -LCB staff.

Kate Wilson for the record.. Another option in the same vein as what Sarah Bradley did
for.the hiring process, I'd be more than happy to reach out to LCB and see if we can
circulate a memo or something to that effect, just with the implications of not voting on
this by the end of the year, or any concerns there, and if there is some sort of punitive...
We can call an emergency phone call.

Then we can do a call and try to get quorum that way. | agree both on the concern of
voting on something that we aren’t sure what you’re voting on, but also if there is a
hard deadline, which no offense Justin, it's just that no one can really tell us on
December 31* | also would hate for the Board to not be in compliance.

Right.

This is Pam. We’re not even a regulatory agency—

| know.

107



ROBINSON:

MARSHALL:

ROBINSON:

SANTOS:

WILSON:

ROBINSON:

MARSHALL:

GROUP:

MARSHALL:

CARANO:

MNevada Commission on Tourism | December 11, 2019
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affalrs

—which | mean because then this goes to Leg Commission, and there’s a long process
with regulations. So, | think that not voting-1 think we’'d better know what we’re doing.

Also, we don't want to expand powers we don't have.

No, right.

Herb Santos for the record. Can we also ask LCB, it really shouldn’t be the Commission
that is looking-it should be investigated and everything by the agency, and then the
agency gives the report to us, and then we make a decision based on that. | don’t think
that's part of what the Commission would be doing.

So, instead of using the word “Commission”, they should be talking about the agency
receives it, the agency reviews it, and then they prepare a report for the Commission to
vote on with the appropriate recommendations and supporting documentation.

And within the appropriate timeline of the Commission.

The other part of that is if they can provide an example of other Commissions. | mean |
know there is the Environmental Commission and some of those, but they are all
Commissions over regulatory agencies, and 5o, this just sounds like it’s something that
was scatter-shotted out to everybody. | think that we really need to have specifics on it.
Yeah, | think they’re trying to do a broad application for all these agencies. So, I've put
you through the ringer today, Justin, | apologize, but | think we—you can take it out on
me later, okay.

But is the Commission—are.you guys comfortable with us not moving forward on this?

Yes.

Okay. And | apologize for that, that you now have Justin. All right, so the next thing that
we’re doing here is | think we're adjourning. | think people want to adjourn.

Public comment.

Commissioner Comments

MARSHALL:

CARANO:

MARSHALL:

Public comment, Commissioner comments, Agenda Item L? Yeah. No kidding.

Cindy Carano, Merry Christmas and Happy New Year.

Merry Christmas, Happy New Year, Happy Holidays.

108



Public Comment

MARSHALL:

SPEAKER:

MARSHALL:

PAZINA:

MARSHALL:

Adjournment

MARSHALL:
ROBINSON:
MARSHALL:
SANTOS:
MARSHALL:
GROUP:

MARSHALL:

PAZINA:

Nevada Commission an Tourism | December 11, 2019
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

Okay, public comment. Do | have public comment in Carson? Are we still what?
Muted. Oh, how's that phone going.

Is anybody on the phone?
People are on the phone okay. Do we have public comment in Vegas?
No.

Do we have public comment on the phone. They’ve probably given up on us.

Then for possible action, we have adjournment. Do | have a motion?
So moved.

So moved, do | have a'second?

Second.

All right, all those in favor of adjourning.

Aye.

Any opposed?. Motion passes, thank you Julie, thank you Kristen on a little bit of a rocky
meeting.

Thank you.

The meeting adjourned at 4;32 p.m,

Respectfully submitted,

Dee Chekowitz-Dykes, Executive Assistant
Department of Tourism and Cultural Affairs
Nevada Commission on Tourism

109












020¢C Yo1ey

SOILLIOUODT WSMNO|
}siwouooy] Io1uag
ejoediq uljjiey

SISLI9 3y} Bunebiaepn

MOO1LNO 0202 AMLSNANI T310H ANV AWONOD3 SN

ANVIWOD SOINONODD QHOdXO NY

SOINONOD3 4
WSI¥NOL ¥




YO0O0T11LNO JINONOD3




SDINONOD3 WsiEno.L €
. IEN/SOILIOUODT PIOXQ : BINOS

810¢ SLoc ¢loc 6002 900¢ €00¢ 000¢
| I | | 1 | B e ; Om

uoljoesjuon - GE

oY

Sy

0s

- 6§
uoisuedx3

09

Buunjoenuep — S80S — - 69
Xapu|

SIINd -PIHOM

Jno Buiwonoq Jo subis Buimoys Appuasal AjiAloe QoD



SOIWONOD3 wsiunoL

}
4
€
P
G

9

6L0¢

9L0¢

WHBN/SONAEUY JBABH/SOILLIOUODT PIOX() : 824N0S

143074

oLoc 1002 002 100¢

oe

- GE

- oY

- SY

0s

- GG

- 09

(SHY) dao 1eqol9— L gg

A/A o, (SH ‘suluOW oMy APY) [N SHisodwoo [eqojo— -

INd ? 409 :PMOM




SOINONOD3 WstnoL @y

0202 'PIE HoIEN JO SV, DAD/OHAVSIIWIOU00T PIOXQ : 82IN0Y

ejoqg SHVS LSNIIABUOIOY)
91L0c-vL0¢ SHANWCZLOZ €00e-2002C 020¢

%0 +— T — T —= 0

%g 1S - 00004
ol [

%01 - %0l © - 0000z

%G1 - 0000€
%0z - 0000%
%ez | - 0000
S - 00009
%Ge A_ %PE ® - 0000Z
%0y | %0V @ [ 00008

| - 00006

%GV ] ajel Ayjepon o syleegm sasedm

ajeu Kjjeow Jamoj Jnqg ‘sniia bBuipeaads i1ajse

"1y SNJIABUOIOD m_._u_.:w..: ing



SOINONOD3 wsiinoL @R
SONA[EUY JOABH/SOILIOU0DT PIOIXQ : 99JNOS

spodxa ajelpalajul

ABiaus-uou pue pooj-UoN suodwi Byo ) dao

- 0
- €
- v
- 9
SN ayi ul Bulpueds - 8
|[oAEBl] Jeuoneualul oL

JO 82IN0S |L# 8y} Sl BUIYD
- ¢l

Ul o9/ o

61L0C Ul %L e’
200C Ul %L - gL0Z = - 91
SN 8y} 0} [erel) £00c = - 8l
SESSIAAO JO B1eyS BUIYD) €303 40 %

Awouo92a plom ayj 0} asuepodwi s,euiy)

ajod [eqo|b s, eulyo JO asneoaq JuaJlapip sl awn siyL



52IWONOD3 wsianoL §

SOILIOUODT PIOJXQ) | B2IN0S

euiyo uvedep auozoing s3IE1S pajun
- TPI

+ &t

L

b go
- g0
- ¥o-

- T

- 00
s)dd

YiImoJB dao 0Z0Z ©1 H20US SNIIABLOLO0Y) :[BqO|S)

.ww:u:oE: JOU 8U0Z0JNd pue g En_ pajoajje 1SI0M eiISy



SOIWONOD3 WsiunoL €

SoNA|euy JOABH/SOILIOUOIT PIOXQ : 821N08
0¢02 L10¢ G10¢ 2L0¢ 0L0C 800 G002 €002 000C 8661 9661

0z-
L GL-
I O vl

L ml

o
- oL
apel} [Bj0 -+ 5
spodx3y— @ - Sl
1589, spodw)— & oz

(ew wgz)) A o
UOISS823J 9PISINO JSIoM S} Je ymolb spel] :sn

pajle}s oAy SMOJ} apes) SN :L# ANjiqessuinp




$2IWONOD3 WsiunoL B

SAWOUOIT PIX0 “SIBAIEUY JIWOU0DT JO NEAING FWN0G
TPvD0 pue wAL yia ‘siaud Sjeiodion xe-ald ‘F0 610Z Ubnanp AiotsiH @10N

)20¢ 5102 oLoe 5002 0002 S66L 0661 sa6l 0861
ke _*..v

%9

- Ul
%86 PDB610Z
afelene |eoUCiSiH i

- %k

WPl
Apapenb ‘'4gs o} onel B Sy

sjijosd ajelodion

pamouieu aAey sjjoud ajerodion :z# AMjiqerau|np



SOINONOD3 WsiinoL @l

ueder ‘Auewag) ‘SN , SONAJEUY JSABH/SOILIOUODT PIOIX() : 80IN0S
61L0C 9L0g €102 0L02 2002 #00C L00C

b op-
£ - - 0-
Gl - 0z-
- E / - 0L
O o .C? >é’ a > z O
b 1 é - 0k
¢ 1 (SHY) syiuow § pasueApe ‘Jojesipul paseg-Aenng— [ 02
jualjisal (SH) Jojesipu s19pI0 Spoob juaw)saau) ,&-6)—
9JOW Udd(q aARl S8IIAIDS € - - 0¢
10J2OIPUI PasSIPIEPUBIS :
309449 syl Bujaey LIS
S| UMOPMO|S apeJ} |eqolo) sl10jesipul JUsalU)SaAU] :¢-9)

Ajdieys uajje} aAey suoniuajul JUBSWIISAAU| S AJjIgeIaunA



SOIWONOD3 WsiunoL By

SONA|EUY JOARH/SILIOUDIT PIOXO) (82IN0S
g8L02c 9102 viLog Zioc oiozg 8002

1 I i I— Now‘
9l

roe

de.

Fve

9t

obeltaae Bujjjos ow-¢ ‘sBujwies Aunoy ebeleny —— ._m.mm.ﬁ
sBuiuiees Anoy sbesany ———— %

sbuiuies Aunoy shesaay :sn

'(%b'e sem )l 6961 Aely) sieak oG JaA0
ul }semoj s) si ajes Juawnhojdwaun ay |

0 21 0F wbrasa Laogsyy by ] Lo L] [ L] q.._l L.!
SZ0Z2 0202  S0Z  OWZ 5002 0OOZ  556L 0860 GGG OGGL
s LY
a\ %St -ND 6102
wawiodwau LL\ _ =¥
Y Il
———
%9
)
el

ajed Juswkojdwaun

slawnsuo :dojsyoeq ajewnin



SOIWONOD3 WsiinoL €

SOIWIOUOIS PIOIX() © BINOS
- 00

00
- ¢0

- ¥0
- 90
- 80
- 0L
-2l
- vl
- 9L

L'} L gL
OlIEUSDS UMOP)Y20] aujjeseq yaiep SMIIA ON

abelaae 9

0202 W ymoab das sn

a|qejIAaUl S| 0Z0Z MOIS V






SOIWONOD3 WstunoL €y

EMUOUCY WAND Y I HLS KOS
¥O | EDE UBNAAE ST380) "1 81GE HDNGAD LOri) ParnR AJRUCISSE DE0 PROPUS SUDSEONY WOt

1341 s002 0002

ShoE oloz S68L 066t

]

=09

99 POGLOZ
%89

R AuRcR)

fouednaog

Wemtni) J e} Y| Sy
D Iyt Sy

e 6% L} Sk €L b 60 L0 S50 €0 0 66 L6 56 €6 6 69 LB

e B e I e B B T

FIt

\\\\\.

ejdes sad
——— spybiu woou g'g

v0 6102

it

LZv
$iyBu woou fenuuy

sn ‘endes sad syybiu wooy

19A9 uey)} aiow Buijaaed) ate ajdoad




SOINONOD3 WsiinOL (R

SOILUOUODT WSKNO] 'HIS :82IN0S

0coe 9102 cloe B800C Y002 oo0e 9661 €661 8861

%05
%9'vS
uaissaasy 60-8002
%SGS
%065
uo|ssaoay LO0Z
. %029
%829 . %09
:o_mmmumw” 819A3S 0202 :o_mmmumﬂ L6-0661 ¢

%S9

sujjeseg—

UOISS809) 91oA9G—

uoISS809Y PlIN—
%04
S[oADT

ajyey AouednoaoaQ |910H

92a4y) )sed ayj ui uey) Joybiy aie sajes Aouednoddo UOiISSaDal Ul UDAT



SOINONOD3 WsiinoL €y

‘LL/6 10 10edw sealf-ninw
ay) Buipaasxa ‘sI0)ISIA 1S0] UOl||IW Z'g saljdw SIYyL

STWOLODT WSUNCH 2N0S

(s1eWwnsa) §1-ped
Ze

SHVE LB
- 06"

L

08
oL
0e
0
ov
oe
0z
ot

Loo
SuonN
SN 8y} 0} SYSIA |euojewajul u| aufjdeq

‘SHVYS WoJ) suj|osp suy} 3|gnop INoge Ueak siu) SHISIA
[BUOIBUIBIUI LU} BUI[OBP %0 | B Bullseoslo) aie apy «

$OMUDUOIT WSUND) [22UN0S

(alBwnsa) g1-prod SHYS LLIE

- %B1-

%SGl

%ok
- %b -
- %z
%0}
| oe-
- %9
- %l
- a2

- %0
abueys o,
S0 8y} 0] sI0}SIA jeuolewiajul ul sujasg

pajoadxa sasso| punoqul [euoijeulaju]




SOINONOD3 WsinoL @By

STIWOUOIT WSUNG | ‘BUM0S

BIUSUNY
BIsy PLOM adomng BpRURT) upe ooIxap
ﬁ %0€-
%1 b2~ * "
- %0Z-
b %G1~
%Ol o001 m

abueyo o
0202 Ul SN 8L} 0} SIOYSIA [EUCHRUISIU| U} dUl|8(]

‘adoing
Aq pamoj|o} ‘s}a)Jew ueisy wouj }sow

‘sjybiu wood uoljjiw g} Ajjewinxoiddy

SOWOUCTT WSUND) ‘32IN0S

BONBLIY

PO une oxXap BpEUE]) adoung eisy

[(229) ]

(620'1)

000'6-

- 000'8-
- 000'L-
- 000'
- 000'S

000'%-
ooo‘e-
000'z-

- 000°L-

-0

spuesnoy )
0202 W SN 3] 0] SI0YSIA [eUCHRWIIU] Ul aulde]

puewWap WOOI JO 9%¢"| = 0Z0Z Ul SI0}ISIA UOo]jjiw g Jo aul|oag



SOINONOD3 Wsiuno.L €

SALOUODT WISUNO [92IN08

{ejewnss) 61-p1nod Syvs LL/G
- 0%
ees [ T4
L'vZs - 623"
2002 . oz¢-
‘(uoiniq 52$) 2002 PUe 1002 . gLg-
yioq ssoJoe | | /6 jo pedwi ays saydecidde
sIY] "gZ0z Ul slodxa [aaed) ul uoljig
#2¢$ 950] 0} 1SB32.0y SI ALIOUOID SN Ayl - 0L
L mﬂ|
‘SYUVYS
uey) 193ea4b sswiy uanas Ajesu o8
aq 0} pajradxa s) gL-pIrod jo suoq $
Pedwi ay) ‘suiz) 2uiouods Ul SN @2y ul Buipuadsg JOYSIA [BUORELIBIY| Ul BUI|99(]

}so| uolj|iq vZ$



SOINONOD3 wsinoL @l

SWOUDDT WEINC | [Sunog
gE M y Q Ot .74} 0001 00y 009 [¢.1} 4 oo ]
W onuepO N =ueny
Hl weny Wl cpuejQ
I s:04 527 B ERpEig
I i CUOH I wey
I ey . ucisnoy
e
- o
S AN B b ues
I ucis0 29
M o— 00
I 050 UeS [ )
It [
I ©rcenein.g I NOU0H
I 1500 E— sc60 527
I cOsPuRlj LES 7 Tt
I 150 T ——
N 51205 e py————
N, 0{o0Uy 207 R ¢
e /) PI%J3 11 A 010Gy 507
-}
% 000

6102 Ul BU{YD WOJJ SHSIA SEISIAAD JO aJeYS 6102 Ul BUIYD WOl SHSIA JYBILIBAQ

"Je)Iew asauIyD ayj o} ‘Aloanoadsal ‘610z Ul BUIYD WO} SUSIA JYBluisao
pasodxa Jsow aJe ajeag pue ‘sajabuy so ‘Y0 SpISIaAly Uol(jil '] pUB uol|ji Z' | Yyiim suoneunssp Ao
‘6102 Ul AJI0 Yoee 0} SI0)ISIA SESSIBA0 [B)0) JO BJeYS B Sy « SN 1sebie| ay) ate AN YIoA MaN pue sojabuy so .

eulys o} ainsodxa A}9H



SIINONOD3 WsinoL @R

124

puBLWap [9ARJ) punoqul
ajlym aanIsod padels
PUBLWSP WOOI J)}SaLloQ

SOILIOU02T WSUNO] ‘O1LN ‘H1S 29Jn0g

28 AON 100 deg Bny np unp Aepy Jdy Jepw geq uep
- %SZ-

- %02-
- %G1
- %01
— - %G

i - - %0

Jeuoneula)u| =

osswogm

L %5
L 9,01

1
I
|
Neaiqino SYy'S jo pug |

gooz ‘A/A sbueyd v,
puewap WooYy

€00Z Ul o1weuAp Buysaiajuj |



SOONOD3 WsiunoL €

S14 :891nog
99 AON 0O deg Bny np unp Aep idy Jew dgeq uep

+

oe

ge

- OF

G

- 0G

GG

€002 Ul Jeak ay} 1o} jey )E2IGIN0 SHY'S Jo pul | £00c= coocm L 09

SEM SN Syl Ul [DABL U . SUoiN

siabuassed Jie snsawog

Jeak ayj jjey Eomm 10} ||9} [eAR} Jle 213sawo(



SOINONOD3 WsinoL

‘|9Ae]} JljsaWop SOIWOU0OT WISUNOL 'OLLN ‘H1S 22In0g
OJuUl pPapaAUOD S| sdu) 858} Jo 990 AON 00 dos Bny op unp Aew idy e geq uer

aleys e J] S9SSO| |euajeuwsdlul Jo aieys ' r %Sl-
ab.e| e Jo} a)esusdwos pnoo siy| . “ L 001-
I
‘sduy uojjiw I - %SG
G| Jnoge Aq 1o 9,G| AQ j10B1IUOD “ L %0
0] [SARI} PUNOQINO SN 108dX8 MOU AL
: b %S
"sdii) uol|jiw G Jo Jusjeainbe I L %01
8y} 8q pInom 0Z0g Ul |9ARS punogino “ siafuassed .
ul suioep obejusolad swes sy . : v uwmmm._wml %5l
I LIOOY ISBLUO(] s - %0¢
"MaUB |aABI} D)ISBIOP ‘BlIUMUBS NeaIgIne SyV'S Jo pug | | g5
"£00¢ Ui %S pauijoap ma_._: punoqing - cooz ‘AjA abBueyo ¢,

10848 uolNIsqns ansaLog

J21)SaWIOp 0} |9ARI) _wr:oc_:_o BuiuaAuo) ”b.__rm..__lon_o_o



SOINONOD3 WsinoL @R

(4eaA 18B) 0) 9Aneas dnoub sy Jo 9,zZ9 1S0| 91IeaS)
(020 dnoub 0} 9%Eg 10 SSO| B UM ‘020 9,G |- ||B48A0) (+SWO00I 000L) SiBloy xoq Big 1e dnosb ul suipsp abie .

‘ejep Jjuswbes anoqe pue sjeasdn Jaddn ay) Buowe (200 9,g-) Jusisuel} uey) (990 9%/ L-) dnoib o) uy 1ebie] .
(sssuisnq) pap-ung o} Jy Jajealb yim ‘(ainsiaf) Aouednooo 1eg-LJ Ol Iy B JO SS9 .

(ipeq os 10u) %/

0} J9ANOJUBA pUB ‘9%,G/ O} ] ‘%2Z/. 0} piey 3IoA MepN “Aouednsdo 9,g9 0} |18} 4S Aouednodo 9%,zG o) ||9) ofliess
(%L 1-) opuepQ (%0Z-) SHOA MBN ‘(%SE-) 8mess (%zh-) wieyeuy (%9p-) 0osiouel] ueg o) sy Jofely .
"JOPIO JBY] U] ‘LOSal pue Lodiie ‘ueqin o} Iy 1sopieH .
‘Awouooe 0} Joedw) ssa| Ajjyby(s ‘enoge pue sjieasdn o) )y 1sebie] .
(HQV %9~ ‘090 %g’L-) doom au} 1o} Yydrey ul doip %9 L .

/ Yole 1es Buipus yaem ay) Joj elep H¥1S

__Emw_t ul mw:mEmmm e ‘wid)} t_o:w m:__ uj



OT w1 'uonewso;u) ANEaS JEIS03 (3 OZ0Z W16 5324005
mm m« & LT Sb- co-

¥ SURIHO My

IW ‘NonaQ

VA '1prag euIA/IopON
AN N0 maN

X1 'sejjeq

1 ‘yede|H/IWElN

NL "dypaysen

WA "upisog

U ‘Lngeaad 1s/edwe )|
YA-QW-2Q ‘voidupysem
IM-NW ‘Ined 15/5)|otdrauuny
(a3 WELYE ]

X1 ‘'uoisnoH

V) ‘yreag Juonfsetaiuy soq
W) ‘odayg ues

5 ‘Buepy

14 ‘opusQ

fN-yd ‘eydidpenyd

v 'musoyd

I-ON ‘BNoT IS

T fedepp

IH ‘puEeis) myjeg

V) ‘ORIBY UES/OISIIUELE UBS
VD "BUY BIUES /W 3YEUY

YA ‘BnEas

o

Jd L4 Y¥dhay Jualsues) @ Jd LY 4vdasy dnaio

£ Yd.e|N pud Y33 ‘@8uryd % YYdAaY uoneiuasas
1D V $0 slied Yvdnay :gzdol




110D’ SIWLOUODIZPIDIXO A
131ISqIAL

0110 0S89 59+ ‘131
60660 10debuig
SO-BEH

peOy AlRlleg 9
alodebulg

LUDD 52iLLIOU0I8 IO XOEIX0g|IELU
‘ew3

6/81 98/ {9r9) L+ 8L
SN

POO0L AN POA 78N

100j4 41§ 'aienbg Jorouey g

NIOA MIN

(008 046 £0Z(0} v+ tiaL
YN
LO}SNOH eqnQ 1d6 L3S 'ucpuoT
Q0SIoUB]4 URG U] aden je~peolg L e
oW0I0} Uiy 3SNOH |BspRroIg
salelbuy 507 524 uopuo

olesin Hnpjue 4
044D uojsog 1sejleg 00689Z 598101 prr+ 1191
Suoy SuoH A0 0DIXQN ucpuaT] M0
Auphg elydippe|i pIoIxQ SHI LXO o
aiodebuig MIOA maN SRV IS LZL
BILY pUE asnap A3qay
251084 BISY seallawy )se3 ajppiw 'adoang P SOILU0U0DS OO
S2010 U] Sa210 Ul Sa|0 s1alenbpeal| |ego|g

ANVIWOD SDHYONQCDH GHO4X0 NV

SOINONOD3
INSIJNOL ™







WOID YAVAINTIIAVYHL

7O\

VAVAIN:
vw>+<~“

ajepdn
lauied R a13sawoq

61-dINOD

SHIVASAV IVHNLTIND ANV WSIJNOL S0 INIW1dVd3d




WOD VOVAENTAAVHEHL

‘YAVAIN'
Qe

'S9NSS| DAL}
Se|j-paJ Aue yum pajepdn ag 01 anujuod ||im 38ed ay3 ‘1eaayl yijeay dygnd e
Ja8uoj| ou sI yealqino ayl Jaye 1ng ‘6T-QIAOD Inoge uocllewJoul Jo ||n) st aded ayl .

013 ‘|aAeIL SN ‘OHM
‘30D — saljuoyine |eidijjo o0} Juiod o) a8ed 9yl pash aAey am 1nqg Hjeaiqino yieay
21|gnd JuUa44nd SIY} UO AllJOYINe Ue Se SIA|DSINO0 PaLIasUl 1,usey BPeASN |SABIL

"asn Jo 9sea Joj padde] sl
1sod yoea pue doj ay] 18 UOIIRWIIONI] 1S9MBU Y] YHUM ‘Jewlo) 5o|q e u) si aded syl .

‘siaunied uno 1o} adueping pue UojlewWIOUl 40} ZIq® UO paleaud a8ed e pey
epeAsN |[aAed] ‘Adenuqaq AjJea ul ‘sanssi pale|ad [9Aed] Sejj-paJd aieys 01 JOpJO U] .

punoas)joeg



.<nvmwwzv 91epd( SNJIABUOJIOD) UOI1RID0SSY |[9ABI] 'S’ 187 "2
i 1U9pIsald 0T0Z MdI woJ) 33essaIN 87 'qad
uljlag g1 JO UOolle||adued JO JUDWIDUNOULY Q7 'Jd
6T-AIAOD uo saiepdn
guIpN|aul SANSS! |BJAASS UO YADA] PUB |[9ABI]L SN Y1IM 19W BPBASN |9ARI] /7 ‘03]
BUIYD g1| 40 Juawauodisod JO JuswiaduNouuy (6T g4
[|ED @2UaJ3JU0I UOIIBID0SSY |[9ABI] *S () SUIO] WEed) BPeAd| |9ARIL 7T 034
S9JIAJ9S UBWNH pue Y}esH Jo uswnedsq epeAsN wol) 33essan (TT g2 .
(D@D :924n0s) SN BY3 Ul BulAlIE 3SIUIYD) 104 AIOSIAPY [9ABI]L (TT ‘024
UOI1E||92UBI UOISSIW 2]paul/sa|es eulyD) JO JUSWIIUNOUUY :8 Q3
(DQD :224n0S) snaiAUOIOD
0} puodsal pue ue|d 01 si9Aojdwa pue ssauisng 10} dUepIng wiadul paJeys i/ 'ga4
SJaquiawl Yim ||ed [sAed] ‘S'M) WOJ4 uollewJlojul paseys jeyy 1sod 15414
SNJIABUOIOD)
0} P31EJIP3P || UOIIEIDOSSY |DABIL "S N 1S41) Sujol wed) epeAs| [9ABI] .
W ged .
SNJIABUOIO0D)
1JNOQgE M3U 10J 82IN0S3J B SB 9AI3S 0] pajeaud ziq' uo aged mau :Aienagad Aeg .
duiaydeln 159 1se3 ‘AouaBe Hd 1@ Suilaydew assuly) Jno yim sjed Auew :Alenuer .

aulPwI)



WOD'VOYARNTRAVHL

‘VAVAIN:

v&)(ﬂ ¥
.}..___-:._me puUejaLIOH pue 3lels ‘S83IAI9S UBWNH pue LljeaH jo muCWEu‘_mnﬁmD SN
I3 a0 Iyl LJiam 1dejuad ..-m__..-mw._ U] sujeural pue .U._On_ 3Se) SALABUO0I0D) SJUapiSeld 24 iMm —uUMMNCU h_r—m_—._ Uaaq Sey [9Aedi "sn

«5350dund 2uns)a) pue ssaUSNG J0J "' Y LILIM
puE 0) {3ARS 3583D 03 ples 2aueping 1ey) SBY SLWI3 OU 18 ING, “AAMIIE UIPIRLIT SIY U MO Ples ,'sienyio pue sizadxa yyeay syqnd
woty 23uepind aep-01-dn 150w AL paay pue yaas pinoys sngnd ayy pue ‘sdue|idia pue aied 1o} asned s snijaeuciod Apeapd,

‘asuepInd Jua.ina S|ePYo wyeay Jgnd

"5’ Uy uopeiep Aue Suipuad ‘enupuos 03 S31835 PaUN 3Y) UIYIM pue 0] [3aess SujSeinoaus ujpayur] uo ajdue ue paysignd
pue ‘smau ayp 03 Suieal suswiayels e panss) Aj3ieipawun moq Ja2oy 03D pue UBPISI (aAel] SN “Auewlan ul sieay
SNIIABLICIOD 0] 3P j33Ue3 pinom 3 Aepo) pasunouue %33m 1x3u 2De|d axE] 01 PajNPaLIs SEM 121 MOYS aped) [3AeJ) B ‘Ulj4ag gL}

“S3)@15 Palluf Ay Uj YE3JQING §1-GIAOD B 10} suolieidadxa snipe 03 papuaiul paseadde

1843 [B19140 {DED) UORU3AIIG PUE [011UOD) I5B3S|(] JO} 511U B AQ SIUaWILIod Aepsany Jo s[@ay ay) uo awed 35uaIjuod ssasd ay)
"3WI S I BUIYD) JO SPISING SUCHILISAI [3AR1] [ruopippe Aue ‘papJeds|p INg ‘PaIapisuod Yaueig SAIINI3XS 3y IBY] pies Juapisaid
3y} "EAUqIN0 §1-QIAOD 241 03 asuodsal sjuaLuIaA0g [eIapa) 3uy UC IuBsAU0I $53.2d e pay dwinu} JuapIsald ‘Aepsaupam up

UO}IL|305SY {SARI] 'S WOI]

snaasucaca she) | Kosnpu) aua ug 363 Lo | 0zoz ‘gz Aenugey

028272 | 304N SNHIANOHOI NOILYIZOSSY zﬁ:_.m.:

auljawI]



WOD VOVAINITEAVHL

‘YAVAIN'
Ny
guilesw 1auiged Aduasiows papusalie epuadig .
BPEA3N Ul 3582 6T-QIAOD A1 dwNnsa.d 3541} UO JUSWIILR]S Me|OSIS ‘A0D) PaLeysS
EpeAapN Ul
3sed 6T-QIAQD aAnduwnsaud 1S41) UO JUSWIIL]S OISBIA ZDMOD) J01eUIS PaleyS .
A11snpu| s1usA3 pue sSu1F3N Y3 JO SI9pea] Wwolj 98essawl paleys .
Hodlily [euolleulalu] d0ye|-0udy WoJd) uolleuliojul paleys .
Hoduly |euolleulalu] UelIBDIN WOJ) JUBWILE]LS PaJeYS
'S UJIBIN .
[{ed SNJIABUOJO0I UOIIBID0SSY |9ABLL *S'M) SUIO[ BPRASN |SARL]
ssoulied Aionuua] Aogmor) ano yum aded
MB3U S|4} Inoge uoljew.oju) paseys lueys :3uiasin Alojaia) Auauno) Aogmod .
,JEDLIBA0 1 U0Q SNJIIABUOIOD) UO
siapeaj dnoud Adedoape ssauisng doj ,, paJeys 3|2I1E UOIIRID0SSY [9ABL] ‘S’
‘7 Yol .
(D@D :924nos) a1epdn uonenis 6T-AINOD € YoIe|\
S[|e2 SNJIAeU0.1OD
UOI1BID0SSY [9ABIL "S'[) 91eJedds om] Sulof weal epeABN [9ABLL 17 YIIBIA

aulpwiL



jes0jARYag pUe 2|qNnd JO UOISIAIQ ‘S3DIAIS URLLINH PUR Yl|eaH jo Juawiieda BEPeASN JO 21215 ay) PUe 33|40 SA0UIIA0D Y|

JIued 1ou - uana.sd pue asedaud o3 ued 1no op jje 1snw apy "peasds 3yl Juanaid 01 Moy uo saulaping 3|qejieae

[|E MOJ|0} PUE Wjed ujeulss 03 SIONISIA PUBR SURPRAIN || 984n | ‘paau Aayl uoddns ay jje aaey sisuued pue sanpoyine yyeay

|230] s,epeAan ainsua o) Supeulpio0d 3NURUOI J|iM 9M pue uopeSalep |eJapaj JNo JO s1aquaw yum uayods aa, “ased aandwnsaad
e jo uopedidiue uf sya3m Joj Supedasd uaaqg aaey pue Ajsnopas Asaa uonenys siyy Supjel ale sanuoyINe Lijesy [e1o| Lno pue
ePeAd| §0 31BIS AY,, “}B|OSIS JOWIaA0E pies ,'awn siyl Je Ajwey siy pue Jusned ayl yum aie s3y3noiy Aw ‘1SOWdI0) pue 1554,

‘|o43U0D) ISeIS|] 40} SIIUI) |RIAP3I
ayy Aq pawauos jnun aanisod aapndwinsaad, paiapisuod ale s3NsaJt 1531 'GHNS AQ Paiels sy ‘6 L-AIADD 10 ‘SNHARUOCIOCD [3A0U JO
ased aanisod aapdiwunsaad 1511 s,epeaan paounouue (GHNS) 1213513 YBSH EPEASN WIBYINGS syl ‘Aepoj uajted — AN ‘A1) uosue)

BPERASIN Ul §1-QIADD O ase) aasod aalzdwnsaid Suipieday juswajeys sasea|ay He|osis "A0D
acf-auraclghausaudpuis
1012341 SUOHEDJUNWILWOD
Aowaupy uely 1 DVINOD
020z 's y1ew
3SYITIH ILVYIGININT HO4

muaruased sie) | Knsnpuy syl wo ak3 Yo | 0z0z ‘s wiew

YOYAIN NI 6T-QIAO3
10 18YJ JNILISOd FAILdWNSI4d INIOHYIH INIWALVLS SISYLA4 WY 10SIS-ADI




UCHEDOSSY [BARIL SN
WOD VGVYAINTAAYN L

A<Q< >m z > UOIIUAARIY puR jo13un) asEasi(] JOJ 5433UB)

v...\:.:Q
+ 32113510 Y3|eRH BpRABN LIAHINOS
1I51q Y3jeay A3unoy aoysep
‘uolyewoyu) 33ep-03-dn 1sow ay3 10j sad1nosas Suimojloy ayy asn

'suopisanb Aue yyum wes) 2no 03 IN0 Yseas o} A3esay Juop aseafd ‘ajqeyeae sawodaq

uapeuLoyu) mau se sa1epdn apjaosd 01 3NURUO3 {1IM 3 “6L-QIAOD JO S1aya aapedau ay Bupedyw swp awes ay) 18 3jjym
'SUOIS|3ap paseq-1de;) ‘Pautioju) W 0] stajpaes Jamedws 01 5] jeod ung “Ansnpuj ano Sundaye uopeunioju| alep-03-dn 3sow
ay) Jo aseme |je 316 am Jeyl Juenodw sp 3] suopsanb Jepws anEdal Aew nok ‘g L-QIADD 01 paiejad sapnbu| sajpuey wes) Jno sy

‘epeasN Supnpug “S'M 3Y3 U [SARI] LD SUOJDLNSAI Jo SSuiLiem Ou panss)

aney s[eiyo yyeay 3jgnd (e1apag ‘awp siyl 3y ‘uonezjuesi YijeaH PO PUR [043U0D) 3Seas|] J0j S1aUaD) Ay At paseajad
SUOHEPUILILLINIAL pue Lonew.tojul 01 Sujpicdie suoitnedald Suney ase aps *6L-GIADD JO peasds ay) Bupoyuows Kjasop S| wspnoy
0 UOISIAI] BPRABN 3] ‘S3JJAIAS URtun | pue L)|eaH Jo JusuniedaQ epeAsN ay) pue ajyjQ S,40UIaA0D) BPBASN ay) Yiim Buojy

supeua 30 | Anmnpis sl up k3 oolae | gzoz ‘9 yuew

533410534 ONY INIWILYLS 6T-0IA0D | WSIHNOL 40 NOISLAIQ YOYAIN

UOIIBID0SSY [2ABI] S’ 40 0ID ‘MOo(Q J280Y WO} 03PIA paleys i/ YoJeIN e
|| 22UBJDJUOI SNIIABUOIOID BIUIOH|ED USIA SUIO[ BPRASN [9ARIL
'$92UN0S3J PUB uojjewJlolul yum siauned Joj 3sod pajedipaq 19 Yale .

aulPwI]




TEONOVIL "oaunp U0 [3apd) *S) Wi Aepdn snumevas) | mog Jadoy

(701 opdy ssocose) | ognaussy el

I}

A LSTION

JHLN

AN ALY

= 5339N053Y QNY INFNFLIVYLS 61-CIAQD | NSIENOL 48 ROISIAIC ¥OVAIN

:911s Y3 Jo doj ayj je Jauueq e se pase|d Ajjuauewiad
$32.N0s3Y pue Jusawalels 6T-AIAQD WSIINOL JO UOISIAIQ BPBASN PEH
(D@D :924n0s) Alewwins uollenils pajepdn paleys .
6 Yde .



NOD' VOVAINTIAAVMEL

YAVAIN
Ny

Suljoneny

JNoge suoisidap paseq

-1oe} ew 0} a|doad duidin
suoijezjuedio pale|al-|aAes]
0ST JO (pausdis epeasp |aAed]
U21ym) Juawaiess juiof paseys
0T YdJeN

¢ ||ew3

6 Joww)) ’
STOTBITIOZ
suone[Ey eipaw ‘128euey
plojiy any,

LR L TE

EOBL'5ITTOZ

SUONENURUNLCT
J1da1eng ‘10133117 J0jUds

Apauuay sug)

SN LOVINOD @

[[e1240 3y Aes 03 anttiuod s1adxs *awosiLIon aq Avw saupeat] aiy} ySnowg,,

*SUDISTIAP Paseq-10e] pue ‘Teuonel ‘itijes asew o) juepsodun

Ajjenba s, 31 *asau axj[ sawp u suorinedaid [njasa ayje) pue JuepSia wewas 01
juertoduy AfRaPL0 5,11 UM . ANUnod SR uf [sAL1) APUIPLUOD, U SUBdIAUIY
Ayijeay ye ayqnd aiyy painsse Ajfenupiuned aey s[erdijjo Juauiiasog pue yijeay,,

"HOTEMIS STULARUDI0) SULAJOAS 311 LD

uolieuLIDjul 3YEp- 0)-dn 1501 a1[y tio Sunae a1e pue sapLIoINe YIeay ifqad yim
wejuod Aflep uf a1e ap “adurpod] 1sounn ay jo sy sasojdis 1no pue sisend
o 'ayjqnd Sufanen ay jo Kages aup ‘Ansnput Anjendsoy pue aael) ay) lo4,,

((mopaq
sau0)eudis) siutaenolod puncie sjuawidoaaap 15aie] i) uo Juawaless Supmol(o)
811 panss] suopeziuedic paje[a1-[2ALI) 051 Jo UONjEOI ¥ — NOISNIHSYM

07T "01 YRW 3Sva1dH S53Ud

BuljaAei] N0y SuolsIdag paseg
-1oe4 3)je :suadx3 oyd3 siopeaT [9AeIL

SN1N0oYY  dIHSYITWIW

THTLETS

AUVINIWKWOD 8 SMIN

ssTRRRY S52lg [ AFUAWWO)) § SMaN

SWVYUOOUd SINIA3  HOHY3S3H  S3anss!

HNOILYIDOSSY

TIAVEL SN

SN NIor NIDOT

aulawiy




213y siA Jo 3131 you3 as03yd ‘Ansnpuy 1no 03 5310131 ) SD 6T-GIADD INOGD §324N0s3. pup $3)ppdn 15330f 3y} 104

Hd BPeABN |2ABIL
‘noA jueyl

‘suoisanb Aue ypm
weay N0 0} Jn0 Ydeas 0] I1ESaY 3,U0P asea|d '3|qe|IRAE S3W0J3 UOIIEWIONU MIU Se saiepdn apiaoid 0} BNUIUOS ||IM 3M B6T-QINOD
10 s1oaya aainedau ay) BuneSniw Jwn Swes ayy 18 BjIyMm ‘SUOISIIBP PIseq-1Je) ‘PILUIOJUI EW 0] SI3jdAeL] Jamadwa 0} st [eod JINO

312y Buisn aJe am 1By} S82IN0S3J JO UO11I8][0J e pajidwod

3ABY M ‘S19)9ARJ) pue ssauped ‘eipaw wouy sauinbug 8A1229 oA se oA 3sisse o) “Assnpul ino Suiidage uolewioju) ayep-03-dn

150 BY JO aseme ||B 1€ am Jey) Juepodun s1 Y “suonsanb sepuns aai@oaa Aew nod ‘6T-QIAQD 01 palejal saunbu s3|puey weay no sy
‘uoneziuedl0 Yi|eaH PHOA 243 PUE [043U0) 95easIq 10} 5191U3)

8y AQ pasea|as SUOIEPUALIWIOIR] pue uojjewLioju) o3 Sujpiodoe suonnedasd Bupjel aie am “6T-QIAOD IN0ge smau Juioyuows APso)d
51 WED) BPEASN [SAEL]L Y] ‘S30IN0SOY UBWINH PUE Yj|eaH Jo Juawedad epeaaN 3yl PUe 320 5J0UWIBA0D EPBASN 3Y) YHm Suoly

‘s1auyed Jeag

/O

VAVAIN-
S

$324N0S3J YIIM
9IS ZIg epeAdN|2ARIL 9y} 01 Sunuiod |lews Jaulied Alisnpul Juas (0T YIJe|Nl .

aulpwIy



NOD VaOvAINTAAVHL

VAVAIN

Ny

‘0aWIA UO JaAea] S N WOy ayepdn snuiaruoi0) | moq 1380y

<
0C0C Ol Y24epW =3

J\i!xumc
\\7\\\ T4

Wwiotj

mo<mmmz IVI1D3dS

Lnsnpup a1 up 3A3 “Aodne) | 070z ‘DL wsew

[9ABI] SN JO 0D ‘MOQ 1980y WO} 03PIA PaJeys 0T UdJeN

aulpwIy



NOD'VOVARNITRAVML

YAVAIN'
oy

uonewJoul pue sadnoeld 1529 aJeys 01 s}eaw dnois Yd a1e1s .

Md] SSNIsIp 0} [|eD epeABN [2ABIL ‘YADAT VSN puelg ‘[9ABIL'S'N o
Sunaan Alo1uua) ssasdx3y Auod .
€T YoIeinl
s sapAo|dwa 119y3 Joy uo s1yBi| ay) daay ued — S3553UISN( [|BWS 3Je YaIym
JO %£8 — siaho|dwa [aAes) 1eY) 1nsud 0} A1essadau ale jey] sdais Adljod uo uonesisiujwpe
ay3 pue ssa18uo) 38e3ua 03 aNUIUOD ||IM pue SABY 3AA ‘[DABJ) UO puadap sqol asoym
SUBJLIAWY UOH||IW £°ST Y} pue AJISnpul [9ARS] Y] UC SNIIABUOIOD Jo Joedwn Aneay-Apeale
3y} yeqgsadexa 03 uiod si adoan3 wouy [aaes) yo Suimnys Ajuesodws] ‘Awouola a3yl Jo yyeay
3y} SSaIppe 1SNwW uoljesianuod Adjod ayy mou 1ng ‘u1aduod doy ay3 si yieay s,1qnd ayy
‘s1aA0|dwa pue adiopIom s ealtawy 19310ad 03 sdays aaissai88e Ajjenba JapIsUOI Mou pinoys
JU3WLIaA08 'S Y3 ‘snaiaeuoaod ysulede d1ignd ayy 1oa30ad 03 sda3s aAIssa483e Juper ul, .

:SUOI]D141S3. [2ABI] PRSEaJIU] 01 UOI1IRA. Sasealal 03D ‘Mo Ja8oy .
ZT YoIeN .
‘¢T/€ ‘Aepu4 “w'd g5:TT 1€ Suiels suolleu ueadoun]
|BJBA3S WO} [3ARI] UO ueq Aep-0¢ saaunouue dwnl] 1UdpIsald :SUluanl .
||ED SNIIABUOIOD UOIIBIDOSSY [2ABIL "S'( SUlOf Weal epeAsN [9AeLL :SUIUION .
Suneap AJo1JI3] 20YRL-0USY
'IT YJJEIN

auipwIy



WOD' VOYAINIIAYAL

‘YAVAIN'
oy

"19)doed uoISSIWWO2 JNOA Ul payoene zT
YaJeA Jo se syuiod Supj|el ‘syulod Suiy|el JO UOIIBIDY YN0 JNO U0 31,9M ‘2T/€ JO SY

sjulod sunjjel



xS Ui Put & wayy ) SO0 G W TRy *

[-yeteal g ST R sy o] U D00 T MY Detl 400 857
o pue ecu sads inod yona) =

WIS U BRI PARMILDY 20 WM £ O7) &

LLMOT

(RN PO 3 L T, KY [l ] ) R
srxpexd e peey o Kooy
IO LA SKPT PINOUS 58 SAT) USRS NG G ) 0 SEAL o i 3 Sy @ L 608 et Dutang) BusaAen i SECTy en kngesy
. B S id PUT URI0T) ISEOT] 1O LU UL LUCH FILRADY AN ISR [ aeve &Y =
SA0LS Fudt SN0 P Aauenbai| e +
Broparl FEt e ST Ui JRERICO faory =
WS AR AT B OO HICIORT LI IR Pty ®
FUDTHELTOTA L0 13- LN g »
A2 L BuRARD RICHG JTTI0R B W RFEUGT +
SATT € CILA LS PUR OGS IS TA Lina -
R R SR

TINLIVE TIAVILL AHETYIH

TPt P JRIETY BSHISE] A0 SO
TR0 UL B FPENH UAWINOS

TS RO AL} SOUSEM,
srban s TR

Loenessy B 5T

HNTHH O SARAS LTLINY PLT LTS Co b 2 1815

P-ourdin Feos s, sy Bugemoggoy 1 830

wen e o Bupauen #5oag oy
psae LOCHULGK! HeD-O1RON 1500 ) S0 CF PRLSALLUCT 5 sy et Kao i 1n0 1 FREAM OF SOURA [8 0 L0 pue vl bay )y

61-A1A0)

‘98essaw SUIMO||0}

3yl yum alisqam suidey
-lawnsuol s3] a1epdn 0}
Apeal spuels epeAaN [9ABI]

Y WEYTIE MRISITM DAALSEEmL FAVAIN:

¢

a1epdn sunayeiAl ansaswog



NOD'vAVAINTIEAVHL

‘YAVAIN'
N/

‘ue|d Aisno23aJ4 ano Buipiedal aoe|d Bupyey suolssnasip SuleduQ

SunssiN AJ01UI3) S|IeI] JBA|IS 107 YMEIN .

sunLaln A1oaia) ueipu] (8T YdJBAl .
:paJeys aq 03 aded 324n0sad gT-AIAQD 249Yym s3u1aan Suiwoadn
siaulied pue SOINQ
91E1S puk UOoI1eID0SSY |9ARI] 'S'N YHM UOIIBIIUNWWOD Ul Ulewal 0} BPeASN [9Ael]
‘uolewoyul
1UB44NI 3SoW 3y} Yum pajepdn 2q 03 anuijuod 03 aged 921n0sal Jaulled
"UOI1BLLIOJUI 1UR4IND JSOW 3Y3 Yy3m pajepdn aq 03 anuijuod ||Im siuiod Supjjel.
"UOI]BWIOJUI JUSLIND JsoW 3yl Yum palepdn ag 03 anuiluod ||IM Ziq epeAsN|2Ae. )

peayy 3unjoo



mﬁzzé AdLSON

iNOA Yuey[,



00°000°002S -30YVMYV LINNOWV TV10L
6L V8ET8YS :d31S3N0V3Y INNOWYV TVLOL
/{4 SAYVYMYV 40 HIGNNN TVLO0L

1€ ‘'S1S3INDIY 40 YIFGNNN TVLOL

0202 '8T Ydie
SUCIIEPUIWILLOIBY 99IWLIOCY) JUBIS WSUNO] 01 Sunejay s12aloig

0207 AVHA TVISIA INVID INSTINOL OL ONLLVTHI SLOHALOUd







T adey

2=ioud ‘adpajmouy
s1Y) ut sauped e Apealje 5| sjesdasdde 343 yim 5|0 AQ 3uop aq ues yaaloid ayy uo Jiom
WE 3YL "ss0Nsia Ag pasn aq [Im] 2sn3n) 1ey) ansua o} 13afoad auy uo SuIom sienpiapwl o) doysyiom
1eY3 speJ] spaemo) oF Jjim spuny udisap |iesi e opiaoad osfe (v Isie1dads ay] uBisap ayl o Indu) , o o walshg (1ea|
JuRlg SIONSIA pue sluapisas| nayl ind o3 mu:m_ﬂ_ E aAey sanued pausaiuocs ||e 3ins mxmﬂ_: o) mn_zn:m_oo.m~m L62% 00'000'STS  00°'5ZE"LyS nuwng u___o_Em._ OIPA N3 £00-07-14d
L30q 10} UOIJEDIID) JOOPIND|  1SBU3RUN [BI0] Y SBun@aw Ino Aues | 1sieads ay ‘vonippe uj
3J0W UIAD HFIN0JUB |Im Aunod| ey Jo SapW gS InoAe) pue ‘Aaasns ‘ued oy syeads Suiping-pen e
033 i sjiedy 310w Jo uomippe 3y | 2y 63 193fo.d SIy) Ul PBZIINN 3 |IIM SPUNY WSLINO ) JO UDISIA] EpEATN
'EDIE UMDIUMOD
padewep ay; o wawdojaaap
-84 a10W 33e1noJua pue
, . [2powal 1a3uad
WNJSNLW B 3SNOY ‘UOIELLIOJY
*@aeusny 3y dn yooy pue Junanp ayy jjEisul uoijeunojut/
151N0) apianud 0} pasn aq
(18 Buipping sn ‘paraido agug| O 2609 € 2414 pue deuin, e aseyund o1aenuod o loo0soves  [ooooo'szs  fooovo'zes tnasniu siam Jo A3 200-0z-1ud
.m.t_m:a.ﬁ.hmm m.com ay) ur pafewep ay) 1oy Aed 03 pasn aq |m Seipun) 10N IVAH Y3 10y [esodoud agelsay wiaIsa :
) B SE |[3M SE PaAI3I3) UJaQ SBLY UBIDIIIIE|E pasuady e 3y o) (esodosd v 10 uaneasasaty
Buipjing 210351y LE |3powwA) 0} au 10y Aepog
S[I2M JO AN BY) yum pasauped :
sey adel|soH WIBISaM JO
uoileasasalty sl Jo) Aya1os ay)
‘AN
'siulod snouea Woay  ‘ugae) Jo 'Buisniaspy Wy qul Ag 100p Jucsy 3y Jof saydesd Auia pue
wnasnuw ay) o3 s1ous1A Suanp]  udis opeW WOISND Ayl Jo 1503 Juurewal ay) 40y Aed Jim voliepunoy
pug §g-] WoJ) wnasnl 3} Jo de||oQ BN 5,21133)3 [BINY S|[aM Wod) Junowe Sulynew ay) wnasniy T
ssaudieme Juiseasou) Ag winasniny Juppng winasniy ay) Jo spunosd 8Y] 10} BPEASN ‘0|3 O 532135 U0 |0DSLZ SS 00°LE9'2S 00°£€9°2S pue Alapog ) T00-0Z-14d
pue AJ2120¢ [EJU0ISIH UIMED 3Y)|  apely Jojher Aq ‘00°000°5S Su1so0 ‘udis apew woysnd e jo Ajuolew {e3auoisiy uie) L)
0] LONEYISIA 35eR1IUL [jIm aBeudis 2yl e Joj Aed 0} pue O'SZTS JO JUNowWe au ul ‘AN ‘syleds jo ‘ulis
Suipuyiem jo uomppe ay] | pue apedteg 21815 1315 Ag apew sudis Suipu-ARm/jeUoNIa.Ip aney
0} 133(0.d Sy} Uy PASH 3 |)1M SPUN) WSLIND] JO UOISIAIY BPRABN B
sjuawiwon) unowy unowy
T {uonexnddy wosy wneqaap) adesn spun4y 123png |e10] S e awen 139loug uonezivedig Ql e

SNOLLYANIWINODIY ANYYD 0Z0Z Ad INSIHNOL OL ONILYTIY S12310Yd




7 @8ed

-auop Ajjeuoissayoid 2q s ApauydagR
pue [c13u03 alewn|d Yy Suiping ayi Suiddinba pue Suipjing)
JENpow 3y} Jo uonejeisu] ‘auoyda|a) Ul pue| e JO usie||eisus 3yl
pa3a|dwoa Apuadal pue Suisnoy wiau) snopeds paptaosd ‘uoyaed
"‘paumo Ajreaud st Auadoad [EUOEINPS LE PA]IaIa ‘s3N||IR) WO0N53. 3|qissarae paddenpuey
YL *,3INPNASEIUL PUB ‘SIIY|R) PaloNJISU0D ‘s)EDI D1y Pajeald ‘sieliqey |BWIUe pa1anIIsuod
‘Auradoud paumo Apiqnd ‘sjaued Je[0s PAjRISUl BABY SN "STUBWRACIdUN 32n1aNNSeIU| doys wo/fi1zwa) P——
dojaasp,, 01 2Je spunj 1ey) Ajads 2|e3s adse) Buiysydwodde Jo Aioisiy uanoid e ey USARH 3JeS |67 0/0'6b5 {ooos PT'GES VTS IWOIIMN, S00-0Z-14d
saujaping Juesd ayy Juipuny 51502 3anpas dj3y 031 Suluoiyipuos e pue 1e3y ppe ‘ped U3AEH =jes LU R
wispno) o3 Supejay syaafoid|  Suippng ay 2sedaad (1M Jlels uaaey ajeg “AN|IQISS3IIE HELI|FIYM
10 3|q13ij2u1 51 12afoud sy | Buiptaoad uoipaed Busixd Ine 03 AeM[EM JUAWAD Y GEXGE
0} 123UU03 | 100} JuaWwad Juippng ay| sSuipping Aujide) JaU10 no
UM Weojuod 03 JuLI3A0I [B12W PUE JOOJ pxead e ylim Uoansuod
OEY 9% ‘s|jem 100§ 3ulu yim Buipiing "} OE X 07 PRIINNSUOI Amau i
:MOjag paquosap se Juads aq |im spuny
's2]15Qam pue
|es21e)|02 WalsAS [IeJ} |eUOEN
PUE S4N 2NN} UO pajsi ag [|Im
3 pue yload siy) uo anasag yied (‘uonejeISul jo
|euotiey ayy yym Supauyied osje|ped se pasinbas Buijup yaoa azieads) QOS ZS AaMeW flen (| mmm;a—
510%|3 Jo Ay pue uonepuncd u) paieaiiqe; Ajsnojaaad) pue JGIUxs JO UOIR||BISUI - B3UR4 |BIBUAY)
191U3]) |IB4] BY} “UOIIE||RISWLI pUe ‘667'TS ‘1503 Suiddiys pue uonednqe) UGIYX3 - saydeig) Jaluuey Sund UoREPURDS 11)
ugisap 3qiyxa toj mojje | aseyd "1503 OU ‘NqIyxa Y1 104 |D0'008'ES 00°006'T5 00'006°TS Ut o “Ja1u| spesf JeelBiw3l v00-07-14d
puoIas ay| "uoneduqe) Jaxew|uonisodwod uonelasdisiul pue USSP YIOMUE - I2NNIBS e [BUDNEN S19H1CH 613 “J|E JUOISIH "IN
|'edy pue ‘a3uay mau Juljeisul *0¥[3 152A7 PUE JanlY IPjoqung ayy Bunjoopiaag sdunds ajoH
‘33U3) plo Suirowad ‘pais|dwod| 10H 1e J3xjJew [1es) pue JqIYxe aa1a.dI3IU |IBI) BILIOHIR) PAUOITIUES
Apuoyaegsiyes sem aseyd 15014 YL 221AU35 B4 |BUOHEN B JO UOHIE||eISUI PUE UOIENIGE) Y] JO4
‘spuny juesd wsuno| 0} Sunepay
s123loag Jond yum papuny yaalord
e jo aseyd puodas auy) s15y)
S {uoneaddy wouy wieqsap) adesn spuny 129png je10) wnowy e swep 193lcug uonezjuedin al esn
SHWHLO0D MTINDY : : piemy 1sanbay

SNOILVANIWWOIIY LINVYS 0Z0Z Ad INSIINOL OL ONILYIIY S103r0Yd




¢ adeyq

‘(wesBouy Jueisy Juigaylep jeiny
ano y3noay) asuadxa 3)qi3)|2 ve

Papaan WNowy |10l - 0E9'LTS
saunxyy Jejos adejday/neday oy joqe-009 ¢
wawade|day aimxiy W8 1of pasnnbas Bnged - ooz ¢
sqing/sainxig yan padewe( jo wawadeday - 00E  §
53aI9Keg Jejog Jo Juawade|day - 0E5 4

{-pouad Buipuny

st unaytew) papnjaxa Ajjeayiaads wead ayy 020ZAd Bunayep
aJe 51500 Sunaylew se ajqidyaul|  jo pua ay Jeau auo pue Buipuny Juesd Jo 13sUo Je 3uQ) s|eIsUl 7 X o, o, . pue BuisiuaApy| (LyJ1) weay uonay,
ate saaaswayy sjiua pue udisap| pOo'gY - LONE)BISU| ‘VONEALY IOMLIY BpNjaul 0] aFeudis - 000'9T% 00'0E9'4TS 00'0E9'T$ 00°0E0°STS preoqg | sHUUNWLWGY) ujolun 600-0¢-1¥d
pieoqq ay) ‘sauaping Juesd AJuno) ujodun
1Hd Y3 194 "paeoq(jig yuaLma auy *3Y1| [NJBSN 11 JO PUA 3L} PRAEBU SBY YIHYM
Jiedas 0} pasn aq |m spung juesn| juawdinbs Je|os jo suawadeydas Asapeq pue ‘Suyqes ‘sjuswade|das
Sunyd papaau yanw apiacid pinom spuny pagsanbat ueld ayy
‘adeudis papis-ajqnop ay) o) uoippe uj A4 yuesd ay) Jo pua ay)
pue 3uuwdag ay) e siano-adueyd s3uveq omy apnpul pinom apesddn
paisanbai siy) -aFeudis preoqypg unsixa o asiaza pue apetddn o)
apA1 Ayunpodde yuesd siyy uunp Suipuny 1sanbag 03 31 pINoMm 1y
“Aond 1assa| eSS afold Aalen Lase
B palapisuod sem jasfoxd sy 24n)an1)s adeys ayl pue waueunsd ade)s ayl 3yewW 0] JUALWAI Ay 66'£ET'G5S 00'0% 00°000°0ES adms - Anuno) o san m__=> m>hz 800-0Z-14d
"papuny aq uea spafoud jle JoN] O 1500 B Joy Aed 0] pazi|un aq |IM LOIN WOI) PAAIRIAI SpUNY || a1 un Yy 105901 S5 18 sfod
‘A3|je A SISEQ PUE 1aAYY BSOFiewy
ay} Juoje waysAs s)esy pasodoud
ayi oqut afeudis siyy ay oy sueyd ‘aseq ayj 0 UONE| RIS 3Y) 10} S13%IBd
H oaul 15 5143 313 03 sue| s HEIIEISUL Sy} 104 sIpeIqf aseq Sujunowy AYa1205 |e21I01SIH
W3Sy 2y L "aMs 3J0)s1y Youey Pue alempley JUNOW 3A33[S YA JWe. [e}sapad gnog SJAIS|on'sL6S 00°€£L65 00'€L65 ugis amadian wnasnyy Aes £00-07-14d
Aneag 2yl 1e a3euds anasdrayu| SdN e jo uoniesuqey pue aseyand auy) 03 Ajjoaap o [jim spunj ay] G N ® :
10} 35Eq B ||EISUI PUB I)eINqe)
O} Pasn 3 1M SPUNY JUBIG
*ANUNWILIOD 3Y] Ul SUDITIEIYIE PUE SJUAA3 310W04d 0) uTss Juana
AyunwiwodfAemaled o133 e Jo uoljejjelsul pue aseyand (i
‘Agjjep edeopy uy “sFuppng 0015y L2anny ayl e
suoneme pue s)uaas Junowoid|  Jo aBeud|s ‘saanyd|nas 10j s|eRlEW J0/pue sauNdinds Jo sseymng (g , . L, Ul 4001 v, 0207 :
sBeudis Aemaled aseyaund s1auma duiping Aq pasosdde asaym S2UNIINIS uMojuMOp 00'059'55$ 00'005°2$ 00'528'LT$ 123104 13341S MM_ME_HM.ME £ LD
O} P3SN aq |m Spunj Jueln) uo sjelnw juled oy sisiJe jeso] Bunoenyuod Jo 1502 10§ spund (7 NIVIN dHAIN EA L
‘(12umao Apadoud jo jeaosdde yum)
sduipjing umojumop jo siolsa1xa Junuied Joj sjeualew o aseyaing {1
SWauuoy {uvoneaddy wosj wnegqsap) adesn spun 1a8png je10 — — awep 122f04 uoneziueds el
a91ILWO]) MaInBY nedjddy } wneqlan N spuny png €101 piemy 1sanbay N loud nez| o] al 9

SNOLLYAONIWINGDIY LNVHD 0Z0Z A4 INSIHNOL OL ONILYIIY S123roYd




7 99ey

‘paepdn pue pajiom

"310W 10U J1 ‘ey3ang W

oYM SI0NSIA 150 “2Tejuay 5Umo) 3y} Jaaasaad pue 'SIoNSIA

Joj upnideaiie Jofew e uaag sAeme aaey sBuipjing 2110351y S,B¥2IN3
“aN0y o)pne pauueld e pue ‘e)paw [e1os (U3 epEABNENRININSIA)
S1SHAM WSLIND) 3Y) ‘3uNy30sq Jno) Bunjiep exauny ayy

WyHhu 3uo jses) 1e Authe)s dn pua osie “noj Funjiem siy) uo Emn__.u_tmna

=34 Fulaq AuaLInd siydmym ano | a3eudig
Hupjjepn 21035IH BY2IN] B4) Jo) SuIpnpu/S1I0k2 DR {ew |PUoTIppe Aq patsoddrs < (e ML 00°000°TZ5 Loo 005°0L$ |00'005°0TS anoy Jupjes HONIIN T10-0Z-14d
) . ‘sudis g9 j|e 1oy Juswafevew 133foad pue ‘vonanposd : $53UISNQ eyaIng

adeudis mau ||eIsul pue aseyasnd . 7 \ J01SIH BY31n3
0} Pasn 3q ||im Spuny Jueg udisep udis sapn(oul 1507 ,ji pUNO4 8A,NO ‘BY2IN3,, ‘Buyjdey
pue (080) mau) Buipue.q e3a4n3 AZIIA O5|E [|IM SUBES FY] “UOIEWIOJU)
(EUONIPPE 10) BUNUO 0F 4O 32N 2010 N0 1 FUDjjEA BYRINT MEU
aY3 uk A10151 341 INOqE PRI UED SIDYISIA JEL] OF UOIIRI0| Y3ea 10}
ss3quinu anbiun aunjeay |m sufis asay) -sa)s pue sFuping oSy
5,E32UNJ U PIYIEISWI B | Jey) suBis 09 10y Aed o) pasn aq q)im spunyg
‘paaowal sudis Junsixa
20u0 ||e3sul Joy Apeal pue 3oejd W ue saseq Aemeyealq uonegnsal
3y| -uonaaloid 10} pAIEo? JNEISOAIa|R pue s|aued uBis wnuiwne
080" WO.) SpeL 318 pue 3PIm 1334 ZT PuUe ||B] 128} § 3Je S3I8y) |1V
-23eudis Aemaled dwnnjed papey [34ed jevonen

pue u1om ||am Jua1nd ay) axejdal A3)|eA wieaq pue edoda] ‘eluioye] 05 0} 3Inoy) g€ AemySiy|00'000°'TES loooon'sts  o0'000'STS a8eudis awodjapy|  dwruyeq joumoy| 0T0-0Z-14d
0} pasn aq [jim spuny Juelny| 1sapn pue (A3)jeA Yleag PUe auoysoys 0) 3nol) peoy BISIA 1138 159/
‘{sease uiayInos pue sedap seq 0] anos) 09T Aemydiy yinos (Yo
ay; pue yedouo] ‘Aljeag 0} 31nol) 091 AemydiH YLIoN 18 pAe30)|
s1 17afoad 3y sainzans Buysixa 10§ sudis noA yuey)/awolEm
W3 aY} ||e1suy PUE BINJILNIUELWI O} P3SH 2 [jim spunj Syt
SIUBWIIOYD) nowy wunowy
a3 WWo) MaIaY {uonexddy woly wneqiap) adesn spung 12dpng |ejo) piemy 1sanbay awep 103loig uoneziuedip ql jueis

SNOILVANININOIIY LNYHYD GZOZ Ad WSIUNOL OL ONILVIIY S103F0¥d




g 28ed

‘Ayneded udis awodjam

€ u) }3yew-u) Sujuonauny si 31 se
ajqidya s1 , pseoqq,, sy eyaung
uy dols 0 wayy 3wdesncoua

Pue 51011514 BUiUo3jaMm

‘exainy Joj udis awolEm e

2231 0] Pasn aq ||IM SPUNy Juel)

uo)ssaad w3151 Guons e Juasaud 0} sluem umo) ay) pue ‘eyaing Jo
UMD} 34} J0} , 13ACD JOOQ,, UIBLI BY) 31 SpIeodq)|ig 353y] ,J8A00 SH Ag
padpnl aq 771 AlUNWWOD JNOA ‘)| INCQE 1GNop Ou ase “ANUNtUWoD
JnoA uiyum sassauisng pue agdoad ay3 Jo Ayjenb pue Ja1aeieyd

Y} Inoge Juny 15141 aL) sapiaoad )] “00q S31 JO 18A0T 3Y] S| AJIUNWWOD
ANoA o AemAnua yaes,, :umo)o) 3yl SIS ,SINY S|qeInLILL|

ST Y1 :NMOL HNOA, “100q siy w s31e15 syoo.ug sa8oy nind Buipueig
‘1oys

siy} poddns djay |im spaeoq)ig asay) “udiedwe) s Aemydiy epeaapy
A3U 5, USIINOY O OIS BPeAaN 24} Aq payowaad 51 pue | ‘peoy
15320t s,ea0aWY,, 5B pajeudisap uaaq sey g5 AemyaiH ‘uomippe

u| *1eaA rad OZ'SEZ 40 ‘0ZY JO JUNDI dyjea) 8esaAe Ajep e pey
Aunoy exaing ul 0g AemydiH 5,epeAsN ‘SIIISNELS JUNOD JiYjer) 1OaN
9107 01 Suipa03ay -Aep Aiaas spaeoqpqg asauy) 1sed aaup ‘puoiag

PUE ‘Yeif) ‘enuoge) wody SI3AUP 31e)5-J0-1N0) "BPeAd] 50108
s13paAes) 10y 2Inos Jolew e st ‘eyaun] yanosys ‘gs AemyBiy s epeasy
“uesd snoinaid e Aq peysoddns

sem Jeyl wesFosd Fuipueig mau 5232103 MO0} || Spleog

3S3IYY 0§ UCIIIZNP 3AINEAID 3Y) "UolieleIsuUl pueoq)|q pue 'Buiuird
jAuta ‘sudisap mau 12403 (Iim Juipung S31EIS QS ||B PUE SAIUN0D

S Wouy SI0NSIA yum 6T W smataaBed gTG°0T 1940 pey ansqam ayy
"WOY ePRAINEYIININSIA ‘JUSGIM PUE * j1| PUND4 2AN0,, "3 Be] pue
odo| mau sexjaung WENyiy |pm spaeoq Y] "umoy vl awn awos puads
pue dojs 0} 3AnUaIUL B11X2 U W) Ipncad |Im 8Fessal awodam
Alpuany ¢ ‘umo) 1303 Aay) se siajaned) g5 AemySiH swodjam pue
12805 Wiey Jo SpuR Y0q B PIJEd0) 31. SpIeoq|ig 3531 ] "exaun3 jo
uUMmOo] 3y) 10} SPIECQ|NQ ,E32INT OF BLUDI[AAA,, MAU puny |im Juesd siy)

00'005°LS

DO'SLEES

00'SLE'ES

spieoqyg ey3:n3
03 WO

Y10MIIN
553UISNg eY3IN3

Z10-0Z-14d

SUENTTITR])
VNI MIINBY

{uonexnddy wouy wnegiap) adesn spuny

398png |el0)

Junowy
piemy

junowy
1sanbay

awep 13losd

uoneziuesig

gl wels

SNOILVAONIININODIY INVYD 0Z0Z A4 WSIHNOL OL DNILYI3YH S1DIrodd




g a8ed

JuswuIaA0d |BIO0| pUE S3GIY
|E20] SE Jjam SE ‘Sannua ajels pue
|R13P3) |212A3S LIM uonesadood

*$32)AJ25 ainpalle adeaspue] pue Fuusauidua

Buipiaoid aq s AB1au3 wianed “iom aduendwod painbal syl (|2
Supiaoid aq [pam Juawadeue|y puel Jo neasng pue 'Loya sy duipeay
aq |im diysiauped easy 3dejuaH uiseqg jeaun sjaued uonejuauo

pue aanasdsaiul Yl duudisap pue ‘uiim ‘Buiyaieasal Jo wioy

3y} vl ssauyed ay) || WOy WO v SuonAgLIue) Juyaiew ay)

‘sjealew 1oy sajonb pue 138png papelap v NG BY) Yim Juawsaide
Aem-30-yS) seah-0E € yim pajeIdosse 533 Junjiwiad sy 1oy pasn

‘sjenaew uonedydde ayy vy papnjaug ase uonesuqey ulis pue ‘logey|

ysony annaidiaug

diysiaunied ealy

u _. n .> - - t} . (2 - I - .
151393(oad siy| “Asjiea| 3 OS[E [m SpURy WISLND O UOISIANA BPEAaN "8uey 3NeUS Yl PUBODETY'EETS 00'698'TTS {00'SEETSS A3jjea Suuds| a3eiuap usseq jean ¥10-0¢-14d
Suuds i sjaued dewjuonejuapo|  Asjiea Suuds Jo smata 22133p-09€ Ayl BullINISQO INOYIIM HI0ISIAY
pue sjaued aanaadiaiu a1eduqgey 123)3p 0} 3INJHUIS 3Y) PUNOIE 3IUB) B(10.d-MmO| @ pJing O} Pasn
0] pasn aq |(1Mm Spuny JUBID 3q [|1M SpPUNY WSLINO| JO UDISIAQ EPEABN ‘AJ|BU1d "21n}IN1ys apeys
3y} J3pun PRRIUACIL 3q |3V YIym sdew ypm sjpued uaneiuaiio gy
%, 9€ (¢} 1o} pue sppued aaaadsaiul, gy X, b7 (£) UsAEs JO uole||eIsU)
PUE UDIEILGR) BY] 1Oy PAZININ SG OS|E J(1M SPUNY WSLINOL JO UDISIAG
epeAaN '21nIN1S 3Y) 0) ease Bunped Byl wosy yjemaprs Jueljdiuol
-yay ue yym gejs JUaWad e uo 3N1Inals Ipeys Jooy-¢z e pling o}
S|ELIDIBW PUB 10GR] JO} P3SN 2q ||IM SPUN} WSLING ] JO BOISIAIQ BEPEARN
‘|22aed 1813 UO SWIY| [BIIAIS BIBIO|-2J PUE SUBIYSEL) MAU apimoid osje
0} pa31de aaey oym AJUNO) BX3INF UIIM Bupjram OS|E 31 3AA "Loudq
{{5u8q €& 03] 3 LINY 10 UTHS (OOkIS B SE )1 921130 0} pue 3331d S1y1 2203532 03 sue|d yim 11ISIp [00YIS
Yy yum Buppiom ase 3pn “1adsoyas pue asn ainng sof Buipjing ayl jo
310152, 0] pash aq Jou Aew spunj
JunioF3gauls pue seyuRq @231d AU paule}al |00YIs 3Y) pue SON0Z AMEe 34l U UMOP 310] S5eM T — Er 1aloag peaypes) asidiajug o
POOM ‘aU0ISa ) 03 aseysund jeayas ydiy pio ay) jooyss Yy AURoD EXBINT JawI0) e Jo 33aid 13905 ulep]| UoIEIOISIY BYAINT
199 4 3u0)s1Y ue 0 sHedal xew pue ‘adeudls ‘sayausqg poom aseyund
01 pPasn aq |im spuny JUeID
djay [)1m spuny “|aased 1004 bs g0z T 2yl vo 23e)d 03 2U0ISIQQO
aseyamd o) Swuue|d a1 I "BXRINT UI 13ANG UIBY "N OT 1€ paiedo|
|1221ed 3y} 03 JUIWIADIAWI Y3 SPIEMO] PISN 3 ||IM SPUNy 53y L
sjuawio) unowy unowy
vopesddy woly wineqian) adesn spun 198png |230 awep yafos uopeziueds el
3ONUWWOT MAIATY {uopeayddy wouy wneqap) adesn spund prgjeroL | ooty | asenbay d g o | alwens

SNOILYANIWWOIIY LNYYD 0207 A4 WSIHNOL OL SNILVIIY S133r0Yd




[ 28ey

‘suonIese pue
S)UBAB [B20] JO S10N5IA BuisSiape

‘s|esap
uiom 33e|dal 0} 210N} 3YI Ul SJ3NINS MaU uSisap o) Sununsuod
UL} 553) 3 ||tv ) pIreaLd sae sare|dwa) udisap jeniu 3yl a3uQ) JEIA

udiedwe)
SMOopUtM 3yl ul sjiuia Buped| T xoudde si sjedap asay) jo Asueidadxa aj1) ayy pajjelsu) 22U SIS e pieog
Aq pawydyq iouedeaaqol|  ays jessur pue und o} Buipjing foges jo adesane ue paronb 0J53A00°000'8% 00000'FS  |0D'000'PS ao_us_.s uopeanay wsunol| §T0-0z-Lud
pauluuaap sAwpging umoumop| 03534 YEnouy1 vone|iisul pue Jund ayy 10y pasn aq osje |im Aauop :33:_5.00 Aunoy auld anym,
51 jo saurseadde auy) aaouduy ‘3UO YIED ZUIZIUO)SND 3] JO 10§ € e} | 3pom udisap ayl 0s
0] p35N 3q {jiv SPUNY JURIGH| SMOpUIM PAZIS Juauayp aaey sBuippng ||y s8uip)ing paynuap: gT Joy
SIS MOpUIM JALIA WwioysND Byl uisap djay 0} Pasn aqg || spuny
-Ajsoid Jassay
B paJapisuod sem 13(od snyy i . 5 PIEOq fopEsd 00°000°0P$ 00'0% 00000025 Sl R 810-02-1ud
‘papuny 3q ues sy3elosd e 10N |en2ip e 10§ uone|eIsu 'suwrad ‘aseyaind “1aaload ayy yo saseyd jle u -paeog tapeay( J3qWeyD auld SWYMm
‘uo)sduly
Fuiysia usym 1e 1S 01 S1SLIN0Y
10} 10 ‘U0IsBuy Wi PjayY sIUaA3) 'saead Auew ‘Auews 1se| Jey) s3|qe) sajqe) @2J3WW0)
Joy Guneas ySnoua you sy a1ayy) Jwoid Anp Aseay aue 353y awely JIe|q Yum sajgey Jwoid onsed|po00g°zS 00'00E'ZS 0000£'ZS 2udg JoapIng josequeeyd| Z10-02-144d
Apuaun) uoisBury ur uowaed 1aopIno 3§ g mau OT aseydind o) pazynn ag |m spuny Juead ay} - uolsduny| unsny 1R ay|
ay1 1e sa|qel nud mau aseyaind
0} PBsn aq [|Im Spunj Jueaq
‘ulysny
‘Aysoud sassay| g uoysBuly ylog - eale Ay 0] SHsIA wiNjal a1ow Fundwoid ‘umo) ay) suey adequen B2UBWILOD)
e pasapisucd sem 13aload siyp | w1 dduauadxa 1911aq B s15UN0) SAIF |um ‘aBequed yo saueap umol ayi|aposeTS 00°0$ |oo'ose’Ts e josaqueyd| 910-07-14d
‘papuny aq ues s30a(oid (e JoN|Buidaay aaeyd adoad e ul ysedy 213yl ay) Jo Suisodsip ul $151N07 IsIsse : unsny 1ajealg ayl
Apsasp ease puod pue yied ay) Joj sues a3equed asay) Suweiqo
upsny c_r “leuaiew jooud sayleam Anesy e ul siawwosd pue Fuiyans yum papis
) 3qGnop aq [|Im ssuLeq auy ) sionsia 01 Juiwodjam a.e am JeY) pue
SUOIIRIIIE PUR SIUBAD JO SI0}ISIA : ansawwo)
Suisinpe ‘siaueq palepino SIUBAT ENUUE FABL M MOUY WIBY) 513 )1 pue ‘YInosy) saup Aay) se 000STTS 00'006¢ loocoss sJauueg 133115 U e | G
‘133415 UfE| umop pue dn pasaiteds pue dn ate siauueq ayy ‘Aem asey epeARN uNsny
aoe|dal 0] sazULEq Jaa115 MAU uljsny JajeaJo ay |
332313 01 Pasn aq [jim spuNy JuEIS INOA LI UE W $JUaA3 3y} 2jowold djay 0] wayl asn pue Apunwiwos
INO 0) S1I0YSIA JWOIJaM 0} UNsny Ul dn siauueq Juey o) Juem Ipp
e (uoneaddy wouy wneqiap) adesn spuny 192png jeyol e L awep 1aloig uonezivedipo al JueIn
JJNUWIUO) MIINSY o ! piemy 1sanbay : T

SNOLLYANIWINODIY LNVHO 0Z0T A4 WSIHNOL OL ONILY13Y S1I3r0Hd




g adey

‘siay1ews aanadasiu asayl yanaaug 1pusp
2PISISaM INH0ISIY BY) JO BINIEL JLOISIY BU) SE [12M se AlD uosie)
.posn Agnoimasd 10 2anyn3 3y} aatasasd s 123foad sy “sawoy 311011y a3yl o Auew u)
punoy aq ues jey) |eualew awes ay) Buisn Ag "a3uanadxa JOUSIA 1)
L3UI] 3N|q,, WEIUIRW 0] aAlsuadxa
pauiBewa: e jo yed e se ‘AI03s1y 5,EPEABN O3 OS[E Ing A035iY 5 AND
pue pajeloua)sp ayl s3oejdas
wosie] Ajuo Jou 01 Juelodwif3uod| 150U 3 SB "A131206 {BILI0ISIH
SI4L ") u0SIE) JO221SIQ 3PIS Ay uosien) @ A UOJIAUN[LOI Uy "paynuap! uaaq AAEL S3YSs 67 D ZI9'vTS 90€’ ‘90g’ sipe| Anogny wsunoL g
1S3 JU0YSH U1 Jo (jESIp pue WJ D A} Y 1oun| 1'paynuapl uaaq aney um HN u”w 00'2T9'vT 00'90£'L5  |00"90E'LS pesy vossey | asmynd A uosied €Z0-02-14d
und yoq) dew ayy Auedwodde L
10 3u02y Ul sduys uonejue)d ayl vl s3331d 3y} o uone||eIsUl AY) se
03 sonberd auojspues jjeystn pue
J12m se ‘suoyepaw 193 Jo Supyye/Iuysiiod /Buyyng ‘auoispues ay) Jo
3131 0] Pasn 3q |1m spuny JUeI9
Fujpeas ‘auseu ays/Buippng 3yl Jo Suiyna ‘sraquinu ssesq yum ‘Auenb
uosLd 21815 BPEASN 3Y) WOJ) ‘s3331d BuoIspues §7 aseylsnd o3 1502
al) Jjey 12402 Q) PASN 3AQ |[IM SPUNY WSLING L JO UOISIAI] BPRADN 3L L
-eah ayl ynoydncayy
SIUBAD JIYIO SNOLIBA S
(19m se “Jaununs ayy Jnoydnoay W— B —
5juaA3 Ay uosIE) dNY a15anbay Junowe ay) jjem o _“,_ E] mmm_m. M”M*o « mamuww >=mm;._ m. ‘068° ‘St ‘Shbr'9s A3 uasies 133ua7) sUy Adamal
Uina] 3u Joj J21ua) sy Alamag mu cus B mnu_ o0 Em_‘_z_w_. u:o_m:ﬂ.. e :ME Ph:a_ m.”_u_._:. asn _“ws w_ poossti> (seoss Jooses 104 J1EM O3PIA Y e b R,
sy Aq pasn aq s jem oapia sy | P Y HIOLIFUSIZIMQ BRBASN W0l SUpuA; S50 (I SMA
“jlem 03pia s|igow e aseydand
0] pasn ag ||Im SPUn) JUEIG
*133)15 UIE EPEA3N
U3M uoile1adood u 13305 Wep
2utd 3Ny Jo Suipuesq-as pug
udisap-a1 Jua.Und 3y} Juaundwod “2)e3s 40 ‘AJunod ‘A3 3yl ylim syiwuad Asessadau jje aindas sudis Supuy UBNEIOSSY 13915
I aFeudhs siyL -anssiue osje |im spuny 3y) -sullis SuipuyAem papis-z adie| 7 jo uonie||eisullo0'000'9TS fooooo‘ss  |00Q00'8S Aepn uonpey :p mq.; auld SYM 020-02-14d
90 01 53U |B20] Af pBUILLIBIAP pue Suuniaeinuew ayj 40 PAsN 3 |(1am SPUN} EPEAIN |IAR1Y WIsSUNG§ ! LI
uaaq sey susis Suipuiydem jo
yaeq ‘sudis Bupundem aseynd
G} Pasn aq | spunj juels
e {uoneaddy woiy wneqian) adesn spun 133png |R10 unotiy e awep 133l04d uoneziuedip al uers
IPWWIG) Mmalnay ReNddy } MIRERERA e Gt piemy jsanbay : nezl

SNOILYANIWINOIIY LNVYD 0ZO0T Ad INSIHNOL OL ONILYTIY S15370dd




6 2deyd

‘Jnogepuncs
mau ay] jo azadsauad

ayl aq [ 1 - 133lorg 5182015
ajdwos uosie) yinos ayy

Jo bed se Juawnuow Aemated e
212212 0) Pasn aq |jim spuny Juelg

“1aload siy) 2o ssa30ad pue ‘suaui 133png mo aping {uopejielsu) smd 000°09%

neaIng SIoNsIA Al uosie] 3y) pue A)J vosied yo Anje gy 213 Aq amidinas ajeds
-a3ie| aqnd Jo aseydund ;£ 107) AN vOSIED Ul PUe {G00°09S 1RSI0 UMOPIA U 2Inydjnas
9|e35-38.8) INOgEpPLNGI B MO AJUNDD BOISEM, JO UDISSILLILIOD Wonebodsue jPesiday

3y yiwa Fuierogenod aminy g Sy ouay Jo AND 311 -610Z) ovay w spIafoNd ysey
‘SIS1INCY O PIOS 3Q 23 YIYM SIJ8 puE $1UIANDS INLIEJNURL pue uFisap

O} STSIHR (€30 pue Sruniiegnuew [e30] Jo) Ajuniicdda ue 0y doRAIP || JUBWNUOW
S143 1810 21SINC0 318 aM I0UNBYLINY  “UoIE30| *JUaju) ‘USisap ‘s|eualew 10j0)

‘adeys 51 o) sARId 1YL JuILNUDI S PUNDIE WBAD BINEBUELS [ENULE ‘i @ 2)RaII UED

M 1Y) JuBwnuow ay Jo udisap ayl Fuwpuad "anz)aq am - AI0ISIY MO 531 0] U013 IIUUD)|
1 PUe -AUD BIENA Ul SITBI YISO PUE [FAME] [NJ55IIING DI} O) 1E)IUNG 'SILIAI
Asessanuue (enads 10) pue ‘sanya0ig 'sapsgam uo sajed 1)1og Aq pasn aq o) oo Jo
|0gUuAS JUBWINLGW @ BuIeald Ag a1nIng 3y) 0NN f3Mm SENUNUOI JuBLDWw Aemaled syl ley)
amsua Aew Ay uosie) Jo Aediiungy S PUE ANIOYINY WSO pue 2inyng AN wosie)
ayy yiog “Sunsod auyuo pue sasod Joysdeus [eUBIP SI0USIA 10) (IPOLW PIS-URWINY JAYRWS
£ @4n1eay | yaigm AJLOYINY WSHINOL PUB 21NN AR UOSIE] 3yl uiyim (S3epp

“ISIME Ui M3 "SAYNaXS so1ond) Juawsnuow Aemared syl o nqiyxa Jusuewsad

B ||e1sun pue ppng 01 {235 am [0Z07 (1dy *Atwy) jiasn Supanun subgejjeisw ay) puoiag
‘[Dz07 "o1-g mdy) dnpunoy [eavy s wsinoy

Jo wawyedaq epeaan (0702 ‘VaL y»ew) Suippng amejsida) epeaaty ayy 1e Aeg

Sliy epeadp {pzoz ‘01 Ateniqad) Swppng aimesi3a] epeadpy dy) je Aeg weinay epeaapy
‘[0z0z ‘7 Aenigay) uondaday awaia uoissas aaesi¥a) Al UOSIED) SIUBAD |BIBAAS I
uois$a5 nnenEaT [Z0Z 3yl Buunp pajisaun aq ||w [e131e)103 Bunayiew pue Supuesq A
UoLIED NYIA, |8 pue ) 2 A 160y Suutim sy *sjesodod jeur) 1nugns pue ‘nduy
SR BAK3321 BN dy) WA DY AND VOSIED O SWES) WEIT3D £ BNALLPUe SDJY Byl uaalds
11 SDANEIUDSIC N WSIINO] JIBIS PUE *S|EINI0 PATIANA "LUGHINY WSPNOL PUR 31NN
AN UO5IT) PUR UDISSIUILOD [EINNT AUD UGSIED 34]] JO $PIE0L SY) Y)O Jo S
'5193uiBua "sIsILe 'saafleluasa dal Apunwwod ‘geis Al Jo pasudiwod aanmnuo)
UON33J3S JWAUNUORK Y "WSLNO] jeINy(NI o sasodind ay) anias o) paudisep SJUALNUOL
BPELL-WONSND Puby OF yues8 Y31 JY) MOYjE Jou Op SIKMIENSaT jeIapa ] WoNELOdSueY)

10 wawnedaq SN Syl AQ papreme 1uesd [y3911) Asaao3ay nucuodl Sujesauag
uUISIau] uoneodsurs) e AQ papun) 13001 5183115 313j0WD) VOSIE) YINOS,

3y jo yuauodwod e 51 Jnoqep SIY) IOpMID3 ey 03 pue op s u..._v._.___r
INOGEPUNEI MAU B U3 PIIRI0Y {000°DRS 10T |BI0Y) JUBLNUOW ABMBIEE) 133115 UOSIED)
YANO0S & pjind) pue wlisap 01 Spuny 3minsen 1o 0p0°s1S 1sanbal Ay [neaing s jonsip)
AU uosied} AoyIny WsHRo L pue 210N A1 UOSIED SUI LIIM UCILEIONRHO0D Ut (3INYND
T SUY JO Wudwedan ‘SY10Mm Hjqnd Jo Juawiredag) Ang wosie) jo Apjediungy aiy)

00'000'08S

00°000'STS

00°000°ST$

pUETTILTTWIEY]
Aemaleq 1aalls
uosIE) YInas

ammny g
Sy jo Juawuedag
Ay uosie)

€Z0-0Z-14d

SHUBWIUD)
INIWIWOD) MBIIADY

{vonenddy utoyy wneqiap) adesn spuny

12dpng |ey0)

unowy

premy

unowy

1sanbay

awep 1alolg

uoneziwedin

gl luesn

SNOILVANIWWOD3IY LINYYD 0Z0Z Ad WSIHNOL OL ONILYTIY S12310Yd




o1 3deq

‘sauljaping Jueld ayy sad
papnjaxa Ajjeapaads os(e st Laiym
‘ajueuajuiews pue uonesado
Awoduo sapnpu) osje 3y |BIUSL
Appead 3yl -papnaxa Ajjeaynads

e *suonyero} funjaop ateys 193l04d neaing
. 104 334 € SAPNUI _.um_m mmbﬁ 331q om] UlElUIEW PUe |[eXsUl OF 3eyS g 1215887 Y)im 10eu03]00 000025 00°0% 00°000'0T% auseys ayig 131sBez|  siousIA Aeg jeIsA)| SZ0-02-LHd
{0121 ayy. +(asuadya ajqemole 0] pasn 34 || spunj Suyazew yim Buoje spunj epeAaN [arelL afejia 2wy adejpp aunauy
UE 10U 51 jus) Je2A Ju0 Joy
pajuau a1e Ayl - paseyaund jou
aJe sayig ayL a|qidau st 132foad
siyy ‘sauleping ueid 1yd 134
‘ued
uonedunwwe adeudis [Iny Ayl a1ndaxa 01 Ajpuelioduwt 0w pue
sasuadxa 3100 asay) Joj Aed djay 03 Jue.d 2anjOMISELUI (707 WSLUNO]
‘suooeme 0 Bunejay s19af0.d 3y wod (|leRIoYs 000°SZS 2U3 4O %0P) 000'0TS
[230] SNoLIRA 0} SIONSIA BuIaNp Funnsanbal s1 yAAD 188png U313 1IN0 LIYIIM Ajleledas PaIaaod
| 10afosd SuipuyAem A3ien uosse? ol 524135 ud|sap pue ABajens ‘sishievy 199'T6$ a skl oe oo oagors  [oo0ooors Aallep uosiedy  RHOWINY SIGUSIAL oo 1w
) : sy} sesuadxd uonanpoad aBeuds (enyae ayl Jof €103 PALIQIUIOT BU | - Suipuighe s Asjjep uosie)
ay1 jo aseyd |euy ay) 3y3jdwod
OF P3SN 3G Il SpUN} LD 'sajonb |enjoe woyy
51500 Paseasau| uo paseq 198png 0Z-6T0Z (eWSLI0 1IN0 JO LIoYS |8y
183 afeyzed Juipuygdem sno vy pasodosd sudis ayl jo uanejjelsut pue
‘voyesuqe) ‘uonsnpoad ‘Busauidua 3yl Jo 1502 3yl Yim Ajrewnd
1s1sse o1 Suipuny Sunsanbas 51 Auoyiny sI0SIA A3)jep uosie] ay)
SjudtuwWo) unotuy unowy
aanIoy Maisy (uwonedddy wosy wieqsap) adesn spuny Ja2png |ejo) o o swep 123losg ucneziuedsn al uesn

SNOILVAONIWWODI3IY LNYHO 0Z0Z A4 WSIHNOL OL ONILYI3Y SLI3r0dd




1T 28ed

‘Ausadoad
paumo-21e1s Bulaosdiu 3q pinom

-539) diysIaqIB pue SUO)IEUOP JND WO 3ol M 1aloid 000'8€$
5141 Jo @duejeq ay pue ‘syuesd Buiyajew wory pung Ajjeied [m

am aiyan ‘sapesddn |311133)3 sof ajonb oog pES © Jwpnjour ase ap
“asn 10} dwes ay) asedasd 0y ytom Aessazau

1310 Aue pue ‘suoISuUIxa 23310u02 ‘uoheledasd ans ‘suonIadsur

anoj Jupjjepn

Ala1705§ uoneAIasaIy

ue spwiad paanbaa ay) 104 Aed 0} 533 diysiaquuawr pue suoijeuo, 000’ i '00S° - -07-
1sloid ayp “aqudpur s yaafoad| PUE SIUISC RIUMDII 3 1) ARC O} 5394 Clysiaquuat pue SUOHEUOPIN0000'25S  |00'0S 00'005°2TS sousIA - vostdf | ers epenayy| B20°07°LHd
INo wios) spuny asn giim am ‘1aslosd duses ayy jo Ioue|eq ay) 104 alels epeaan
SI4) S3UYDPING JURID | Hd Y Jad
"9ZO'ETS 5! Aonb
payaene ‘dwes wnununie Juendwod yay Suol 100y 1ydia Ajuamy
Aq apim 300} aN0j} e |ejsul pue 3seqyaund 03 005 ZTS §O JUNoWe ay)
Ui SpUNj WSLINO] JO UOISIAIY BpeARN 250 0) S| 322load siy) 1oy ueid g
“1OpLJod '$3503 jeiul ano 3w 0} sade)s ul suds ayl ppng oy A i
1y} 01 saoyisiA asowr Suideinodual  -udis sad papaau spuny §o JUROWe ay) 0} aNP S3WIL JUALAPP I8 sudts »sIa
pue eate 3yl Juluyap| ay) 31e243 01 aAeY ABW AN 1211510 3] JO apisylioN Ay uo uFs 151y o, o o 192115 uie 3|jIasaupieg
‘ajpaisupaes Jo ease 123415 ano piing djay o) pasn aq pINod SpUNy 3| BaIR PUISIP 3)jIAAUpIES 00'000°002% 00'000°ST$  |00'000°0ZS a10wo.d 1g auyag 139115 UIBA} £200¢-1ud
uiety ayy 10y adeudis Aemared 12305 wew 3y ayowaoad 0 sudis jeyaw Aemaied Buuueds 0] sudIs 1235 S6E
312842 0] pPasn aq ||Im spunj Juein S6€ (Z) om1 Meald djpy 0 pasn Ajjenpaads aq [im spuny Juers)
Suygen paanbat pue aiempiey Bupunopy
uj 3524331 UISEBIIUI PUR SIOYISIA IL10d (PNOL 7T/t ARIRAO YaNOL 9t N SO
Aejdsig apeig-[e12sawwor
3jqisuodsal asow Suneals ‘uoiFal - SoUBLIGLIE -u)
a1 40 AUAISUSS EUBWILDIALG upReg-03 113d -YaiH 9% £9%A DIN Hqiyx3 nesing
:sjuauodwod Fumo||oy , , s ua31IsyIno |
ay} jo Fuipueisiapun U1 S3pNPUL Iy 00°000'5TS 00°005°L%  |00'ODS'LS 1dag ssousip Aeg (e1sAd| 9z0-07-14d
12113 € SI0YISIA MO||E [|IM| o 4 adeypp auyou)
U3aLISLINOY 3ANIEIAIY| Yae] Juawdinba Buimoj|oy ayy aseydmd uj aoye] ajeq
12aload siyy NGIYx3 UaBIISYINOL
Q] Pasn aq |[Im spuny 2yl A(eanioads -S1015m [ENLUE 00Q'QS JIA0
yidag v) soye] aye7 e aseydnd
01 pasn aq [ spuny Juels SALI0IBM JFIUR] JOUSIA BYL “I3uB] SIONSIA aegpa aumpu) ayy uy
' nqyx3 uaaszsynot ydag u) 2o0ye) 4e7 ay) |jeisu pue aseyand oy
spuny Suiyaiew gAaIAI Yum Suole pasn ag |(1m Spunj BpeAap {aAes|
Sjuawwo) junowy wungury
uonedddy woy wneqiap) adesn spun adpng |20 awep 129(0J uonezeds u
aanWWe) majnay {uonesyddy } wnequan) n spung jadpng |2jo} premy 1sanbay N ¥29(044 nez (0] qal wers

SNOILYANIWIWO0DIIY LNVYD 0Z0Z AJ WSIHNOL OL ONILYTIY S1DIr0Ud




71 a8ed

£6'905'ZS0'TS  00°000'00Z% 6L'VBE'I8YS Tviol
‘0d0) epeazp [3ned] I}
apnpul pw ax1q Yae3 "1aaload sy 1oy sjaaym paudisap Ajjernads pue
-Ajsond 1assa)| 1030 HAIB(A PAYILNE UR IABY [IM 331 YIe] “suonesndyuod penb S p— uonepunoy Aem|iey
e paJapisuod sem 133load sy pue wWapue) Yioq aq ||Im pue 000°9S 1502 01 PEIBWINSS S 3310 YIeI|00°000°56% 0005 00'000°ZES e >=.mu _._omhmu epeAaN WayUoN| TE0-0Z-1dd
papuny 2q ued s1a3loud |je 10N ‘uohue) ‘Aem|iEY | pUB A
JAAIY UOSIED BUY U WSISAS YIRI) BYL UO 153 HI0M |IM JeY] SAYI|Iel
pazwoisnd xis jo aseyaind ayy 104 Ajjeayiaads pasn aq | spuny
‘A
191U37 22u3PG JUeLIEM 1B3) 0T € UM JO0U4 J1jelrs ale saydesd 1dHD
30y 3443 03 SI0SIA BuRIB 515504 -, S|l pue sudig ajqeang ISON S,PI0M 3Y],, 3IE 3jeUILE] afeudig 131U Yueasay
wmm:m“ eysul .:.m wmm 8 5” 31nssa4d YTIH WOISAD SALISNPU) 15504 “NUJeIE uand pue IBeam|00'229'es 00118'ZS  [00ETRTS [BUDIIIRH(] Ja3U3) |ejuawiuonaul|l 0e0-0Z-14d
o vm.mz__wn_ ___._,._” spuny _u_:Ew ‘Y31 19|01A-e0)N PUeISYUM PUe 158) 0] JjIng 51 Jey) 3Feudis pajednqey 3IUIS 04e) aoye] $aeq In
Anjenb yshy jeasur pue aseyaind o3 sn mojje |Im spung asay
‘she|ds|p o3pia pue ‘spuels Aejdsip aiyza
‘s3auiqed Aejdsip aseyaund o pasn aq pinom Juesd syl ‘Ajeayizadg
“WSJNOL JO UOISIAIG BPRADYN Y] Ag
‘19jua) Aranodsig ayl Joy|  pauoddns aq pinoa 1yl siuawannbal ayaads sey aseyd siyl Loy I
shedsip oapia pue ‘spues Aejdsip| segop uoyu-ynw e s 333load amua ay) 3y wawdinba adesomys| o . P— Eu.ﬂh. A)31305 UOBAIBEAL]
3Pyaa 's1awmged Aejdsip aseyaund| sayio pue ‘suonejuasasd 1§ swy ano Aeyd 03 shejdsip oapia ‘uodENOd 00°000°00TS ﬁoo 000'0TS  100°000'05$ ! wo el a .mn_ adpo paqiapuny 620-02-1ud
0] pPasn aq |1m Spuny Juelg 31MyaA Joy spuess ‘s1aalgo JU0IsW p|oy 0] 53.N10NIS pue Spuels e
‘syaulged Aedsip ssed Buipnjoul sheydsip Joj Juawdinba aseyund oy
51 "p1a|diwo3 51 10M BINJINIISELUN FWos Jaye aaload ayy jo aseyd
aup "a8e3s (AN e Je e JIUID 3L In0 png o3 poddns Joj paau
a3y pue awdojaaap jo saseyd Alea a3 wi st1ajua) AIRA0ISIQ YL
GUE s nowy unowy
uoiedddy wosy wieqlan) adesn spun adpng |ej0 awep 3o uciyezjueds uel
INNWWO) MDY (uoneayddy woup wieqian) nspuni 1adpng |ej0) piemy ssanbay N 133f0ud nezjuesso | giivesn

SNOILYANININOIIY LNVHO 0TOTZ A4 WSIHNOL OL ONILY13Y 510310Yd




Agency Reports

AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA






January/February 2020 Staff Report

Department: Administration/IT

Fiscal staff to attend Budget Kickoff Meeting February 27, 2020
Fiscal staff will attend “Intro to State Budgeting” when available
Fiscal staff attended the Budget Kickoff Meeting February 27, 2020
Fiscal staff will take “Intro to State Budgeting” on-line
FY22-23 Biennium will be available March 13 in NEBS
Fiscal staff will begin preparing the FY22-23 Biennium as early as March 13
Rebuilt the Nevada State Museum Las Vegas Network in its entirety
Hired Iohn Bridges in Las Vegas for the IT Tech 5 position
In the last Stages of the Domain Restructure from NCOT-AD to DTCA
. Completed the Wiring, Network and Hardware infrastructure at the Stewart Cultural Center
. Working with LCM on establishing a new Circuit with the local carrier for public WiFi (paid for by the
Museum Gift Account)
12. Standard IT monitoring of servers, patches, upgrades, backups, restores, virus protection: Identification,
threat and removal.
13. Completing server setup for DMH facility
14. Started meeting with NHS on their facility move.
15. IT Staff continue to monitor the ticket system and work on break/fix and assigned projects

CENOLEWwNe

[
(™ ]

Department: Marketing

1. Visitor's Guide

¢ The 2020 Travel Nevada Visitor's Guide was released January 13. It is available for order online and is
available at distribution centers regionally and in tourism partner locations throughout the state. tnitial
interest in our current database this year was up, with a 16% open rate and 25% click-thru rate. More
than 7,000 printed guides were requested this month, which is nearly twice as many requests as last
year’s release. This can be attributed to paid media efforts including the guide, as well as to a more
engaged newsletter audience.

Cultural partners

» Marketing efforts continued for the Nevada State Museum’s Mint 150 event. In addition to national niche
campaigns, Travel Nevada ran social promotions as well as local advertising on radio and in print ahead of
the February 4™ sesquicentennial celebration. Travel Nevada is also sponsoring coins as part of the
museum’s program on February 8%, where children will have the opportunity to mint their own
commemorative coin.

= Marketing efforts for the Nevada State Museum’s Mint 150 events continued through February 8. In
addition to niche and local print publications and radio, social advertising ran in support of both the
sesquicentennial event and the Children’s Minting Days sponsored by Travel Nevada. The Mint 150 event
was also featured on American Road magazine’s Facebook and Twitter channels as part of an ongoing
paid media effort with the publication.

Eacebook Performance

Total Impressions: 100,990
Total Reach: 53,872

Total Post Engagements: 1,986
Total Link Clicks: 1,092



4,

Twitter Performance

Total Impressions: 5,890

Total Tweet Engagements: 285
Total Link Clicks: 124

Sesquicentennial attendance {estimated}
500 for the day, 120 for the evening event
1000 coins minted for the week

Children’s Minting Days attendance
Saturday - total attendance was 735 visitors.

347 Adults, 359 Children and 29 Members/Free Adults.

Sunday - total attendance was 432 visitors.

227 Adults, 190 Children and 15 Members/Free Adults.

Copper Medallions Minted: 549 plus an inventory from demonstrations.

Work began on the Stewart Indian School Cultural Center & Museum collateral. Invitation, brochures, and
an ad are being designed ahead of the Grand Opening May 9, 2020, Additionally, a site refresh for Nevada
Indian Commission was launched.

Brand campaign

Results for the first quarter of the FY20 campaign show that campaign awareness levels were at 41%, in
line with results from FY19. Those who were aware of the campaign were also more likely to plan to visit
NV in the next 12 months than those who were not aware of the campaign.

New assets from the northern shoot are being finalized and will soon be viewable on TravelNevada.com,
replacing the current edit.

In the past quarter, staff has worked on paid content with the Discovery Network, Culture Trip, and Travel
Zoo.

Interest in visiting Nevada within the next 24 months was higher among those aware of Travel Nevada’s
marketing efforts. While overall awareness of paid efforts dropped slightly in the second quarter of FY20,
54% reported interest in visiting Nevada in the next two years, compared to 47% of those unaware.
Compared to FY19, campaign traffic in the first half of the fiscal year has seen an 88% increase in new
users, 117% increase in sessions, and a 111% increase in page views.

Paid content efforts continue, with staff working in-market with Culture Trip and Discovery Channel.
Travel Mindset has partnered with five influencers to round out content for all 10 road trips, with visits
beginning in February and continuing through April. Travelzoo launched their family road trip video and
blog the last week of February. Planning is underway for Travelocity’s Travelling Gnome to embark on a
journey across Highway 50.

Website
Website traffic in CY19 was up 58.9% YaY, with 2,233,180 sessions overall. Highlights include:
o Q2 FY20 reached nearly 600,000 sessions, up 91.4% from Q2 FY19.
o There were more than 56,000 KPI conversions in Q2 FY20, up 137.6% from Q2 FY19.
o While we set baselines for new KPls, we exceeded one million rural partner page views in Q2 of
FY20.
o Overall success can be attributed to organic search improvements, increased email sends, and
more focused social efforts.



Further, January 2019 looks to continue the upward trend, with 273.513 sessions, an increase of 97%
from the same period last year, with 22,589 conversions at an increase of 82% YQY. These gains are due
mostly in part to improvements related to organic search and the successful release of the 2020 Visitor's
Guide.

The website is undergoing a replatforming that will positively impact site speed, user experience, and
technical opportunities for further development. This continues to be a major effort for Travel Nevada
staff and Noble Studios.

Traffic to the Travel Nevada website continues to be strong. In February, there were 256,822 sessions to
the website, an increase of about 57.1% from the same period last year (February 1 — March 1, 2019)
There were 18,073 conversions of website key performance indicators in February, an increase of about
53.6% from the same period last year (February 1 -~ March 1, 2019). This was led by increases in referrals
to partner sites, requests of the Visitors Guide, and adding to Favarites.

Travel Nevada gained more than 2,700 subscribers in the month of February, pushing the total subscriber
count over 90,000.

The website continues a replatforming effort, with an ongoing content audit and design update that a
major effort for Travel Nevada staff and Noble Studios.

Social Media
The marketing team created a Photographer & Videographer form in an effort to better vet inquiries and
to create a database of creatives should we need to solicit work for a project/campaign.
Sprout Social has been reimplemented in order to streamline social media management and improve
analytics. Cost of this platform was also reduced by 90%.
Travel Nevada’s Pinterest channel has been revived and revamped to better reflect Marketing’s current
digital strategy and content themes. From January 1-28, there were 13,230 impressions and 462
engagements.
In January, across Travel Nevada’s Facebook, Twitter, and Instagram channels, there were:
o 3,946,148 total impressions
o 109,776 total engagements
o 44,677 total link clinks
From February 1-29, across Travel Nevada’s Facebook, Twitter, and Instagram channels:
Total Impressions: 2,295,699
Total Sessions Driven to TravelNevada.com through Social: 362,431
Facebook Organic Impressions: 716,865
Facebook Paid Impressions: 1,327,794
Total Engagements: 76,043
Total Link Clicks: 32,956

Organic Facebook posts that promoted our rural partners — Middlegate Station outside Fallon and the
Pahrump Hot Air Balloon Festival performed well with our audience without a monetary boost.
Stearmboat Hot Springs & Virginia City Giveaway

On February 12, Travel Nevada launched an Instagram prize giveaway in partnership with Steambeat Hot
Springs (@steamboatspringsreno) and Virginia City {@virginiacity). One lucky winner and their guest
received three treatments from Steamboat Hot Springs, plus an avernight stay at Virginia City's Cobb
Mansion B&B along with a bottle of Cemetery Gin, a Ponderosa Mine tour, and Travel Nevada swag.

The giveaway post performed incredibly well, resulting in 14,902 total impressions and 238 comments
(which served as content entries). A three-ad Facebook campaign pushing to the Instagram post delivered
54,598 impressions and 4,584 engagements as well. Steamboat Hot Springs and Virginia City also saw
follower boosts on Instagram from the giveaway — @steamboatspringsreno gained 214 followers and
@virginiacity gained 374.



6.

instagram Performance

Totol Likes: 533

Total Comments: 238

Total Impressions: 14,902

Total Reach: 13,014

Total Instagram Stories Views: 3,579

46 sticker taps {AKA visits to Instagram profiles) to @steamboatspringsrena (32) and @virginiacity (14)

Instagram Follower Count Before and After Giveaway
@steambouotspringsreno: 633 = 847 (as of 3/2/20)
@virginiacity: 13,140 -» 13,514 (as of 3/2/20)

Facebook Ads Performance
Total Impressions: 54,598
Total Reach: 36,176

Total Post Engagements: 4,584

Caliente Hot Springs Motel & Lincoln County Giveaway

On February 26, Travel Nevada launched a Facebook prize giveaway with partners in Lincoln County —
Caliente Hot Springs Motel, Nevada State Parks, and the restaurant/speakeasy duo Side Track and Side
Car. One lucky winner and their guest received an overnight stay from Caliente Hot Springs Motel, plus
free park admission to all six Nevada State Parks in Lincoln County and a $30 gift certificate for dinner and
drinks at Side Track/Side Car (along with Travel Nevada swag).

An organic Facebook post, along with three Facebook ads pushing to the giveaway, resulted in 727 entries
and 29,846 total Facebook impressions in six days.

Facebook Performance
Total Impressions: 29,846

Total Reach: 24,856
Total Post Engagements: 1,112
Total Link Clicks: 632

Number of Giveaway Entries (through ShortStock): 727
Number of ShortStack Autoresponder Email Opens: 621

Research

Results from the first Resident Sentiment Study show that residents have a favorable sentiment of the
impact that tourism has on the state, regardless of location of residence. However, rural Nevada residents
have a lower sentiment of the impact that tourism has in their specific area. Residents throughout the
state also have a lower sentiment when it comes to feeling like they have a voice in their area’s tourism
development decisions.

The annual study of advertising assets was performed in the second quarter of FY20. Results showed that
potential travelers had a strong positive impression of the overall campaign, that the campaign was
successful in changing potential travelers’ perceptions about Nevada while reaffirming a positive
perception for those already familiar with the state, and that there was a desire to see more unique
imagery of Nevada in future campaigns.

Tourism statistics through the 3" quarter of 2019 were posted in January. The rolling 12-month period
(October 2018 — September 2019) showed growth across all indicators including an increase of 4.9% in
room tax collections, 0.9% in visitor volume, 0.9% in room nights occupied, 2.6% in convention
attendance, and 3.4% in airport volume in the state.



2.

The Division of Tourism participated in Vision 2020: The Nevada Economic Forecast. This half-day summit
was hosted by the University of Nevada, Reno College of Business and featured presentations from the
key industry sectors regarding the future of the Nevada economy.

Travel Nevada completed an update of the hotel/motel room inventory for rural Nevada. The update
showed that there are over 13,300 hotel/motel rooms available in rural Nevada, an increase of 3.7% from
the update completed last year.

Looking ahead

There is a marketing brainstorming session on March 11. The group will discuss strategic level
measurement to inform a larger plan that will be presented to the marketing committee at their next
meeting in May/June.

Staff continues to work on pieces for sales, most notably for the upcoming IPW conference in Las Vegas.
As the host state, we are sponsoring an engagement zone for attendees and producing large-format, high-
impact pieces for greater visibility. Additionally, a website was built to support the sales and PR post-
FAMS in June,

Rural Roundup is just around the corner, with multiple pieces of collateral being designed and printed.

Department: PR

ks

The industry site, travelnevada.biz, received an overhau! with greater emphasis placed on ease of use and
becoming a tool for industry partners to easily access assets, reports, and information.

National Geographic Traveler published an article about the National Cowboy Poetry Gathering. The
author was a guest of Travel Nevada in 2017 and 2018 and we have maintained contact with him. The
story is available here: https://www.nationalgeographic.com/travel/destinations/north-america/united-

states/nevada/cowboy-poetry-gathering-elko/

The Food Network Magazine included the Mob Museum in its roundup of “America’s best speakeasies.”
This was a result of one-on-one conversations during our New York media event in October.

Staff recorded a segment on the Australian Better Homes & Gardens podcast, “Tastebud Traveller.” The

Nevada segment begins around 34:00. https://play.acast.com/s/tastebud-traveller/6f955611-364d-4d15-
b712-ffad4d69b90d

Foodboom, a German foodie community that includes a magazine, website, and social platforms, traveled
to Nevada in 2019, In addition to a full feature in the magazine, Nevada garnered social coverage, culinary
videos, recipes to share, a landing page with a travel offer and raffle, and photography assets. The
magazine has a circulation of 100,000 readers, 1 million social followers, and 8 million unique visitors per
maonth to its website.

a. The Nevada page is here: https://www.foodboom.de/lasvegas-nevada

b. A PDF of the magazine feature can be viewed here:

https://drive.google.com/file/d/15YEyhqOkYLBf01kS21EsxtdUo8ZY3IKH/view?usp=sharing

Safari Online (Japan) has 5 million page views and 300,000 unique users per month. The article was
published Jan. 1 and the text encourages Japanese travelers to consider Nevada when planning their 2020
vacations and mentions Colorado River, Boulder City, Lake Mead and more activities outside of the Las
Vegas Strip. Coverage can be viewed here: https: i

Travel Nevada is hosting a journalist from Juju na Trip Blog, visiting Jan. 25 through Feb. 1. The journalist
has an Instagram following of 273,000 and has a TV show in Brazil and writes for top tier media magazines



10.

11

12.

13.

14,

15.

16.

and newspapers. Her itinerary includes Lee Canyon, Mt. Charleston, Tonopah, Virginia City, and Lake
Tahoe. She will be sharing stories via her Instagram account as well as post-trip exposure,

Travel Nevada is also hosting a crew from Echappees belles, visiting Jan. 25 through Feb. 5. This is a
national TV station in France with 700,000 viewers. It encompasses tourism in France and abroad with the
focus on one destination per episode. They will be visiting Lake Mead and Boulder City.

Staff attended International Media Marketplace (IMM) New York in January. The media platform
company TravMedia conducts IMM:s all over the world, and Travel Nevada participates in most of them.
The New York event draws media primarily from the United States and Canada to participate in a full day
of pre-arranged one-an-one appointments with U.S, destinations.

A press release about the 2020 Nevada Visitors Guide was released in January and lead to this story on
KOLO (Channel 8) morning news: https://fwww kolotv.com/video?vid=567358162.

The branded road trip “Death Drive” was featured in multiple outlets in February, including MSN and
Travel + Leisure. Travel Nevada coined the name and branded the trip, and the name has begun to be
used by the public as well. Viral-content site “"Only in Your State” featured the Death Drive, and this is
what Travel + Leisure referenced in its first version of its story. Travel Nevada marketing staff reached out
to Travel + Leisure to request that Travel Nevada be used as a primary source, and the publication agreed,
updating its story with Travel Nevada as a resource, and included links to travelnevada.com.

www.travelandleisure.com/trip-ideas/road-trips/nevada-death-drive

Travel Nevada hosted Australian travel writer Scott Podmore in 2015, and has maintained a relationship
with him. In February, he produced three articles about Nevada's road trips, which ran on Australia’s
primary car rental website, DriveNow.com.au. hitps://www.drivenow.com.au/blog/road-trip-nevada-
death-drive/

https://www.drivenow.com.au/blog/nevada-rubies-route/

https://www. drivenow.com.au/blog/nevada-extraterrestrial-highway/

“Eye on the Industry” was added to the travelnevada.biz site to provide partners with up-to-date
information on issues threatening the tourism industry. The current issue is the coronavirus, and the
website now offers updates, information, and resources about this issue.

Travel Nevada hosted a writer from the Volaris in-flight magazine in March 2019. Volaris provides the only
nonstop flights from Mexico to Reno-Tahoe, and supporting this route is essential to our Latin American
efforts. The story appeared in the in-flight magazine and online in February and included website links to
travelnevada.com and to partner websites.

https://www.volarismagazine.com/nevada-al-ruedo

We launched a bi-weekly news coverage update to be distributed to legislatars, tourism industry partners,
commissioners, and other stakeholders. This news digest will highlight recent coverage generated by the
Travel Nevada PR team, as well as industry-related news.

The PR team conducted a cross-market international media tour in southern Nevada in February. The tour
was focused on winter activities in southern Nevada, and included skiing at Lee Canyon, exploring Mount
Charleston, touring Rhyolite, Death Valley, Pahrump, and Sloan Canyon. Journalists were from the UK,
Canada, France, South Karea, Mexico, Colombia, Germany, Japan, Australia, and India.



17.

18.

19.

20.

The FY19 annual report was completed and posted on the industry-facing travelnevada.biz. The report
covers activities and achievements that align with the agency’s overall Strategic Plan. The report is

available here: hitps://www.travelnevada.biz/wp-content/uploads/033266 FY19AnnualReport FIN2.pdf

The Stewart indian School Cultural Center and Museurn was included in a roundup of museums opening

this year in Architectural Digest. https://www.architecturaldigest.com/story/new-museums-2020. The

publication has an audience of just over 1 million readers.

The Los Angeles Times published an article about day trips out of Las Vegas, as a result of a pitch from
Travel Nevada and ongoing communications with the journalist. The article’s reach was approximately

418,000 readers primarily in the Los Angeles market. https://www.latimes.com/travel/story/2020-01-
28/las-vegas-day-trips

As a result of ongoing communications with travel writer Carson Vaugh, and a cooperative effort with the

Western Folklife Center, National Geographic Traveler recently featured The National Cowboy Poetry

Gathering and Elko. This is a major ptacement for Travel Nevada among one of its top 10 target

publications, which has a reach of nearly 16 million readers.

https://www.nationalgeographic.com/travel/destinations/north-america/united-states/nevada/cowboy-
oetry-gathering-elko

Department: Sales & Industry Partners

1

b

Mexico Sales Blitz February 3 to 7. Travel Nevada will be conducting training presentations and one on
one product development outreach to the Bajio community of Mexico. This region is composed of
Guadalajara, Queretaro and Leon, majority of the population supports the Volaris flight inte Reno and Las
Vegas.

Colombia Sales Blitz February 10 to 13. The economy in Colombia is having a steady pace, flight
connection is easy via Houston. Travel Nevada will be meeting with Copa Airlines representatives and
major tour operators to develop new partnerships. Currently the market knows Las Vegas, the focus will
include trainings that expand from Neon to Nature, Death Drive and Great Basin Highway.

Travel Nevada attended Territory meetings in Virginia City, Death Valley, and Las Vegas

Projects Relating to Tourism Grant Applications closed on January 17"

Feb 8-12 Travel Nevada and partners participated in the Travel and Adventure Show in Chicago. This
consumer show welcomed over 32,000 travelers. During the 2 day event, Travel Nevada registered over
1000 consumers for our vacation giveaway and was able to connect with 88 agents and press at the show.
immediately following, we put on a dinner and presentation for the top agents in Chicago with our
partners. The mission completed in Milwaukee where we entertainad several Business Development
Managers and agents with a networking/chocolate pairing event. During the week, we met with key
agents at Apple Vacations and were able to share over 200 new contacts with our industry partners who
joined us.

Feb 15-18 Travel Nevada participated in the Travel and Adventure show in Los Angeles. Joined by 18
partners for this sales mission, we welcomed over 1200 consumers to our booth and captured 299 new
consumer emails. Immediately following we hosted a VIP dinner and media event at the OUE Skyspace
high above Los Angeles. Partners were able to mix and mingle with tour operators and top travel agents
based in Los Angeles. During the consumer show portion, 92 travel agents and media passed along their
contact information. At the evening event, 42 new contacts were made on the trade side and 20 media.
Feb 25-26, Travel Nevada participated in RTO West, a B2B appointment show focusing on International
tour operators based in Southern California. A total of 33 meetings were conducted, followed by the
closing reception which was sponsored by Travel Nevada. Partners were introduced during the reception
and a prize giveaway was donated by the partners in attendance.



10.

11

12

13,

14,

15.

February 29 — Swanson’s America Travel Day — Osby, Sweden: Full day travet consumer show with 1350
attendees with current or future travel plans to Nevada. Clark county (Las Vegas) still major draw but road
trips were a huge hit. Consumers shared their travel plans that will take place as early as April 2020 up to
future as of November 2022.

March 2 — Discover America — USA Travel Show — Copenhagen, Denmark: 200 + travel agents and media
from Denmark, Sweden, Norway and Finland. Media were very interested in stories about rural Nevada -
few are attending IPW and are interested in post FAM’'s. What's New in Nevada was the major question,
where fact sheet was most useful collateral.

February 3-7 Travel Nevada lead trade efforts in Mexico at the following cities: Guadalajara, Leon and
Queretaro. During the visit in Guadalajara, five in office trainings were presented with Virtuoso agencies
and a dinner was hosted for major key airline and media partners. In Leon and Queretaro a total of 110
travel agents participated in presentation trainings, Volaris Airlines was a major partner in the trainings to
help promote the new Bajio flight to Las Vegas.

February 10 - 13 Travel Nevada lead trade efforts in Bogota, Colombia to promote the 10 branded road
trips. These efforts resulted in 12 in office trainings for major wholesale and OTA agencies. A co-op with
Copa Airlines resulted into presentation trainings for a total of 75 travel agents. Copa Airlines is also
looking into hosting their annual employee appreciation trip to the Lake Tahoe Destination next year, this
will be a result of the trip.

February 19-22 Travel Nevada participated in the Connect Travel Conference that took place in Orlando,
FL. The conference had a total of 42 confirmed appointments with travel agents and wholesale agencies.
The conference itself had a lower attendance due to the COVID-19 virus. Many of the buyers who
attended came from Latin America and Europe.

February 11 - Travel Nevada attended the Lincoln County Authority of Tourism (LCAT) meeting in
Caliente. Caliente will be the pilot community for the Destination Development program.

February 21 - Travel Nevada participated in a panel discussion on agri-tourism at the Nevada Farms
Conference in Fallon.

Travel Nevada attended the Reno-Tahoe Territory meeting in Reno and the Las Vegas Territory meeting
in Las Vegas.

Department: Nevada Magazine

B W e

o tn

Published Jan/Feb. issue of Nevada Magazine

Story on Bird Hunting in Nevada elicits positive comments from new subscribers

Shared previous bird-watching stary with RV Traveler, Canada for their next issue

Qur story on 19th Amendment turns 100 was used by the Nevada Historical Women's Coalition in their
press releases

Approved design for our Ghost Town book

Reached our goal for FOCUS attendees in Las Vegas

Continued record sales of 2020 Historical Calendar



FY20 vs FY19 vs FY18 vs FY17 Tourism Category Expenditure Update Through February 28

% Spent YTD:

Category | Description | FY20 FY19 FY18 FY17
CATO2 | __ Out-of-State Travel o | Thru2/28/19| Thru2/28/18| Thru 2/28/17
 Legislative Authority Amount: $47,494.00|  $48907.00]  $48,907.00]  $49,406.00
Actual Expenditures: $21,701.79 $38,756.64|  $47,493.95|  $48,007.47|
_ Remaining Available Funds: $2579221]  $10,150.36 $1,413.05| $1,398.53
f, __ %SpentYTD: 46% 79%| _97%| o7%
Legislative Authorrty Amount $38,089.00 $38,635.00| $3_8£725.00 $43,496.00
I Actual Expenditures: $21_,150.84 _ 526.284.78‘_ $38,088.5'2_ $43,476. 77
Remaining Available Funds:| $16,928.16| $12,350.22 $636.38 $19.23]
% Spent YTO:| _36% 6%} 298%) 2100%)
CAT30 | _ Training I T (T
i g Legislative Authority AUl $5,977.00 $6,531.00 $6,531.00 $7,086.00
| Actual Expenditures: $3,395.00 $2,828.60 $6,509.60| $6,864.35
_I Remaining Available Funds: $2,582.00| $3,702.40| $21.40| $221.65)
' % Spent YT0: 37% A3%( 100% ] 274
CAT 31 Promotion & Advertising ] i s
Legislative Authority Amount:  $15,371,450,00 $15,114,876.00) $15,201,987.00| $11,309,367.00
Actual Expenditures:  $7,112,442.50| $15,008,499.48| $15,165,577.40| $11,303,690.15
Remaining Available Funds:|  $8,259,007.50 $106,376.51 536,409.60 $5,676.85
46% 99%| 100%{ 100%







